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Financial Highlights

=

Revenue of the Group increased by 23.4% or RMB223.4 million
to RMB1,176.4 million for the Reporting Period (2018: RMB953.0
million), among which revenue from sales of Human Albumin
Solution increased by approximately RMB299.8 million, mainly
benefited from the increase in sales volume.

Gross profit of the Group decreased by RMB5.0 million to RMB216.0
million for the Reporting Period (2018: RMB221.0 million), while
gross profit margin decreased from 23.2% in 2018 to 18.4% for
the Reporting Period. The decrease in gross profit margin was mainly
due to the decrease of the gross profit of antibiotics and partially
offset by the increase of the gross profit of Human Albumin Solution
and other pharmaceutical products.

Although it recorded net loss of RMB280.6 million in 2018, the
Group recorded net profit of RMB22.9 million during the Reporting
Period, mainly because of the decrease in selling and distribution
expenses, administrative expenses and finance costs etc as compared
with the year 2018.

During the Reporting Period, net profit attributable to owners
of the Company amounted to RMB22.9 million (2018: net loss
of RMB280.6 million), representing an increase in net profit by
RMB303.5 million.

Basic and diluted earnings per share amounted to RMB0.014 for
the Reporting Period (2018: basic and diluted loss per share of
RMBO0.166).

MEBA  AEBRZEERE234% KA R
2234BBTEARE1,176.46&T(20184F ¢
ARHBEOS3.088T) - AR AMBERTFRH
ERFEEHARE298FET  TESHFR
HESMIEE -

HwEBRAN - AEEEMHROARESOEELE
ARE216.0H87T(2018%F : ARKE221.08E

70) - EFEAIH2018F/I23.2% MNEEREH
WE18.4% « EFETREZRAAMEZETR
B B EANBERESR R A EERNTE
F LR ATI S o

ENTE2018F 825 BB FRBARKE 28068 8
TC BRAEREHAREESSATARK22.9
BET - FZAAEERCHEMAT - THRZR
IS AEBAE2018F BT T4 o

REHA - RRAREE ARGLEFBARE22.9
BET(2018F « FEFHEAARK2806HE
JC) 0 AEFIE A REE303.5H & T ©

MEHR > BREAREEREF A ARKE0.014
(20184 : BREANRBEHFEEBAARE
0.1667T) °

The Board resolved not to declare any final dividend for the EZGRETHBRERE REAREAKE (2018
Reporting Period (2018: Nil). F ) o
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
20154 20165 20174 20184 20195
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT ARETT ARBTRT ARBTT AR%®TR
Operating results REEE
Revenue U 1,096,071 858,894 806,723 952,957 1,176,409
Gross profit Bl 152,507 104,568 93,533 221,025 216,036
Profit/(loss) before tax BEADEA S (E58) 86,638 25,566  (194,868)  (272,015) 42,301
Profit/(loss) for the year REEHHM,(FIE) 69,441 18,337  (185,897)  (280,615) 22,896
Profit/(loss) attributable to KARER A
owners of the Company wH(E18) 69,614 19,367 (185,896)  (280,614) 22,898
Profitability 27
Gross margin ES|R 13.9% 12.2% 11.6% 23.2% 18.4%
Net profit/(loss) margin &R (BB = 6.3% 2.1% (23.0%) (29.4%) 1.9%
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Revenue Profit/(loss) Attributable to
Wz Owners of the Company
RATEE AEMERR (B5E8)
RMB’000 .
_ RMB’000
AR¥ETT o
ARBFT
1200.000 1,176,409
! ! 1,096,071 100,000 _69,614
1,000,000 - 952,957 50,000
o 858,894 19,367 22,898
806,723 0 T T T T
800,000 -
-50,000
600,000 [~ 100,000 |-
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200,000 [
-250,000 -
0 ' ' ' ' -300,000 = (280,614)
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
2015%F 20164 20174 20184 201945
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARETT ARETT ARBTRT ARBTT AR%®TR
Financial position B EEAR R
Total assets BEE 465,010 787,727 819,219 611,762 764,125
Total equity g 193,554 457,275 272,730 22,723 45,638
Total liabilities LEE 270,662 330,452 546,489 589,039 718,487
Equity attributable to owners — ZNA A A EEHER
of the Company 193,428 458,179 273,635 23,629 46,546
Cash and cash equivalents* BeMEeEEBY* 60,206 154,079 75,651 80,343 224,756
* As stated in the Statement of Cash Flows
MR ETHERATH
Total Assets Equity attributable to owners
REE of the Company
AATHEE AELER
RMB’000 '
_ RMB'000
ARETR 187727 819.219 ARBTT
800,000 ' 764,125 5000,00 - 458,179
611,762
600,000 - 400,000
465,010
300,000 - 273,635
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my gratitude to the
Shareholders for their attention and support to the Group, and present
the report of the Group for the Reporting Period.

2019 was a year of policy implementation for the entire Chinese
pharmaceutical industry. Since the beginning of the year, volume-based
procurement, negotiating access to the new version of the medical
insurance catalog, and key monitoring drug catalog have all been officially
landed. The overall thinking of medical reform is becoming clearer —
with consistent evaluation as the premise, volume-based purchase as
the process means, all contributing to the laying of the foundation for
reasonable medical insurance payment standards, so as to squeeze off
the exaggeration of pharmaceutical price to optimize the structure of the
industry, which is the goal of the current stage of medical reform; the
ultimate goal is to guide the optimization of the payment environment by
increasing the proportion of innovative medicines and Diagnosis Related
Groups ("DRGs"”), and the starting point is to rationally control the
medical insurance fund, buy better medicines with less money, and treat
more people.

Based on this, the medical reform under the auspices of the National
Healthcare Security Administration (“NHSAL") has comprehensively
centered on the four major areas of pharmaceutical reform, medical
reform, medical insurance reform, and industry supervision. At the same
time, it has systematically unfolded within the industry: on the supply side,
on the one hand, conduct consistent evaluation and issue new version of
Good Manufacturing Practices (“GMP") certification to eliminate outdated
production capacity in the generic pharmaceutical industry, while
accelerating the review and marketing progress of high-quality clinically
needed products through priority review and Marketing Authorization
Holder (“MAH"); on the distribution side, the “Two-Invoice System” and
centralized procurement of medicines are used to simplify the commercial
circulation process and optimize the cost control ability of pharmaceutical
companies; on the consumer side, medical insurance payment reforms,
such as restricting the proportion of drugs, limiting supplementary drugs,
negotiating medical insurance, and routine adjustments, have been used
to improve the efficiency of medical insurance payments.

The impact of the implementation of policies such as volume-based
procurement is firstly affected by the enterprises. The huge investment in
the generics consistency evaluation project is in sharp contrast to the price
cut after the volume-based procurement. Among the segmented markets
immune to the impact of the bulk procurement scheme, the blood plasma
market takes advantage of a high degree of certainty because of the
difficulty of applying for plasma collection centers and stringent industry
regulations. This sector is primarily driven by the rapid growth of demand;
increase in revenue and robust growth can be expected when sales
channels reshaped and terminal demand met.

BENEHHRRE :

AAERREFGRZURRE AN EE WD IE S
FORNROREH - WG 2HMAEENRER 2 RE -

2019 F R BEPEEETERFZERRFBHK
F o BFVIAK - HERE - FIRERE BHHAEA
DA BB B n B 0 ESUR M - BB B
DB — A—BERHERARE  FERBRABRET
B DB ARENBERINRET AR - MKk
R BB = T B AR BT RN AR R B IR RN
B BBRFAFERNLLAIRKRZ E AR
(MRm2EERES R S| BB NREERENE
B HERAGEXEKBRES  AELINEERLN
M BREZHA -

EN - BRBEFRER(BREEETHENRE
EEGET ERBERNE - BRENNE - BRERRE
HREARITEEE SRS - BUERE - FEXE
WEBBRGIERRM - Efiiasw - — T ERB— R E
MR EE 8 E 2R 8 ([ GMP ) RBEHBAT
BETENRRER - ANERELETINER LD
AL A(TMAH D IR B E R R A B an iR HO 2 AP AN _E T
HEE  EREN BB MES - EashREB-EIL
BERBRE - BCBEORANIEZRN  BHES
B - BBRGIEGL  [REALE  BRAHNNE
MRAABEE BRI BRI -

HREXEME  TERBTHRNEREREAER
& - HRE-HIUFEEE ENERRARGERE
RPRENBRAKERALLL - BRI KRIRBETE
FENAOMIST MM EHRFIERFREAR
TREEBRBMNEE LRSI EIGRES - ZITE
Mg R T BMBRGEIEERNE  HERBEAR
BRI T SIGR AR - A ATRH bR S e BN
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Chairman’s Statement EfEIRE

The Group further improved its sales and marketing system in an attempt
to reach a bigger share of terminal market. Looking back at the past year,
with the cooperation of sub-distributors and promoters, not only was the
Group's distribution network able to cover top hospitals in large urban
centers, we also managed to access end market of prefecture-level cities
and tier 2 and tier 3 cities. An independent sales and marketing system
enables the Group to better adapt to the policy change, and to become
more flexible to market volatility.

The core product distributed by the Group, Human Albumin Solution,
belongs to the category of plasma-derived product which tends to show
significant cyclical changes. In the year of 2019, due to the completion
of de-stocking and a slowdown of human albumin supply from major
fractionators, domestic and foreign, leading to a stabilized selling price
of human albumin product and an obvious market recovery. During the
Reporting Period, a total volume of 53.4 million vials of human albumin
has been released in the market, representing a 15.3% increase from
2018. In the meanwhile, as affected by incident of HIV contamination
of Shanghai Xinxing’s albumin product in early 2019, domestic supply
of human albumin products has shrunk greatly, with its market share
outperformed by imported albumin which now accounts for more than
60% of total aloumin supply in China.

Throughout the Reporting Period, revenue of human albumin solution
was RMB848.2 million, representing an increase of approximately 54.7%
or RMB299.7 million as compared to 2018. The significant increase in
revenue was attributable to the new sales model adopted by the Group.

With the smooth expansion of production capacity of human albumin
suppliers, the Group's continued consumption of its inventory and the
enhancement of its sales and distribution capabilities, the purchase
volume of the Group in 2019 has significantly increased. During the
Reporting Period, the Group distributed a total of approximately 3.01
million vials of Human Albumin Solution, with a significant year-on-year
increase of approximately 54.8%. At the same time, on the premise that
market demand has picked up and terminal prices have stabilized, the
supply price of the Group’s human albumin products has also remained
stable throughout the year. In 2020, the Group will further expand its
market share in accordance with market conditions on the basis of the
smooth establishment of sales channels and a substantial rebound in sales
volume to further increase sales scale.

With the completion of reshaping the Group’s business model and
bettering its independent sales and marketing network, the Group
managed to gradually reduce the cost of channel development and sales
expenses. This enables the Group to achieve a turnaround in 2019. As
of 31 December 2019, the Group recorded a net profit of approximately
RMB22.9 million. The successful transformation of the business system
and the smooth turnaround from loss making to profit generating have
laid a good foundation for the Group’s operations in 2020.

2019 F# EMABEEERARAR

AEEE-FHET BINHEEREHEBER ARG
REEIHTIHNER - MBBEN—4F - ﬁ%l%“%
WETEEZ T 2ETIBRMOALEREE - R
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Chairman’s Statement EfEIRE

In the past year, the Group has firmly advanced its established business
model transformation plan, and successfully completed the regionalisation
of the marketing network and the establishment of the terminal network.
With the completion of business adjustments, the Group will be able to
cope more calmly with possible policy changes in the pharmaceutical
industry. With the gradual recovery of the blood product industry
represented by human albumin, the Group will work more closely with
both its suppliers and distributors in 2020; actively invest in expenses
to increase academic promotion, build its brand influence, and strive to
continue to expand its market share in the year that follows. Based on the
Group’s good cooperation with its supplier, Octapharma, at the end of
2019, the Group has agreed to continue its cooperation with Octapharma
for the exclusive distribution of albumin produced in its Austrian and
German factories in mainland China. At the same time, according to
the forecast and production plan of Octapharma, the supply of human
albumin products to the Chinese market will be significantly increased in
2020. It is believed that the stable and continuous cooperation between
the Group and its suppliers will drive the Group’s sales performance in
2020 to a record high.

In addition, the Group will also actively seek upstream and downstream
industry opportunities in the pharmaceutical industry in accordance with
its development plan, and strive to expand its business in areas such as
biomedicine and pharmaceutical cold-chain logistics in order to enhance
the core competitiveness and profitability of the Group.

Apart from the business of the Group as described above, the Group
believes that outstanding staff and a high-quality talent management
are crucial to the successful promotion of its strategic development.
Therefore, we also recruit new employees for key positions such as
system establishment and management, marketing, human resources
and hospital management and continuously strengthening management
ability and providing internal training to staff. While continuing to develop
its system of internal control and risk management, the Group also paid
significant attention to its corporate social responsibilities and practised
them under the Group’s governance.

Last but not least, on behalf of the Board, | would like to thank our
Shareholders, customers and partners for their trust and support during
the Group's difficult time, and all the employees of the Group for their
hard work and contribution. The Group will seize the market opportunities
brought by the upgrade and transformation of the pharmaceutical
industry and continuously improve its competitiveness, in an effort to
maximize value for the Shareholders, customers and other stakeholders.

Huang Xiangbin
Chairman
17 April 2020
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEWwN DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group recorded revenue of RMB1,176.4 million for the Reporting
Period, representing an increase of RMB223.4 million, or 23.4% as
compared to RMB953.0 million in 2018, which could be further analysed as
follows:

B 7 [

Wz
REBERRERRNESREARE117648E T
BR2018F M AREIS3.0E B IMARKE223.48 5
T 1E0823.4% - AE—E OO ¢

2019 2018
2019 20184

RMB million % of revenue RMB million % of revenue
ARBEET bt AREBET Wbt

(Audited) (Audited)

(RER) (&&EZ)
Human Albumin Solution AMBEHEFR 1) 848.2 72.1 548.4 57.5
Antibiotics MEX 2) 326.0 27.7 396.4 41.6
Other products HAitEmR 3) 2.2 0.2 8.2 0.9
Total B 1,176.4 100.0 953.0 100.0

10

Benefited from the performance of the Group’s marketing effort, revenue
from sales of Human Albumin Solution increased by RMB299.8 million,
or by approximately 54.7% for the Reporting Period as compared with
2018. Meanwhile, from the beginning of the Reporting Period, the Group
obtained the exclusive distribution right of the human albumin in China
market that were produced at its supplier's factories located in Austria and
Germany, while the exclusive distribution right only applied to 16 provinces,
5 autonomous regions and 3 direct-controlled municipalities of the PRC last
year. This was the reason that the Group'’s sales of Human Albumin Solution
increased so significantly in 2019 as compared to that of 2018.

During the Reporting Period, revenue from sales of antibiotics decreased
by RMB70.4 million as compared with 2018, representing a decrease of
approximately 17.8%. The decrease was mainly caused by the decreased sales
of product Axetine due to tough market competition and the sales of the
non-core product of Trifamox IBL ceased in this year.

During the Reporting Period, the percentage of revenue contributed by other
products was relatively low. As the Group has concentrated its resources
on the business of its core products such as Human Albumin Solution
and antibiotics, revenue from sales of these other products decreased by
approximately RMB6.0 million during the Reporting Period as compared with
that of 2018.

3)

BENAEBREHE TIEMRS - SREHARER AL
AZEA R EEREE2018F 18R ARK299.8F
BT BIEH54.7% - R - HRRELFEHL - AEE
BETHHESCRMFREEIREENANBE
HORBEMISBEREHEE  MEXFRZERCIHEE
HARTBEMI6EED  SEEREEIEEES @ &
ER2019FAEEMAMBER FFREHEHE20184F
Mg RN RENRE -

BEMA - RANRERNHERZE2018F /DA
R¥7048B 8T RIEN178% - BERBEERMH
AR E R L A] R ah 35 & R T 5 3 S AR A PR
DA IRV E R RE N AFE R I E R -

REHR - EMERERREH L AIEEER - AR
REBEBEEREPEZLERAMAZ TSR L
MEZEB L AREHANZSHEMBERME RS
2018 F THHARKECOEETT
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Cost of sales

The Group recorded cost of sales of RMB960.4 million for the Reporting
Period, representing an increase of RMB228.5 million, or 31.2% as
compared with RMB731.9 million in 2018, which was generally in line
with the increase in sales.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded gross profit of
RMB216.0 million, representing a decrease of RMB5.0 million as
compared with RMB221.0 million in 2018, while gross profit margin
decreased from 23.2% to 18.4% for the Reporting Period as compared
with that of 2018. The decrease in gross profit margin was mainly due
to the decrease of the gross profit of antibiotics by RMB65.9 million, and
partially offset by the increase of gross profit of Human Albumin Solution
by RMB60.1 million and other products by RMBO0.8 million.

Other income and gains

During the Reporting Period, other income and gains of the Group
amounted to RMB15.1 million, representing an increase of RMB3.0 million
as compared with that of 2018. Other income and gains for the Reporting
Period mainly represented (i) service income of RMB13.0 million, while
no such income was recognised in 2018; and (ii) government grants of
RMBO.7 million.

Selling and distribution expenses

During the Reporting Period, the Group's selling and distribution expenses
amounted to approximately RMB114.5 million, representing a decrease
of RMB154.1 million as compared with that of 2018. The decrease was
mainly resulted from the significantly reduced market development
expenses. With the implementation of the “Two-Invoice System” in 2017
and 2018, the Group's substantial investment in the area has laid a solid
foundation for the follow-up sales channel construction and adjustment.

Administrative expenses

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded administrative expenses
of RMB45.8 million, representing a decrease of RMB9.7 million as
compared with that of 2018, mainly due to the decrease in professional
service fee of RMB7.2 million during the Reporting Period.

Other expenses

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded other expenses
of RMB7.2 million, representing a decrease of RMB113.9 million as
compared with that of 2018, mainly due to a decrease in write-off of
inventories by RMB117.8 million in the Reporting Period as compared with
that of 2018, where there was a write-off of inventories of RMB117.9
million in 2018.

2019 F# EMABEEERARAR
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Finance costs

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded finance costs of
RMB20.0 million, representing a decrease of RMB14.8 million as
compared with that of 2018, which included (i) the decrease in the bond
interest expense of RMB6.2 million; (i) the decrease in interest expenses
on bank loans and other borrowings of RMB8.0 million; and (iii) the
decrease in the interest on discounted bills receivable of RMBO0.6 million.

Income tax expense

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded income tax expenses of
RMB19.4 million as the operation was profitable, which was increased by
RMB10.8 million as compared to that of 2018.

Profit for the Reporting Period

As a result of the foregoing, the Group recorded the net profit of
RMB22.9 million, while in 2018 the Group recorded a net loss of
RMB280.6 million.

Inventories

Inventory balances amounted to RMB251.0 million as of 31 December
2019 (31 December 2018: RMB214.8 million), representing an increase
of RMB36.2 million as compared with the year-end balance of 2018.
The main reason for such increase was because the Group enhanced the
marketing and promotion of its products during the Reporting Period,
which led to an increase in the inventory balance of Human Albumin
Solution of RMB9.8 million, and the increase in the inventory balance of
antibiotics and other products of RMB26.4 million.

Due to the recovery of the sales volume during the Reporting Period, the
Group's average inventory turnover days decreased by 37.7 days from
126.2 days in 2018 to 88.5 days for the Reporting Period.

B A AR

HREHA - NEBESRBYBKAARK20.08ET
2018 F MO AREI148EE T HP(EHFFEX
R ARE2EHETT ¢ (NR1TE R R EH A& FF)
BT BREBDARESOEE T » MKiii)BhIR B =
BRERIOARBOEETT

FriSFipx

REHA  AEESSHIEHRAIAARKI04EE
T RA RS EEE RN BFRAEE - ABEER 20186 AT
BRATEINT ARKI08EHETT °

WEHARER
AR REA - ANEESSAFARE295ET -
M2018F SIS BB F AR 2806 HETT ©

FE

HE2019F12A310 » FEHRBEAARKE251.088
L(2018F12A31H : ARM214.88ET) © £2018
FRFEABRBIEMARE36 28T - BINNEE
RREREHANREBMMAT ERNEESHENE -
FR/AMNBERFTFREFHBIZMARKISESE
TL o U RIAE R R HEHMEREFARTEIEINARKE26.4
BET -

AREREHANEEAMEA  AEERREHA
HFHEFEEREREAE83.5K @ 82018FM126.2K
FA37.7K o
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Trade and bills receivables

The balance of trade receivables amounted to RMB26.0 million as of
31 December 2019 (31 December 2018: RMB22.8 million). The main
reason for the increase of RMB3.2 million as compared with the year-end
balance of 2018 was because the Group provided certain distributors and
commercial pharmaceutical delivery companies with credit terms ranging
from 0 to 360 days based on the sales conditions on the market to
improve the sales performance of the products, which led to an increase
in the balance of trade receivables.

The outstanding bills receivable as at 31 December 2019 is RMB4.7 million
(31 December 2018: RMB3.4 million).

Deposit, prepayments, other receivables and other assets
As at 31 December 2019, the current portion of prepayments, other
receivables and other assets amounted to RMB46.1 million (31 December
2018: RMB64.8 million), representing a decrease of RMB18.7 million as
compared with the year-end balance of 2018, which was mainly because
(i) the prepayment in relation to purchase of inventories declined by
RMB20.1 million; and (ii) deposit in relation to purchase of inventory
decreased by RMB11.4 million.

Trade payables

As at 31 December 2019, trade payables amounted to RMB146.2 million
(31 December 2018: RMB106.9 million), representing an increase of
RMB39.3 million as compared with the year-end balance of 2018, among
which payables for the purchase of Human Albumin Solution increased by
RMB39.3 million.

Other payables and accruals

As at 31 December 2019, other payables amounted to RMB333.7 million
(31 December 2018: RMB205.5 million), representing an increase of
RMB128.2 million as compared with the year-end balance of 2018. On
the one hand, the Group has payables to four independent third parties
of RMB280.1 million, which represents an increase of RMB135.9 million
as compared with the year-end balance of 2018. On the other hand,
payables in relation to tax other than income tax decreased by RMB5.9
million, and deposits received from distributors decreased by RMB11.1
million.
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Borrowings
As of 31 December 2019, the Group has borrowings of RMB187.5 million
in total, which are repayable within one year, with details set out below:

(R
HZE2019F12A318 ' AEENERETAARE
187,588t AR —FREE  FBFIROT

2019 2018

20194 20184

RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARBT T AREFIT

(Audited) (Audited)

(RER) (ER)

Interest-bearing bank loans FTBIRITER 47,484 5,000
Interest-bearing other loan STEHEMER 140,000 140,000
Total &5t 187,484 145,000

The interest-bearing other loan referred to above relates to a loan
agreement entered into on 23 April 2018 (as supplemented by a
supplemental agreement dated 27 March 2019) (collectively, the “Loan
Agreement”) among the Company as the borrower, Mr. Gui Guoping
("Mr. Gui”) as the lender, Risun Investment Limited (“Risun”) as the
chargor and Mr. Huang Xiangbin (&%£#), the chairman, executive
Director, Chief Executive Officer (“CEO") and one of the controlling
shareholders of the Company (“Mr. Huang”), as the guarantor for a
loan of RMB140.0 million (the “Loan”) with an interest rate of 13.2%
per annum. The Company has arranged for the repayment of the Loan
together with relevant interest amounts under the Loan Agreement on
3 January 2020. In such connection, Mr. Gui agreed to the release of
the 1,049,990,000 Shares charged and placed in a custodian account
pursuant to the Loan Agreement and the guarantee provided by Mr.
Huang in connection with the Loan. For more details, please refer to the
Company’s announcements dated 23 April 2018, 27 March 2019, 9 April
2019 and 3 January 2020.

FiliEt B BRI BB R B (ERERA) « HEH
FRAE(ELEED (EBEFA) * Risun Investment
Limited ([Risunl) ({EARZA) RARABERE « 8117
BE  THAR(THEE D FREF —BERKRES
WAL ELRE]D FERAERA)N2018F4 A23H
AV HE R (R B EA2019F3 827 HAHE 7/
HER)([BERpE]D - BRARB14008 8 T(5
IER]) » FRE13.2% - RAF D 202091 A3
ALHEEERBEE TNERLBBANE SR - 3t
ItimE - EEERBRRBEREER MR RIFA
L& BR £ /#91,049,990,000 % f% 17 + M= £ E K
REMERIVERR - BEAEZE  B2H4ARA
HE§A2018F4 5238 ~ 20193 5278 ~ 201944
HA9H K&2020F 1 B3RMAE ©
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Gearing ratio

At the end of the Reporting Period, the Group’s gearing ratio was

calculated as follows:

=N o s
R|ERR - NEBOBELRFAEDT ¢

2019 2018

20194 20184

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARBFIT

(Audited) (Audited)

(IRERZ) (&%)

Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings FTEIRITREMER 187,484 145,000
Trade payables B 5 IEN I 146,158 106,901
Other payables and accruals H b fETRIB R FERT IR 333,726 205,525
Lease liabilities HEAE 1,176 -
Tax payables FERBIR 11,361 1,943
Less: Cash and cash equivalents BB RESEEY (219,755) (80,330)
Less: Pledged bank balances R BEAIRITAEER (5,001) (13)
Net debt@ BEFEe 455,149 379,026
Equity o 45,638 22,723
Equity and net debt® EmhBEFE 500,787 401,749
Gearing ratio®@ BELL KRG 90.9% 94.3%

2019 3 EIRIERBEZERER AT
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Liquidity and capital resources

RBEEREARKIR

The following table sets out a condensed summary of the Group’s T HAAEBERBEHANGERSTERERTH
consolidated statement of cash flows during the Reporting Period: E:
2019 2018
20195 20184
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥TF T ARETFTT
Net cash generated from operating activities EE TSR &R 5 116,159 255,892
Net cash used in investing activities REFBMARLFE (2,545) (1,630)
Net cash generated from/(used in) financing activities EY&;EZEFTE,(FT)IRE F4E 30,736 (249,599)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents Be RRESEMLINFE 144,350 4,663
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net ONFEFE RSB E - (B 63 29
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year  F¥E & MBS HEY 80,343 75,651
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year FRBe MREEEY 224,756 80,343

1) Net cash generated from operating activities
During the Reporting Period, the Group’s net cash inflow generated from
operating activities amounted to approximately RMB116.2 million (2018:
RMB255.9 million), which was mainly due to the increase in cash from sales
during the Reporting Period, and the decrease in cash used in payment for
goods, import taxes and charges as compared with prior year.

2)  Net cash used in investing activities
The Group did not incur significant capital expenditure during the Reporting
Period, and net cash outflow from investing activities amounted to RMB2.5
million (2018: RMB1.6 million).

3) Net cash generated from/(used in) financing activities
During the Reporting Period, the Group’s net cash inflow from financing
activities amounted to approximately RMB30.7 million (2018: net cash
outflow of RMB249.6 million).

4)  The following table sets out the Group’s cash and cash equivalents at the end
of the Reporting Period:

1) KEEBERSFE
AEEBREHALETHMEREFRANARE
116.2B8t(20184 : ARM255.98 8 T) * WhE
THAREHNEENBRSEN - R FHNER
UR#EOREMAREREFHDK -

2) RETHMARESFHE
AAEENHERNBENEAFS - REEHEL
ReFRH R ARE25887T(2018F : AR%1.68

&) .

3)  ®EFEAE(FR)RSFE
AEEBRBREHAREZTDEERSFRANABAR
#3078 EL(2018F  WeFREAARKE24968

&) e

4)  TREINAREENRERRNES MRS FEY

2019 2018

20195 20184

RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR®T R ARETT

Denominated in RMB AARKEE 211,624 25,849
Denominated in US$ AZETTEHE 12,770 53,490
Denominated in HK$ LA TTEHE 301 937
Denominated in Singapore dollars LA D03 e atE 61 67
224,756 80,343
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Treasury policies

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management approach
towards its treasury policies. Substantial amounts of the Group’s cash and
cash equivalent are held in major financial institutions located in Mainland
China. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables and the senior management of the Company reviews and
assesses the creditworthiness of the Group’s existing customers on an
ongoing basis. To manage liquidity risk, the Group monitors its exposure
to a shortage of funds by considering the maturity of both its financial
liabilities and financial assets and projected cash flows from operations.
Cash and cash equivalents of the Group are mainly denominated in RMB.

Foreign currency risk
Most of the Group’s assets and liabilities are denominated in RMB, except
for certain items below:

o Certain bank balances are denominated in US$, HK$ and Singapore
dollars; and

o Purchase of products from overseas suppliers and relevant trade
payables are denominated in US$.

Future Plans for Material Investments and Capital Assets
As at 31 December 2019, the Group had capital commitments of
RMB83,008,000 (2018: RMB 83,719,000) for construction of a
warehouse.

Capital expenditure
The following table sets out the Group’s capital expenditure for the
periods indicated:

BER R

AEBERTEFRBR LRNBENP T EERE -
AEBRRBNRE KRS EEMIFRNTEAM
B REE - AEEBOIRE mAR R H YR
BRG]  BEAR RS RERBRERN KT
EAKBERAELPNEER - AEERDEZRR - &
SEFEBZEETHBEREREENSIHRANIEN
RERGRETESHRER - AEENRE MRS
SEVEEAARBEHE -

HMNE R\ B
AEEABIEERBBEAAREE  ETHET
BEE BRI

o ETIRITHEIRIARIT  BILRHINBITIHE - &

o EESMUEEBEER RIS SRR
it -

RAREAREREREETE
201912 831H » AEERERR EHEEEARK
AAR83,008,0007T (20184 : A KR%83,719,000
JL) °

BRI
TREF A EER A RABNERFL -

2019 2018

20195 2018%F

RMB'000 RMB’000

AR¥T AREBTT

(Audited) (Audited)

(RER) (BE%)

Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEYWE BB REE 555 1,412
555 1,412

2019 F# EMABEEERARAR
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Contingent liabilities
The Group had no material contingent liabilities as of 31 December 2019.

Pledge of assets
As of 31 December 2019, the carrying amounts of the Group’s pledged
assets were set out as follows:

ZAREE
HZE2019F12A31H

R

C AEEBEEAERSARE

BEEIKH
#HZE2019F12A31H
YT -

CAEEEEREENREE

31 December 31 December

2019 2018
20195 20184
12A31H 12H31H
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBT ARETFTT
(Audited) (Audited)
(RREX) (&%)
For obtaining bank and other borrowings FARNESRITREMER
- Buildings —gF 72,755 -
— Inventories —FE 224,686 147,516
For issuance of letters of credit and billings R ERE A ES
- Bank balances —R1THE R 5,001 13

Dividend
The Directors resolved not to declare any final dividend for the Reporting
Period (2018: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

With extensive experience in the distribution of pharmaceutical imports,
the Group provides comprehensive MPCM services for small and medium
sized overseas pharmaceutical manufacturers. Meanwhile, the Group
is the only MPCM services provider for imported blood products in the
PRC, leveraging our quality product portfolio that focuses on blood
products and nationwide marketing and promotion network. The Group’s
existing product portfolio encompasses many quality products produced
by small- and medium-sized overseas pharmaceutical manufacturers,
covering multiple therapeutic areas such as anti-infective drugs, and blood
products. Included in such products are blood products (which are in short
supply in the Chinese market) and prescription drugs which can meet the
high demand for high-quality drugs with excellent clinical results among
medical institutions and patients.

iz 2
ErgrEfemE EIREFARBHKS (2018
FE) -

e

AEEHREEOBEDHNEELR - /EIH/NE
ERRMRe 2  HERREEERY - A - K
SEBHEANARMAZONBEERESTNEED
o B B B I HE R ARAR - R B O R B M — A
BiH - HEMRBEERGHER - AEBEREEMR
He kb T/ AREREENEEERM - KE
MBAEYMMBRMEZ EEERE - RSERET
BREETETS EHRAEROMEERR - TEEAR
REERE BEHRBARREYL REERME
)R RUFR KAV R 0 B ©
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Core Products

Human Albumin Solution

Dating back to the early 1940s, blood products have undergone
decades of fast development. Such products have grown from
Human Albumin at the very beginning to the current 20-plus
categories in three series, encompassing such sub-categories as
Human Albumin, immune globulin and blood coagulation factors.
Given the approval granted to new indications and an improved rate
of diagnosis, the Plasma Protein Therapeutics Association (PPTA)
predicts that the market demand for blood products will retain a
high-speed growth around the globe. In these two years, as many
new plasma collection stations have been put into service, the
amount of plasma collection increases every year and production
capacity of domestic manufacturers also increased rapidly. As the
largest sales category in the market of blood products in the PRC,
Human Albumin is the only kind of blood product allowed to be
imported at the present, and its lot release of imported and domestic
categories maintains a rapid growth every year. In 2019, the annual
batch release amounted to 53.4 million vials (2018: 46.3 million
vials), among which the percentages of imported and domestic
categories were 60.3% and 39.7% respectively. Manufactured by
Octapharma, a global leading manufacturer of blood products, and
included as a Category B product in the National Reimbursement
Drug List (NRDL), the Human Albumin Solution operated by the
Group is used to remedy the shock caused by hypovolemia, remove
edema and poisonous substances, and treat neonatal hyper-
bilirubinemia. Based on the batch release of the Human Albumin
Solution in the PRC in 2019, the market share of the Human
Albumin Solution manufactured by Octapharma was approximately
7.8%.

In early beginning of 2020, the COVID-19 outbreak occurred in
many countries and regions, including China. Global pandemic has
resulted in a large number of the critically ill patients. Given there
is no specific medicine against the virus, human albumin plays a
very important role in the rescue of critically ill patients. For patients
with acute respiratory distress syndrome (ARDS) and/or septic shock,
human albumin is an indispensable drug. The use of human albumin
is also recommended in the “clinical management of severe acute
respiratory infection when novel coronavirus infection is suspected”
published by the World Health Organization (WHO).

2019 F# EMABEEERARAR
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NEE=PET Ty
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As one of the main suppliers of human albumin products in China,
the Group has quickly organized manpower and deployed inventory
after the outbreak to send albumin products to various regions in
need of medicine, including Wuhan. The epidemic is expected to
stimulate human albumin demand in the short term and increase
product sales.

Axetine (Cefuroxime Sodium for injection)

Manufactured by Medochemie Ltd. from Cyprus, the Axetine
operated by the Group is classified as the second generation of
cephalosporin antibiotics. It is used to remedy bacterial infections
caused by sensitive bacteria, including respiratory infection, urinary
tract infection, and skin and soft tissue infections. The product has
been included in the National Catalogue of Essential Pharmaceuticals
and the Category A products of NRDL.

Since early 2012, China has implemented the “Administrative
Measures for the Clinical Application of Antibacterial Drugs”, which
was known as the “most restrictive measure for antibiotics”. With
the country’s special rectification of the antibiotic market, China’s
antibiotic market has changed from its original rapid growth to a
steady growth in recent years. At present, approximately 75% of
outpatient cases in China involve the use antibiotics, while the rate
for use in surgical operations is higher than 95%, indicating that
the domestic market demand for antibiotics is still much higher than
international levels.

The sales volume of Axetine products in 2019 sold by the Group
is similar to that of 2018. Affected by the re-registration of the
Imported Drug License, the product supply in the first half of 2020
may be lower than the corresponding period of last year. We
expect the sales of Axetine for the whole year to be the same as last
year. Also, following the completion of the re-registration process
for Medocef in last year, sales volume has increased significantly
compared to 2018, and the sales volume of 2020 is expected to be
similar to 2019.

Medocef (Cefoperazone Sodium for injection)

Also manufactured by Medochemie Ltd. and operated by the Group,
Medocef is classified as the third generation of cephalosporin
antibiotics. The product is used to remedy bacterial infections caused
by sensitive lactamase, including respiratory infection, urinary tract
infection, biliary tract infection, abdominal infection, skin and soft
tissue infections, pelvic infection and septicemia. The product is also
effective in treating the brain infections caused by influenza and
mMeningococcus.

EAANAEAEREHENEEHER —
REEEEEREETLRABA S - BEE
% BEEAESBEEEREEANSEST
AR - TR R RS A M
HEATS  EEERNE -
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BRA - NENMETABRAS  ZEMBAANE
REARFEY B - BXEREFFERE -
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Marketing Network Development

The Group provides its marketing service through its internal teams
and their cooperation with third-party promoters. Hence, one of
the Group’s key development strategies is to continuously expand
the marketing network and enhance distributor and promotor
management. During the Reporting Period, the Group took “Flexible,
Professional and Efficient” as its objective, and strove to develop
its marketing team in respect of the ability of quickly responding
to market environment changes and executing operational plans
with high efficiency. Furthermore, the Group sorted out its human
resources in each division. The marketing team had its structure
streamlined and its performance management further refined, with
optimized allocation of sales resources that are invested in each
product and higher efficiency of business operation.

At the same time, the implementation of “Two-Invoice System” took
place at a faster pace in each province. To positively respond to such
implementation, the existing structure of distributor network was
comprehensively sorted out. Based on sufficient communication with
its distributors, the Group has further extended its sales channels
to end markets through the collaboration between its internal sales
team and local distributors. Originally, promoters were allocated by
region. Now, the promoters are matched with each hospital of the
region concerned, which enables the Group’s sales network to reach
the end market. Besides, the coverage of the network has also been
extended from large top Class-Ill hospitals to provincial, municipal
and county hospitals, to keep improving market penetration, thereby
establishing a precision management system that each hospital will
have its respective promoters.

In addition, the Group has further improved the direct participation
of its internal marketing team in product marketing activities.
In this regard, approaches include regularly training third-party
promoters on product knowledge, hosting or taking part in medical
or pharmaceutical conferences, symposiums and product seminars
to directly partake in the academic promotion activities of products,
and extend the opinion leadership network for the main therapeutic
areas of products. All the approaches serve to ensure accurate and
timely delivery of product information to doctors. In addition to
product promotion, the Group has taken the initiative to invite third
party promoters from across the country to discuss and interpret the
major impact of national policies, to increase the added value and
attraction of the Group’s training.
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Cold Chain Storage Facility

Considering the future demand for business expansion and the
significant demand for pharmaceutical cold chains in the storage
and delivery of blood products and bio-products, the Group has
constructed a cold chain storage facility in Shuangliu District,
Chengdu, Sichuan Province. The Group has completed the first
phase of its cold chain storage facility (15,000 square meters), which
can satisfy the Group’s storage demand and provide better control
for the quality and safety of the blood products in our product
portfolio. Additionally, we will be able to provide third parties
with high quality pharmaceutical cold-chain storage services upon
completing the second-phase construction, which will be a new
business unit of the Group. Currently, the Group has applied to
Shuangliu District Government for land transfer, with its procedures
well under way.

Save as mentioned above, the Group did not hold any material
investments, and there was no material acquisition or disposal of its
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures during the Reporting Period.

Research and Development

The Group has entered into a collaboration agreement with the
China Academy of Chinese Medical Sciences to develop “Sinco
I”, a new realgar-based chemical medicine for treating acute
promyelocytic leukemia. The collaboration aims for the upstream
extension of the Group’s business and the future provision of a
new medicine for patients in the therapeutic area. The Group is
currently making efforts in designing and building a pilot plant for
pilot experiments. During the Reporting Period, the Group incurred
RMB1.6 million as the research and development expenses for
developing Sinco I.
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FUTURE AND OUTLOOK

In 2019, the domestic and global macro-economic environment still
remained in uncertainty. Under the top-level strategy for a “Healthy
China”, the Chinese pharmaceutical and healthcare reform will enter a
crucial year that features full implementation of multiple medical-reform
policies, optimization of industrial structures, upgrade of technologies and
facilities, and more support for international development. Meanwhile,
there will be greater disparity in corporate and product landscape,
together with faster industrial integration, presenting both opportunities
and challenges. Factors, such as an aging population, greater health
awareness, changes to disease spectrum and the application of new
technologies, will generate long-term rigid demand to support the
development of the Chinese pharmaceutical industry. As an important
sector in China relating to people’s livelihood, the pharmaceutical and
healthcare industry still enjoys a strong growth momentum and huge rigid
demand.

After the pile-up of channel inventory in 2017 and the gradual inventory
reduction in 2018, the year of 2019 witnessed a turning point for the
blood products industry, with Human Albumin as the leading product
to usher in a year of recovery. It is mainly because the demand after the
Two-Invoice System’s implementation has not disappeared while the
channel access has changed, with sales channels becoming more flat,
manufacturers and end customers cooperating more closely, and more
investment being made in academic marketing and brand promotion.
Manufacturers’ business concept is gradually shifting from price-oriented
to brand-oriented. The Group will continue with its corporate development
strategies in optimizing the marketing network and the product portfolio,
and maintaining the business of blood products and antibiotics as a core
therapeutic area. By concentrating its advantageous resources, the Group
spares no effort in reaching a speedy completion of the adjustment on
sales pattern under the new policies for stabilizing its business. In respect
of expanding its marketing network, the Group will strengthen the
control over its sales team, improve its incentive mechanism, continuously
promote presence in the downstream of marketing network channels,
and extend it to the end market by establishing multi-mode cooperation
with hospitals and pharmacies, all in a bid to contribute higher profit
to the Group, develop core marketing capabilities and build a quality
terminal promotion network to accommodate more products.

Apart from the above, the Group will continue to enhance the
development of its internal control system and risk management, pay
much attention to and fulfill its corporate social responsibilities throughout
the Group'’s governance. The Group will offer its staff a great platform for
career development, and keep working to create a greater value for the
Shareholders.
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Management Discussion and Analysis &2 B 558 & 247

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As of 31 December 2019, the Group had a total of 107 employees.
For the Reporting Period, the total staff costs of the Group were
RMB12.5 million (2018: RMB13.8 million).

The Group’s employee remuneration policy is determined by taking into
accounts factors such as remuneration in respect of the local market, the
overall remuneration standard in the industry, the inflation level, corporate
operating efficiency and employee performance. The Group conducts
performance appraisals once every year for its employees, the results of
which are applied in annual salary reviews and promotional assessments.
The Group's employees are considered for annual bonuses according
to certain performance criteria and appraisals results. Social insurance
contributions are made by the Group for its PRC employees in accordance
with the relevant PRC regulations.

The Group also provides continuous learning and training programs to its
employees to enhance their skills and knowledge, so as to maintain their
competitiveness and improve customer service quality. The Group did
not experience any major difficulties in recruitment, nor did it experience
any material loss in manpower or suffer from any material labor dispute
during the Reporting Period.

In addition, the Group adopted a share option scheme to recognize the
contribution by certain employees of the Group, and to provide them
with incentives in order to retain them for their continuing support in the
operation and development of the Group. As at 31 December 2019, there
were 15,650,000 outstanding share options granted under the share
option scheme.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The principal risks and uncertainties identified by the Group which may
have material and adverse impact on our performance or operation are
summarized below. There may be other principal risks and uncertainties
in addition to those set out below which are not known to the Group or
which may not be material now but could turn out to be material in the
future.

o Failure to maintain relationships with existing suppliers — The Group
currently sources all the products in portfolio from limited suppliers,
either directly or indirectly through their sales agents.

o Exchange rate fluctuation — The Group’s purchase of products from
the overseas suppliers is denominated in US$, and certain items
of bank balances, other receivables, payables and accruals are
denominated in US$ and HK$.

° Decrease in gross profits due to increase in cost and competition.

o Experience prolonged delays or significant disruptions to the supply
of the products.
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The Group believes that risk management is essential to the Group’s
efficient and effective operation. The Company’s management assists the
Board in evaluating material risk exposure existing in the Group's business,
and participates in formulating appropriate risk management and internal
control measures, and to ensure such measures are properly implemented
in daily operational management.

RELATIONSHIP WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

Human resources is one of the most important assets of the Group. The
Group strives to motivate its employees by providing them with a clear
career path as well as comprehensive and professional training courses. In
addition, the Group also offers competitive remuneration packages to its
employees, including basic salary, certain benefits and other performance
based incentives.

The Group purchases imported pharmaceutical products from overseas
suppliers, either directly or indirectly through their sales agents, and
generate revenue by on-selling them to hospitals and pharmacies through
distributors and deliverers. Our suppliers or their sales agents have
granted us the rights to market, promote and manage sales channels
for their products in China. The Group maintains a stable and long-term
relationship with its suppliers by providing them access to the growing
Chinese market with steady sales growth.

The Group sells pharmaceutical products to distributors, who on-sell
the products to hospitals and pharmacies either directly or indirectly
through their sub-distributors. The Group maintains stable and long-term
relationship with its distributors by providing them guidance, training
and support to carry out more targeted field marketing and promotion
activities.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group is primarily engaged in MPCM for imported pharmaceutical
products, a line of business that does not have material impact on the
environment. The key environmental impact from the Group’s operation
is related to electricity, water and paper consumption. The Group is fully
aware of the importance of sustainable environmental development, and
has implemented the following measures to encourage environmental
protection and energy conservation:

o Promoting paperless office
o Encouraging low-carbon commuting
e Ensuring reasonable energy consumption

During the Reporting Period, we did not incur any material cost of
compliance with relevant environmental laws and regulations.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group's business and operations are subject to related laws and
regulations of the Cayman Islands, the British Virgin Islands, Hong Kong
and the PRC. During the Reporting Period, we have complied with all
related laws and regulations of the Cayman Islands, the British Virgin
Islands, Hong Kong and the PRC, which would have significant impact on
the Group.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIB - HERERWSE

Basis of Preparation

The ESG report (the “Report”) is prepared in accordance with the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the “ESG
Guide”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong (the “HKEx") as
set out in Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules and complies with the
reporting principle of ‘comply or explain’ and compilation in relation
to key performance indicators (“KPIs”) in the environmental area
under the ESG Guide.

The data and information cited in the Report are referenced from
the archived questionnaires, records, statistics and research of the
Company. The Report covers an information period that spans from
1 January 2019 to 31 December 2019, exactly the financial year
covered by the 2019 annual report of the Company.

The Report encompasses the information of the Company and all its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”).

Contact
Should you have any query or feedback on the Report, please
contact us via the following methods:

a. Address: E5-1805, Global Center, 1700 Tianfu Avenue North,
Hi-tech Industrial Development Zone, Chengdu City, Sichuan
Province, PRC

b.  Tel: +86 28 62912988

c.  Fax: +86 28 62912922

d.  Email: sinco-pharm@sinco-pharm.com

e.  Official website: http://www.sinco-pharm.com

Overview

With extensive experience in the distribution of pharmaceutical
imports, the Group provides comprehensive MPCM services for
small- and medium-sized overseas pharmaceutical manufacturers.
Meanwhile, the Group, leveraging its quality product portfolio
that centers on blood products and nationwide marketing and
promotion network, is the only MPCM service provider for
imported blood products in the PRC. Currently, the Group's existing
product portfolio includes blood products, antibiotics, and other
pharmaceutical imports that enjoy high-speed growth or have a
sizable market.
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Constant in pursuing excellence of product quality and
pharmaceutical technology services, the Group aspires to become a
top partner for overseas pharmaceutical businesses who intends to
enter the Chinese pharmaceutical market. Sticking to its core values
‘Simplicity, Innovation, National, Collaboration and Openness’,
the Group wishes to deliver good corporate governance and fulfill
its environmental and social responsibilities, to realize sustainable
development and safeguard the investors, staff, suppliers,
distributors, governments, communities, financial institutions and
other stakeholders.

Stakeholder Identification and Communications
The Group will continue to maintain close contact and
communications with the stakeholders, and receives valuable
opinion from them each year. In order to decide the content and
direction of this annual report, we referred to the analysis results of
material concern raised by the stakeholders last year and the relevant
response.

Significant Subjects for Stakeholders and Response
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Type of Stakeholders

EEARR FEEBELA

Means of Communication

Response and Feedback

R PEER ER

Continuous, stable investment
returns

Shareholders/Investors

Timely information disclosure

Annual reports, interim reports and
announcements
General meetings

Publishing AGM notices and
resolutions according to
requlations

Corporate operation in
compliance with laws and

Roadshows/telephone conferences/
meet-and-greets

Timely disclosing corporate
information

regulations Media communication mechanism Publishing disclosure
Press conferences announcements and regular
Opinion monitoring reports according
Consultation via telephone/email/website  to regulations
Investor visits Responding to investor's email/
telephone inquiries and receive
Investor's visiting
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Type of Stakeholders Focus Means of Communication Response and Feedback
s AER REEH TEBEAN RS R 8
Staff Training and career Direct communication Providing a healthy and safe
development Performance appraisal working environment
Remuneration and benefits Medical checkups Establishing a fair mechanism
Health and safety Training programmes for promotion
Staff opinion surveys Organizing staff activities
Safety management
8T B RBEER BEEER REEE 22N TERE
FrofEaiER BRER B AT E TS
feREZ 2 Biw BB TEE
HllARIE
BIBR#L
ZEER
Suppliers Standard supplier management  Execution of orders/contracts Performing contracts as agreed
and purchase process Direct communication Maintaining long-term
Timely performance of contracts ~ Supplier management system collaboration suppliers
Corporate reputation Supplier archives Timely payment
Ensuring pharmaceutical quality
and safety
Keeping complete supplier archives
e HBEOHENEELRERE  FTE/ARNT BOETAR
RERITERAE HEER RESHERRERAGE
TEEE HEREIRHIE R
HIERIER BREREELD
RETHNHERRSR
Distributors/ A robust process of customer Daily communication Enhancing quality management
Deliverers/ service Aftersales service Performing contracts as agreed
Promoters A complete mechanism of Customer satisfaction surveys Providing distributors with
information communication Customer archives pharmaceutical knowledge
A stable and safe supply of Visits to distributors training and marketing support
pharmaceutical products Sufficient communication
Timely response to requests
wiHm, BXm R EE P RBRE REER Inees S E R
HEERBE TEERE B 1R BABITER
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Type of Stakeholders Focus Means of Communication Response and Feedback
R AER BIEH TEBEAN = FEEE [ £8
Governments/ Corporate operation in Government visits Strict complying with laws
Communities compliance with laws Participation in government and regulations
and regulations meetings and regular visits Enhancing safety management
Contributing to community Government projects Actively assuming social
development Community service responsibility
R/ & EHRNBRES B 2#EEE BB ERER
BERHRER SERFNe®  THED MR % 2 EIE
BATEE EERARTSRE
M IE RS
Financial Institutions Good corporate credit, Financial reports and Timely repayment of loans
and stable capability of announcements Maintaining good working
loan repayment Visits relationship
Stable corporate development Direct communication
SRS RIFBERER - BEH IBHRERRE REERER
EEEN 2ERE RERFAEEBRR
RENEEER HEER
6. Social 6. HE

To perform social responsibility, the Group always attaches great
importance to the details of staff, product management and
community benefit at work to provide a fair and equitable treatment
to the related stakeholders of the Group and deeply believes that
this management direction is a long-term investment for the Group.

a.

Employment

The Group has been aware of a number of laws and
regulations on the protection of the labor force established
by the People’s Republic of China and have strictly complied
with their requirements to carry out all of the relevant laws
and regulations when employing staff members. The relevant
laws and regulations include: PRC Labor Law, Employment
Promotion Law, Labor Contract Law, Tentative Provisions on
Salary Payment, Regulations on the Management of Housing
Provident Fund, Labor Dispute Mediation and Arbitration Law,
Regulation on Work-related Injury Insurances and local labor
laws and regulations. The Group also ensures the entitlement
to all statutory social insurance and statutory holidays of its
staff members. Furthermore, to provide staff members with
better welfare, the Group has formulated Remuneration
Management System, Staff Fund Management System, and
Staff Reward and Punishment Provisions, and also provides
staff members with allowances for transport and lunch,
staff activities and group tours, with an aim at achieving fair
treatment for all staff members of the Group. In addition to the
said welfare, the Group also attaches great importance to raise
intrinsic value of the staff. Therefore, the Group provides staff
members at all levels with targeted development and incentive
schemes, and clear and fair promotion opportunities through
performance appraisal according to the Group’s Performance
Management System.
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Employment Indicators

EfEEE
Staff by Gender Staff by Age
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During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded a staff outflow of 44, representing a turnover rate* of 29.1%.

RRERR - REEBEBAB44A  REE*E29.1%

Departed Staff by Gender Departed Staff by Age
BEEL B TMHRID M BRI E T FiREN M
Number of Staff Number of Staff
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* Turnover rate = Number of staff departed during the Reporting Period/(Headcount at the end of the Reporting Period + Number of staff
departed during the Reporting Period)
*ORARE = REHARBE TAB REPRAR + REHAMME TR
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The Group recruits employees in accordance with the law.
It signs, modifies and terminates employment contracts
with the employees in accordance with national laws and
regulations and other relevant internal requirements of the
Company. An employment relationship shall not take effect
until the employment contract is agreed and signed by
both the Company and the relevant employee voluntarily.
To ensure all employees are legally employed, the human
resources management department of the Group ensures
that all employees have reached the age of 18 or above by
checking their valid identity cards. The employment contract
clearly requires that all personal information provided by an
applicant must be authentic and reliable. If fraud is found,
the Group can terminate its employment relationship with its
employees in accordance with the rules and regulations of the
Company. In addition, the Group clearly defines and explains
the paid holidays, working hours and attendance system to its
employees. Employees’ working hours and vacation policies
are determined based on the detailed implementation rules
of attendance management and local employment laws.
Employees who work overtime during non-office hours can
receive appropriate overtime pay or leave in lieu in accordance
with the relevant labour regulations. During the Reporting
Period, the Group have strictly implemented measures
including, but not limited to, the above measures to eliminate
child labour and mitigate related legal risks.

Based on the premise of strict compliance with relevant
national and local laws and regulations, the Group complied
the Sinco Employee Management Manual for all employees,
covering recruitment, KPIs, employee relations, salaries and
benefits, etc., so as to provide guidance to all employees and
enhance their sense of responsibility and belonging.

In addition to the existing staff policies, the Group’s strict
recruitment system that can ensure it enjoys comprehensive
human resources allocation. The Group has always been
recruiting talents externally and keeping contact with
recruitment agencies, universities and colleges to attract
potential talents to join the Group. It has set up a "“Staff
Referral Award” to encourage its staff members to recommend
capable talents to join the Group.
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Moreover, the Group ensures all the job applicants and staff
enjoy equal opportunities for employment, with zero tolerance
of any discrimination over gender, age, ethnicity, nationality
and disability. As at 31 December 2019, the Group had a
staff of 107 in total (51% being male staff and 49% being
female staff). During the Reporting Period, no employment
discrimination has occurred within the Group.

Health and Safety

Staff health and safety are also areas that the Group attaches
great importance to. The Group, at all times, strictly complies
with all requirements of relevant regulations, including the
PRC Labor Law, Fire Prevention Law, Occupational Health and
Safety Management System, Special Regulation on the Labor
Protection of Female Staff, Measures for the Ascertainment
of Work-related Injuries, and the Regulation on Work-related
Injury Insurances.

The Group strives to offer its staff a safe work environment
and minimize all potential risks on health and safety. We
conduct ongoing risk assessment and inspection on work
environment with certain high-risk to mitigate the risks. During
the Reporting Period, the Group implemented a series of health
management measures, so that its staff members can work in
a safe environment free of occupational hazards:

Staff medical examination

Fire Drills

Regular maintenance of electrical equipment

Traffic safety study for drivers

During the Reporting Period, the Group incurred no work-
related fatalities among its staff; nor did any staff lose any
work days due to work-related injuries.
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C.

Development and Training

Improving the quality and techniques of staff members is a
momentum for the Group’s development. To ensure effective
implementation of staff training schemes, the Group has
formulated Management Measures for Staff Training, which
expressly set out an integrated system and implementation
process that encompass induction, internal training and
external training:

I. Induction
New recruits are introduced to the general knowledge
of the Group, such as corporate culture, product
knowledge, basic internal control system and process, the
work process of the department concerned, and details
of the work position.

ii. — Internal Training

Based on the actual demands at work, the Group applies
its internal training resources to the communications on
professional knowledge and skills, to share experience.
Such training takes place in the following forms: self-
learning with shared training materials on the Group's
online work platform, and discussions at regular
departmental meetings, communication sessions for
business teams and inter-departmental sharing sessions.

iii. — External Training
The Group encourages its staff members to improve their
professional techniques and, given their efficient work
arrangement, attend training and policy seminars hosted
by external institutions.

In order to share and inherit the Group’s knowledge and
experience with internal staff members, the Group has
formulated its “Internal Lecturer Management Measures”
to enhance the efficiency and effectiveness of training. At
the beginning of each year, human resources department
formulates annual training scheme according to feedback
from the previous year, the Group’s strategic planning and
the actual demand of each department, and prepares training
curricular and course content on a quarterly basis.
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Training-related Indicators
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Staff Training Ratio by Gender
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d. Labor Standards

The Group's policies on staff recruitment and treatment are in
strict compliance with relevant national and local regulations,
including the PRC Labor Law, Law on the Protection of Minors,
and Provisions on the Prohibition of Using Child Labor. The
Staff Manual of the Group clearly states that child labor shall
not be allowed. Relevant departments also regularly monitor
employment-related information and data, to ensure there is
no child labor or forced labor.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not discover any use
of child labor or forced labor.
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Supply Chain Management

The Group is well aware that effective management of
procurement is the most critical part to maintaining quality and
safety of product and service. To systemize the complicated
procurement process of pharmaceutical imports, the Group has
formulated procurement business standardized documents for
various pharmaceutical products. Such documents are based on
the Management Regulation on the Procurement of Imported
Products with reference to the regulations of special authorities
such as the PRC General Administration of Customs, Entry-Exit
Inspection and Quarantine Bureau, and China Food and Drug
Administration (CFDA). In addition to the internal management
system, the Group has established a good relationship with
our suppliers and kept liaison, exchanging news on the market
updates and sales data of products for coordinating and
adjusting procurement and sales plans accordingly.

Prior to establishing any partnership with suppliers or its sales
agents, the following factors are considered by the Group:

1. Product compliance

2. Brand influence

3. Strategic synergy with the Group’s development
Prospects in the Chinese market

5. Other potential risks

The Group appraises its existing suppliers according to the
Appraisal Measures for Suppliers by understanding and
analyzing the current status and existing issues of its suppliers
and conducting a full investigation of the performance of its
suppliers, equipment management, quality control, delivery
agreements and service levels, etc., to ensure that suppliers
cooperating with the Group can maintain quality and establish
a long-term and stable cooperative supply relationship with the
Group. Currently, the Group’s suppliers are mainly small- and
medium-sized pharmaceutical manufacturers from overseas
countries, including Austria, Sweden and Cyprus.
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To protect information privacy of the suppliers, the Group
continually enhances its information security, establishing
targeted security principals for the business network, office
network, servers, cyber computer room management and
controlled visits. The staff members are required to sign an
agreement to avoid the leak of information.

The Group also considers possible environmental and social
risks, such as political incidents, terrorist attacks, crisis events,
wars, public emergency events and other unprecedented
and unforeseen circumstances. In response to those risks, the
Group established a contingency team during the Reporting
Period. For some highly disruptive incidental events, the team
has formulated multiple contingency measures to prepare for
those emergencies in advance.

Product Responsibility

As the Group is a member of the pharmaceutical industry
and the products are prescription drugs, the product quality
is crucial and potential risks must be properly controlled.
To ensure product quality and safety, the Group strictly
complies with all national laws and regulations on product
safety, including the PRC Pharmaceutical Administration Law
and its Implementation Regulations, Good Supply Practice
for Pharmaceutical Products and its Implementation Rules.
Besides, the Group has a systematic system for managing
pharmaceutical quality in place with active cooperation with
the regulators in their inspections. The Group proactively
provides internal training on the knowledge of safety and
quality and promotes the policies, systems and concepts of
quality management.

In respect of hardware, the Group has always been storing
pharmaceutical products with advanced technology and
facilities and operates a product mix composed of quality
pharmaceutical imports with an outstanding track record
of safety. The Group has also cooperated with creditworthy
collaborating parties of long-term partnership on the provision
of warehousing and logistics services. Apart from that, the
Group has built its cold chain storage facility with advanced
temperature-control technology and a precision system
of quality control in Shuangliu District, Chengdu, Sichuan
Province, which can ensure a more stable quality control for
the Group.
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The Group has a comprehensive system for process of quality
inspection and product recall, establishes and strictly executes
the policies on the Management Regulation on Pharmaceutical
Product Procurement, the Management Regulation on
Pharmaceutical Product Reception, the Management
Regulation on Pharmaceutical Product Acceptance, and the
Management Regulation on Pharmaceutical Product Return,
ensuring that all product quality and safety operation program
has taken place in standard processes. In addition to this, we
have also formulated relevant management document such as
Distributor Management Measures, Sales Management System
and the Code of Conduct on Customer Servicing to protect the
security and privacy of its customer information.

The Group has no corresponding measures for advertising
and labeling, because all of its products are prescription drugs
which are prohibited from advertising according to national
regulations, and because CFDA issues the permit on product
packaging and specifications.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not recall any
product due to product quality issues, nor did it receive any
complaints about its products and services. All products are
examined by the Institute for Drug Control after their customs
clearance, with an examination report of pharmaceutical
imports issued.

Anti-corruption

The Group has been advocating honesty, integrity and
responsibility as its ethical concepts, opposes any form of
corrupt behavior, such as bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering. The Group has formulated its Anti-corruption and
Anti-bribery Management Regulations and its Staff Code of
Conduct against Corruption and Bribery, according to national,
regulations and the actual industrial condition. The Group also
requires its staff and partners to sign an Anti-corruption and
Anti-bribery Letter of Undertaking on a mutual agreed basis,
included anti-corruption into the staff induction system, and
set up a comprehensive reporting procedure for reporting
non-compliance behaviors and protecting whistleblower. The
Group's internal audit department will also conduct audits to
executives in sales who are departing.
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During the Reporting Period, no case of corruption, extortion,
fraud and money laundering occurred within the Group,
with confirmation that it strictly complied with relevant
laws and regulations such as the PRC Criminal Law and its
Judicial Interpretation, Criminal Procedure law and its Judicial
Interpretation, Interpretation on Several Issues Concerning the
Applicable Laws to Handling Criminal Cases of Embezzlement
and Bribery, and Anti-Money Laundering Law.

Community investment

Community charities and public welfare have always been one
of the considerations for business development of the Group.
The Group attaches great importance to each stakeholder who
is affected by its business scope. In order to maintain good
relationship, we keep close liaison with them, which includes
participating in community activities to ensure the business
development of the Group has fully taken into account the
interests of the community.

i. Establishing charity funds

In March 2017, the Group has established Sinco
Charitable Foundation (iR} ZEZE $) named after the
enterprise in Chengdu Charity Federation and continued
operating in 2019. The fund aims at providing assistance
to the impoverished such that they can receive better
medical treatment; improving the unhealthy living habit
and health conditions of low income patients; enhancing
publicity of health knowledge and changing outdated
concept of getting medical treatment.

ii. ~ Organizing staff activities

While respecting and safeguarding the rights and interests
of staff members, the Group is also attentive to their
physical and mental health, and committed to creating a
beneficial work environment and a harmonious working
atmosphere for them. To achieve that, the Group has
organised diverse activities, such as annual gatherings,
birthday parties and sports activities, during which staff
members can relax and balance work with life. This also
makes a more cohesive environment.
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7.

Environmental

a.

Emissions

The Group operates all relevant business in strict compliance with
the PRC Environmental Protection Law, Law on the Prevention
and Control of Water Pollution, Law on the Prevention and
Control of Atmospheric Pollution, and Law on the Prevention
and Control of Pollution from Environmental Noise, as well as
other laws and requirements on environmental protection to
ensure that the Group did not cause any negative impact to the
environment.

However, as the Group is mainly engaged in the MPCM, it
will not cause significant impact to the environment. The
Group also consumes no direct combustion fuel other than
transportation, therefore it does not produce any hazardous
wastes. Instead, the emissions mainly comprise the exhaust
of all vehicles of the Group, the greenhouse gases indirectly
emitted during its operation, and such non-hazardous wastes as
scrap paper, plastics and house refuse.

During the Reporting Period, the Group implemented various
control measures to keep emissions of automotive within a
controllable range.

The Group encourages employees to choose faster and more
environmentally friendly travel methods. For example, metro
or bus is available for convenient transportation destinations,
and sharing bikes or walking is available for closer destinations.
In addition, benefitted from rapid development of the
transportation road network in the PRC, staff is more willing to
cooperate with the energy conservation policy of the Group,
so there was no significant increase in vehicle waste emissions
during the Reporting Period.
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During the Reporting Period, the main reason for the
significant increase in electricity consumption of the Group was
that the Cold Chain Warehouse of the Group which located at
Chengdu Shuangliu Free Trade Zone was in a fully operation.
Temperature control facilities are required to be opened due to
the strict temperature storage conditions of the core product
Human Albumin, which results in an increase in electricity
consumption.

During the Reporting Period, the significant increase in CO,
emissions of the Group which arose from flight travel was
mainly due to the introduction of Human Albumin which
manufactured in Germany’s factory of Octapharma. The
marketing staff of the Group carried out marketing promotion
of the new product across the country, which led to an
increase in flying frequency. As a result, the CO, emissions
from flying have increased significantly. In view of this, the
Group will further review the management system of business
trip by making reasonable regional division arrangements
for marketing and sales staff to reduce the environmental
protection burden caused by the CO, emission generated by

flying.
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Major Emission Indicators FEHHRDIERE
Increase/
Year (Decrease)
Unit E 2,/ (/)
Emissions of Vehicle Exhaust BEHERBEN (v 2019 2018 %
NOy Emissions REHINOYEEE KilogramF 52 102.76 102.40 0.4
SO, Emissions — &R0, B E Kilogram ¥ 52 0.14 0.14 -
Particles Emissions BERIPMBETE Kilogram ¥ 52 9.29 9.33 (0.4)
Increase/
Year (Decrease)
Unit F5 #/(R)
CO, Emissions —E/EER(COHERE ] 2019 2018 %
From Electricity Consumption AEEE Tonnel 116.6 103.8 12.3
From Flights T TR A Tonnelif 85.5 50.9 68.0
From Processing Scrap Paper RIEREREE Tonnelif 5.7 5.3 7.6
From Processing Sewage BIEEKEE Tonnelif 0.64 0.61 49
Total At Tonneli 208.44 160.61 29.8
Resource Consumption b. &EFRHEME
The paperless office and low-carbon travel activities promoted REE RS BN HEITR AR LA KRR
by the Group during the Reporting Period received keen HITEEBR B T BRI HFMEEAY
support from the staff and were successful, which reduced the TREEBFEEE THRBIRAK « KRR
total electricity consumption of the Group by more than 80%. BT RERIN - AEE IS BB
Apart from the activities previously organised, the Group will B ZRMSE IR
continuously take more measures to support environmental
protection in the future.
Energy and Water Consumption Indicators BENF KK E IR B FEFEIE
Increase/
Year (Decrease)
Unit FH %/ CR)
Energy consumption BEREREE B 2019 2018 %
Total Electricity Consumption BEEE Kilowatt Per Hour ~ 120,572.00 107,392.40 12.27
TRE
Total Gasoline Consumption THERGE Kilogram 9,491.96 9,688.59 (2.03)
T
Total Water Consumption EFEKE Cubic Meter 1,507.30 1,440.80 4.62
SR
The Environment and Natural Resources ¢ RBRERRAER

The business of the Group does not cause any material impact
on the environment and natural resources.

AEEMEENEBTEHRERRAE
REREAEATE -
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Guide Aspects and General

Disclosure
- HERERRERED Pages/Notes
BER—REE Description it BHE B
Aspect A2: Use of Resources
JEEAZ - EFEH
General Disclosures A2 Policies on the efficient use of resources, B FEBER(BIELER -« /K 42
— M including energy, water and other raw R EAtb R R B R
materials
KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption IZFEEE| DI EE KRS 42
R s by type in total and intensity REEE REE
A2.2  Water consumption in total and intensity ~ #& %%7J<§&T£E 42
A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency e R(E S =T 2 R T8 aK 42
initiatives and results achieved 2
A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue  $HatSKEUE KR LRI BB The Group did not

in sourcing water that is fit for purpose,
water efficiency initiatives and results
achieved

A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished

products

Aspect A3 The Environment and Natural Resources
BEIA3 - BRIERXAER

General Disclosure A3 Policies on minimizing the issuer’s

—RIEE significant impact on the environment
and natural resources

KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts

AR A IEE of activities on the environment and
natural resources and the actions taken to

manage them

BB ARIRTH R KR E AT I AR
SRR

have any issue

in sourcing water
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purpose
REERGEM
SRERE AR 7KIRE T
The Group did not
use any packaging
material
REEREFER
EfIREME
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Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting
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Disclosure
R HERERHREED Pages/Notes
BER—REE Description it BHE B
B. Social
B. &
Employment and Labour Practices
EERETER
Aspect B1: Employment
[EEB] : EE
General Disclosure B1 (a) The policies; and BREH L ERE - BERE - 30
—MAREE TIERFE - REA - TEHRE %
(b) compliance with relevant laws and it~ IR R E AR N AEF
regulations that have a significant =0
impact on the issuer
(@ BX: Rk
relating to compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working (b) BTEHBEITABERTE
hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, HAEREEAE AR
diversity, anti-discrimination, and other
benefits and welfare
Aspect B2: Health and Safety
JEEB2 - [EFHEZ S
General Disclosure B2 (a) The policies; and BRERELZ 2N ITIERERRE 33
—MAREE EEBEBELEESH
(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant (@) BoR: &
impact on the issuer
b) EFEHBOTAGEAZE
relating to providing a safe working HAEREEE ARG
environment and protecting employees
from occupational hazards
Aspect B3: Development and Training
JEEB3 : R
General Disclosure B3  Policies on improving employees’ BRRARERITIEREMNA 34
—MH = knowledge and skills for discharging o R R IE o i IE

duties at work. Description of training
activities.
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Disclosure
R HERERHREED Pages/Notes
BER—REE Description ik BHE B
Aspect B4: Labour Standards
JEEB4 - £ T &R
General Disclosure B4 (a) The policies; and BREPHIEE T Ro&H|I T ¢ 35
— M

(b) compliance with relevant laws and  (a) H% : &

regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer (b) EBTFHBETABEAFZZ
HIARRER R AR

relating to preventing child and forced

labour
Operating Practices
EEEN
Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management
JEEBS : (REHRETE
General Disclosure B5  Policies on managing environmental and & IRt FEE R IR R it € AL L 36-37
— MR social risks of the supply chain X
Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
JEEBG - EmEIF
General Disclosure B6 (a) The policies; and BRAMMEHAE MR EE 37-38

— MR
(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer

relating to health and safety, advertising,
labeling and privacy matters relating

to products and services provided and
methods of redress
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BEER—RIFE Description it BE BT
Aspect B7: Anti-corruption
JEEB7 - KE)T
General Disclosure B7 (c) The policies; and ARG 1EBEEE ~ $hR - HEF Rk 38-39
—MAREE RiER

(d) compliance with relevant laws and

regulations that have a significant (@) BE: R
impact on the issuer
(b) BTHEITABERTE

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and EoElEE b YNGR

money laundering
Aspect BS: Community Investment
JEEIBS : {ERE
General Disclosure B8  Policies on community engagement to BRI B ERERET AL 39
— R understand the needs of the communities B FTE 1 [R5E B FIFER B 2755

where the issuer operates and to ensure V& E Eit B RS

its activities take into consideration the

communities’ interests
KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution HrEREE 39
A SRS
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Directors and Senior Managements
EERSNREEE

Executive Directors

Mr. Huang Xiangbin (E##) (“"Mr. Huang”), aged 54, founder
of the Group, has been the Chairman and executive Director of our
Group since April 2011. He is also the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company and is mainly responsible for overall strategic planning and
operation management. Mr. Huang has served as the director of Risun,
the controlling shareholder of the Company, and all the subsidiaries
of the Company except for Chengdu Sinco Pharmaceutial Technology
Co., Ltd., Chengdu Hengsheng Ziguang Pharmaceutical Technology
Co., Ltd., Sichuan Sinco Biological Technology Co., Ltd., Qingdao Ruichi
Pharmceuticals Co., Ltd., Sinco Shanghai Trading Co., Ltd. and Chengdu
Sinco Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd.. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Huang
was the director and chairman of Vast Surplus Corporation Limited
("Vast Surplus”) since November 2004 up until now, mainly responsible
for strategic planning and operation of Vast Surplus. After Vast Surplus
transferred its exclusive distribution rights to service Taurolite, TAD and
Esafosfina to Hong Kong Prosperous Group Holding Limited in March
2015, it has no other business operations. Since then, Mr. Huang has been
devoting a majority of his time to the Group’s business. In addition, Mr.
Huang was also a founder, chief executive officer and director of Chengdu
Ruixin Biopharmaceutical Technology Co., Ltd (“Ruixin”) from February
2004 to April 2011. The principal business of Ruixin was consultation in
the pharmaceutical products, providing marketing and promotion services
as well as assisting in obtaining regulatory approvals and registrations
for pharmaceutical products. However, the pharmaceutical products
serviced by Ruixin were mainly traditional Chinese medicine extracts,
which are different from those of the pharmaceutical products serviced
by the Group. Ruixin was not engaged in any business which competed
or was likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Group's
business. Furthermore, Ruixin was jointly owned as to 50% by Mr. Huang
and 50% by Mr. Chen Xiangui (an independent third party who is not
considered a connected person or associate of a connected person of the
Company under the Listing Rules (“Independent Third Party”)) and was
never a member of the Group which was readily disposable for corporate
reorganization solely based on Mr. Huang's decision. Eventually, as the
management of Ruixin began to focus on the business development of
the Group since Mr. Huang incorporated Sichuan Sinco Pharmaceuticals in
2011, Ruixin did not have any business or operations, which subsequently
led to the passing of the shareholders’ resolutions on 22 September 2015
to voluntarily dissolve Ruixin.

Mr. Huang worked in the Drug Inspection Institute of Guangyuan (&7t
T % h s ER FT) from July 1988 to July 2004 as a pharmacist in charge
of drug quality research as well as collection and delivery of drug safety
information.
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Mr. Huang had been a director of Beijing Guangtong Shidai Medical
Consulting Company Limited (b R BB R EZINEFBER AR Q)
("Beijing Guangtong”), a limited liability company established in the PRC
in 2003, since its establishment up until 2004. Prior to the revocation
of its business license, Beijing Guangtong was owned as to 50%, 40%
and 10% by Mr. Huang, Mr. You Fei and Mr. You Hao respectively. Both
Mr. You Fei and Mr. You Hao are Independent Third Parties. Mr. Huang
confirmed that at the time of the revocation of the business license of
Beijing Guangtong, he was not involved in the daily operation of Beijing
Guangtong as he was focusing on the development of Ruixin’s business.
To be best of Mr. Huang’s knowledge, Beijing Guantong had ceased
attending annual inspection (&%) as it had no business operation,
resulting in its business license being revoked subsequently on 26
November 2004. Mr. Huang confirmed that there is no wrongful act on
his part leading to the revocation and he is not aware of any actual or
potential claim that has been or will be made against him as a result of
the revocation.

Mr. Huang obtained a master’s degree in EMBA from Shanghai Jiao Tong
University (/83238 AE) in December 2008 and graduated from the
MBA programme of Renmin University (7B A R AZ2) in August 2002.
He also obtained a bachelor’s degree in botanical resources (£F 418 ¥ & JR)
from Jilin Agriculture University (F#2& 2 KE2) in July 1988. Mr. Huang
has been studying in the Univsite Paris — Dauphine under the Executive
Doctorate in Business Administration (EDBA) program since December
2013.

Ms. Zhang Zhijie (GRE£E) (“Ms. Zhang”), aged 51, joined the Group
in November 2013 and is an executive Director and vice president for
technics of our Company, mainly responsible for new pharmaceuticals
research and development. Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Zhang
successively served as a postdoctoral fellow of research center, an associate
chief physician (starting from July 2013) and a research fellow (starting
from December 2014) of the pharmacognosy study center of the Institute
of Chinese Medical Sciences from July 2008 up until now, and was
responsible for the coordination and management of the daily researches
of the pharmaceutical research centre and was also involved in the process
of setting up the pharmaceutical research centre. Although Ms. Zhang is
concurrently working at the Institute of Chinese Medical Sciences, she is
heavily involved in the Group’s research and development programme. Ms.
Zhang is leading the Group’s Sinco | programme as a research fellow for
the Institute of Chinese Medical Sciences.

2019 F# EMABEEERARAR
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The Directors are of the view that Ms. Zhang has been and will continue
to be able to allocate sufficient time to fulfill her duties and responsibilities
as an executive Director based on the following reasons: (i) as Ms. Zhang
is responsible for overseeing the Group’s new pharmaceuticals research
and development, her position as a researcher at the Institute of Chinese
Medical Sciences, in particular her involvement in the development of
Sinco |, is directly related to her role as an executive Director. By working as
a researcher at the Institute of Chinese Medical Sciences, Ms. Zhang is, at
the same time, also fulfilling her responsibilities as an executive Director,
(i) to enable Ms. Zhang to allocate sufficient time to carry out her duties
as an executive Director, the Group has assigned four personnel to
assist Ms. Zhang with the development of Sinco | with respect to clinical
trials, patent applications and manufacturing processes, including two
researchers each with over 15 years of experience in the production and
quality control of pharmaceuticals, a researcher with a master’s degree
in clinical pharmacology specializing in the design and implementation
of pharmaceutical testing and a researcher with a bachelor’s degree in
business administration focusing on pharmaceutical laws who is in charge
of drafting reports and registration-related matters; and (iii) Ms. Zhang has
been diligently attending the Board meetings held by the Company since
she was appointed as an executive Director. In the event that Ms. Zhang
is unable to attend a Board meeting in person, according to the Articles
of Association, she is able to participate in such Board meeting by way of
telephone conference.

Ms. Zhang served as the general manager of Zhaoye Bio-Techonology
Co., Ltd JREAEWEHHBERRAT), a subsidiary of Nanjing Xiaoying
Pharmaceuticals Group Co., Ltd (B R/NE B EFH R A F]), from July
2006 to October 2008, mainly responsible for new drug research and
development. She has also engaged in national research projects, which
involved contributing to the testing of mineral medicine and its quality
control. Ms. Zhang was the co-editor of two books and published several
research papers in national and international academic journals. Ms.
Zhang has also been awarded Second Prize for Science and Technology by
the China Association of Chinese Medicine in November 2005. Ms. Zhang
obtained her Ph.D degree in June 2006 from Nanjing University of Chinese
Medicine (Fg R 5% K £2). Ms. Zhang worked as a pharmacist in Henan
Provincial Pingdingshan City Chinese Medicine Hospital (Ji/fg& I8
FREEBT) from September 1990 to August 2003. She obtained a bachelor’s
degree in Chinese medicine from Henan University of Traditional Chinese
Medicine (A g AR 2 E4F%) in July 1990.
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Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Lau Ying Kit (2| £E5E4) (“Mr. Lau”), aged 46, is an independent
non-executive Director with effect from 8 November 2018. Mr. Lau is
currently an independent non-executive director of Kingdom Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 528), Xiezhong International Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 3663), China Wood Optimization (Holding) Limited (Stock
Code: 1885) and United Strength Power Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
2337). Mr. Lau is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and holds a master’s degree in finance from the City
University of Hong Kong. He has extensive experience in financial and
accounting in China and Hong Kong.

Mr. Wang Qing (GX£#5) (“Mr. Wang"”), aged 55, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director with effect from 1 February 2016,
mainly responsible for supervising and providing independent judgment to
the Board. Mr. Wang has worked at Dalian University of Technology (K3
38 T K E2) from April 2003 up until now. Mr. Wang served as an associate
professor when he first joined Dalian University of Technology and was
later promoted to professor in November 2010 and he was responsible
for research and development and teaching. Mr. Wang is currently the
director of the Department of Pharmacy in the School of Pharmaceutical
Sciences at Dalian University of Technology. From July 1986 to September
1997, Mr. Wang worked as a pharmacist supervisor at Liaoning Provincial
Medical Company Limited (B4 &M ERE T A7), where he was
responsible for drugs inspection and evaluation and participated in
research and technical renovation.

Mr. Wang obtained his Ph.D. degree in treatment therapy system at
Kyushu Institute of Technology (JU & T3 KE8) in Japan in March 2003
and a master’s degree in treatment therapy system at Kyushu Institute
of Technology in March 2000. Mr. Wang obtained his bachelor’s degree
in medicinal plants at Jilin Agricultural University (722 KE) in July
1986.
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Mr. Liu Wenfang (2/325) (“Mr. Liu”), aged 82, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director with effect from 1 February 2016,
mainly responsible for supervising and providing independent judgement
to the Board. Prior to joining our Group, from July 2017 to present,
he serves as a senior technical consultant in two biologic companies in
terms of Shanxi Kangbao Biological Product Co., Ltd (LLFaEE £ YR
A EBR/AF]) and China Biologic Products Inc. (RHEWRRBER
‘Aal), a company listed on NASDAQ (stock code: CBPO). From February
2011 to June 2017, he also served as an independent director of China
Biologic Products Inc. From 2007 to 2011, Mr. Liu worked as a chief
consultant at Sichuan Yuanda Shuyang Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd (P9)I|
RA GBI ARAR]) where he was responsible for research and
promoting new theories and applications in the medical field. From 2000
to 2007, he served as the chief engineer and director of Hualan Biological
Engineering Inc. GERAEY TR (D AR A R)) where he was responsible
for supervising the manufacturing process and quality management. From
May 1998 to May 1999, Mr. Liu served as the chief engineer of Guiyang
Qianfeng Bio Manufacture Company (Ef5ZE4AYMRBERETAF)
where he was responsible for research and developing new products.
From 1978 to 1988, Mr. Liu worked in the Institute of Blood Transfusion,
Chinese Academy of Medical Sciences (4 B2 E2 R} 2Bz 85 M A T A7) and
was engaged in the segregation and purification of blood and protein and
research, development and quality analysis of blood products.

Mr. Liu obtained a bachelor’s degree majoring in biochemistry from the
Shenyang Institute of Applied Ecology, Chinese Academy of Sciences
(Fh B R} 2B S8R5 E A A BERT T A7) (formerly known as the Institute of
Forestry and Soil Sciences) in August 1963.

Senior Management

Mr. Li Yifan (Z2—#) (“Mr. Li"), aged 40, joined our Group in February
2015 and was appointed as the Chief Financial Officer of the Company in
June 2015, mainly responsible for the overall financial strategic planning,
internal control system management, and investment and financing
management of the Group. Mr. Li is also the director of Sichuan Sinco
Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd.. Mr. Li has over 10 years of experience in
accounting and financial management. Before joining the Group, Mr.
Li worked for China Ploymetalic Mining Limited, a company listed on
the HKSE (stock code: 2133) from March 2011 to January 2015, and
last served as the deputy chief financial officer responsible for financial
accounting and management. From February 2005 to February 2011,
Mr. Li successively served as an auditor of the Shenzhen Branch and a
senior auditor of the Chengdu branch of Ernst & Young Hua Ming LLP.
Mr. Li obtained a Master of Science in Finance degree from the University
of Stirlling in January 2005 and graduated from Southwestern University
of Finance and Economics (FAFIEAAE A ER) in July 2002 with a bachelor’s
degree in management. Mr. Li has been a Chinese Certified Public
Accountant since January 2012.
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Mr. Lei Shifeng (F ) (“Mr. Lei”), aged 53, joined our Group in
July 2016 as the general manager of Chengdu Sinco Pharmaceutical
Technology Co. Ltd. and was appointed as the general manager of
Sichuan Sinco Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd. in October 2016, mainly
responsible for its overall operation and management. Mr. Lei is also
the director of Chengdu Sinco Pharmaceutical Technology Co., Ltd.,
Chengdu Sinco Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd., Chengdu Hengsheng Ziguang
Pharmaceutical Technology Co., Ltd. and Sichuan Sinco Biological
Technology Co., Ltd.. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Lei worked for
Sichuan Derentang Traditional Chinese Medicine Technology Co., Ltd. (74
|18 2 R AR B R A 7)), mainly responsible for procurement,
manufacturing and quality control. From May 2001 to May 2007, he
worked as the vice general manager of Chengdu Zhongxin Pharmaceutical
Co., Ltd (&P #FT 25 HR /A F]), mainly responsible for the overall
business operation and management. From July 1988 to April 2001, he
was a manager at Chengdu Traditional Chinese Medicine Company (5%
#Brh 254512 7)), mainly responsible for the procurement and business
operation and management of its branches. Mr. Lei earned his bachelor’s
degree from Jilin Agricultural University (#8232 K £2) in July 1988 and
the Certified Pharmacist qualification in January 2000.

Mr. Peng Fei (&27) (“Mr. Peng”), aged 46, joined our Group in April
2011 and was appointed as the Financial Controller of our Company
in June 2015, mainly responsible for overall finance management. Mr.
Peng is also the director of Sichuan Sinco Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd. and
Qingdao Ruichi Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd.. Prior to joining our Group, Mr.
Peng served as the finance manager of Ruixin from September 2004 to
March 2011, responsible for finance management. Mr. Peng also served
as the finance staff of the Third Construction Section of the Factory
Construction Engineering Bureau, the Ministry of Railway and China
Railway Construction Engineering Group North Project Co., Ltd. (218 252
BIEBE=TER  PEEIEEIF TEBRAR]) from September
1991 to August 2004, mainly responsible for the company’s finance
management. Mr. Peng obtained a bachelor’s degree in accounting from
Southwestern University of Finance and Economics (FAmgBf & AEZ2) in
December 2006, He also obtained the qualification of Registered Tax
Agent issued by Sichuan Provincial Human Resources Department (79!
A ANZEEE) in April 2009, and obtained the license as a senior accountant
from Chengdu Reform Leading Group of Professional Titles in April 2013.
He has been a Chinese Certified Public Accountant since December 2016.
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

The Board hereby presents its report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Reporting Period.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and the
Group is principally engaged in the provision of comprehensive marketing,
promotion and channel management service for imported pharmaceutical
products and medical devices in China. The analysis of the revenue of the
principal activities of the Group during the Reporting Period is set out in
the note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.

Business Review and Results

A review of the business of the Group during the Reporting Period is
provided in “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 18 to 20.
An analysis of the Group’s performance during the Reporting Period using
financial key performance indicators is provided in the Financial Highlights
on paged 4 to 5 of this annual report.

The results of the Group for the Reporting Period are set out in the
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive
Income on page 101 of this annual report.

Possible Acquisitions, Placing and Convertible Bond
Issuance During the Reporting Period

Memorandum of understanding in respect of a possible
acquisition

On 15 December 2018, the Company entered into a non-legally binding
memorandum of understanding (the “MOU") with two third parties
(the “Vendor(s)") in relation to a possible acquisition (the “Possible
Acquisition”) of majority stake in a company (the “Target Company”),
and the Target Company and its subsidiaries were principally engaged
in maternal and child care and its related services. Pursuant to the terms
of the MOU, the MOU would be terminated if the relevant formal
agreement had not been signed among the parties to the MOU upon
the end of the relevant exclusive period under the MOU. Since no Formal
Agreement was signed and the parties did not agree to extend the
exclusive period, accordingly, the Possible Acquisition did not proceed.
The Board considered that the termination of the MOU had no material
adverse impact on the existing business operation and financial position
of the Group. Please refer to the Company’s announcements dated
15 December 2018 and 15 March 2019 for the details of the Possible
Acquisition.
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Possible acquisition, placing of Shares and issuance of
convertible bonds

On 4 February 2019, the Company entered into a placing agreement (the
“Placing Agreement”) with South China Securities Limited (the “Placing
Agent”) in relation to the conditional placing (the “Placing”) of (i) up to
338,378,117 placing shares to not less than six placees at the placing
price of not less than HK$0.443 per placing share; and (ii) the convertible
bonds of up to an aggregate principal amount of HK$170.0 million to not
less than six placees. In such connection, the Company entered into a non-
legally binding memorandum of understanding dated 4 February 2019 (the
“PP MOU") with PIEL Capital Company Limited in relation to the possible
acquisition of a company, which intended to acquire certain interest in a
provider of low-cost long-life and long-duration energy storage systems.
On 13 March 2019 (after trading hours), the Company and the Placing
Agent entered into a termination agreement to terminate the Placing
Agreement. Each of the Company and the Placing Agent confirmed that it
does not have any claim against the other party for any liability under the
Placing Agreement and further agreed to waive all the rights that it may
have against the other party of whatever nature in relation to the Placing
Agreement. According to the PP MOU, it shall be terminated upon the
expiry of the exclusivity period under the PP MOU, which was a period of
six months from the date of the PP MOU. Since no definitive agreement
relating to the possible acquisition was signed among the parties to the PP
MOU, accordingly, the possible acquisition did not proceed. Details of the
possible acquisition, Placing Agreement and termination agreement was
set out in the Company’s announcements dated 4 February 2019 and 13
March 2019.

Continuing Disclosure Requirements pursuant to Rule
13.21 of the Listing Rules

A loan agreement (the “Loan Agreement”) was entered into on 23
April 2018 among the Company as the borrower, Mr. Gui as the lender,
Risun as the chargor and Mr. Huang as the guarantor for the Loan with
an interest rate of 13.2% per annum and the due date as at 30 April
2019 for the repayment of principal and interest of the corporate bonds
due in the same month (the “Loan”). On 27 March 2019 (after trading
hours), the Company, Mr. Gui, Risun, Mr. Huang, Guangsha Overseas
Holding Limited (“Guangsha Overseas”) and Mr. Ye Songshao (“Mr.
Ye") (collectively, the “New Lenders”) entered into the supplemental
agreement dated 27 March 2019 (the “Supplemental Agreement”) to
extend the repayment date of the Loan for an additional year from 30
April 2019 to 30 April 2020, subject to certain conditions precedent, one
of which relates to the transfer of certain Shares for partial settlement of
the Loan in an aggregate principal amount of RMB78,955,849.10 and
the related accrued interests pursuant to the share charge under the Loan
Agreement by Risun (the “Transfers”).
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Under the Supplemental Agreement, the maturity date of the Loan would
be extended from 30 April 2019 to 30 April 2020, subject to certain
conditions precedent, one of which relates to the Transfers by Risun to the
New Lenders for partial settlement of the Loan (the “Transfers Condition
Precedent”). Subsequent to the signing of the Supplemental Agreement,
the Transfers Condition Precedent was waived by Mr. Gui and the New
Lenders, and hence, the Transfers were not executed and will not take
place pursuant to the Supplemental Agreement. On 29 March 2019, as all
conditions precedent to the Supplemental Agreement were either waived
or fulfilled (including the waiver of the Transfers Condition Precedent),
the Supplemental Agreement was completed and the maturity date of the
Loan was extended from 30 April 2019 to 30 April 2020.

The Company has arranged repayment of the Loan together with relevant
interest amounts, under the Loan Agreement (as supplemented by
the Supplemental Agreement) on 3 January 2020. In such connection,
the 1,049,990,000 Shares charged and placed in a custodian account
pursuant to the Loan Agreement and the guarantee provided by Mr.
Huang in connection with the Loan were released.

For more details, please refer to the Company’s announcements dated 23
April 2018, 27 March 2019, 9 April 2019 and 3 January 2020.
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Final Dividend

The Directors do not recommend a final dividend for the Reporting Period.

Closure of the Register of Members

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Thursday,
18 June 2020 to Tuesday, 23 June 2020, both days inclusive, in order to
determine the identity of the Shareholders who are entitled to attend the
forthcoming AGM to be held on Tuesday, 23 June 2020. To be eligible for
attending and voting at the AGM, all transfer forms must be lodged with
the Company’s Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar, Computershare Hong
Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong before 4:30pm on
Wednesday, 17 June 2020.

Financial Summary

A summary of the Group's results, assets, liabilities for the last five
financial years are set out on pages 4 to 5 of this annual report. This
summary does not form part of the audited consolidated financial
statements.

Major Customers and Suppliers

For the Reporting Period, the Group’s products purchased from the
largest supplier, accounted for 78.9% (2018: 67.5%) of total products
purchased, and products purchased from five largest suppliers accounted
for 100.0% (2018: 100.0%) of our total products purchased.

For the Reporting Period, the Group'’s sales to largest customer accounted
for 18.1% (2018: 12.6%) of our total revenue, and sales to the five
largest customers accounted for 39.7% (2018: 35.1%) of our total
revenue.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any Shareholders
(which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of
the Company’s issued share capital) had any interest in the Group's five
largest customers and suppliers.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the Reporting Period are set out in note 12 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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Subsidiaries
Details of the major subsidiaries of the Company as of 31 December 2019
are set out in note 1 to the consolidated financial statements.

Share Capital

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the
Reporting Period are set out in note 27 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the Reporting
Period are set out on page 104 in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity.

Distributable Reserves

As at 31 December 2019, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions of Cayman
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands and the Articles of Association,
amounted to approximately RMB12.2 million (as at 31 December 2018:
RMB257.0 million).

Bank Loans and Other Borrowings

Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the Group as at 31
December 2019 are set out in note 25 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Share Option Scheme

1. Purpose
The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide an incentive
or reward for Eligible Participants (defined below) for their
contribution or potential contribution to the Company and/or any of
its subsidiaries.

2. Eligible participants

The Board may subject to and in accordance with the provisions
of the Share Option Scheme and the Listing Rules, at its discretion
grant options to any full-time or part-time employees, including
executives, senior management or officers (including executive, non-
executive and independent non-executive directors) of the Company,
its subsidiaries or any entity in which the Group holds any equity
interest, and to any company wholly owned by one or more persons
belonging to any of the above classes of participants who, in the
absolute discretion of the Board has contributed or will contribute to
the Group (collectively, the “Eligible Participants”).
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Life of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of
ten years from 1 February 2016, after which time no further option
will be granted. The remaining life of the Share Option Scheme as at
the date of this report is approximately 5 years and 9 months.

Total number of Shares available for issue

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the Share Scheme shall not, in
aggregate, exceed 160,000,000, representing 9.46% of the issued
share capital of the Company as at the date of this report.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

Unless approved by Shareholders, the total number of Shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of options granted to any participant
(including exercised and outstanding options) under the Share
Option Scheme in any 12-month period up to the date of grant shall
not exceed 1% of the total shares in issue.

Offer period and amount payable for options

An option may be accepted by an Eligible Participant within 15
days from the date of the offer of grant of the option. A nominal
consideration of HK$1.00 is payable upon acceptance of the grant
of option.

Minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised

The period during which an option must be held before it can be
exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme
shall be one year after the date on which the option is granted. The
Board may in its absolute discretion impose further restrictions on
the exercise of the option.

Period within which the Share must be taken up
Subject to the discretion of the Board who may impose restrictions
on the exercise of the option, any option may be exercised one year
after the date on which the options is granted and shall expire on
the earlier of the last day of (i) a six year period from the date of
such grant; and (ii) the expiration of the Share Option Scheme.
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Basis of determining the subscription price

The price per Share at which a Grantee may subscribe for Shares
upon exercise of an option (the “Exercise Price”) shall be a price
determined by the Board but in any event shall be at least the
highest of:

(i)  The closing price of the Shares as stated in the HKSE's daily

guotations sheets on the date on which the option is granted,;
(i)  The average closing price of the Shares as stated in the HKSE's
daily quotations sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant of that option; and

The nominal value of the Shares.

(iii)

The summary of the options granted under the Share Option Scheme that
were still outstanding as at 31 December 2019 are as follows:
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Number of Options
BREHE
On On
1 January 31 December
2019 2019 Exercise
Grantee's name 120195 Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed 20195 Price™ Date of grant Exercisable period®
ARALE 1818 e i i P 128318 B RLAH s
Employees (in aggregate) 16,850,000 - - - 1,200,0008 15,650,000 HK$0.568 21 September 2016 21 September 2017-
E5(8%) 056877 2016%9A21H 20 September 2022
0175972182
2022F9A208

Notes: st -

(1) The exercise price represents not less than the highest of (i) the closing price (1) fTFEERNMENRUT=EFNESE : ()P20165F9 A
of HK$0.540 per Share as stated in the HKSE's daily quotation sheets on 21 21 B (BNERER L A ) BB AT B B®ERFTE A K
September 2016, being the date of such grant; (i) the average closing price TEERK0.5408 7T ¢ (Hm N EE AT B R
of HK$0.568 per Share as stated in the HKSE's daily quotation sheets for EEERERTBHIMABREAFNFHIRTESR
five business days immediately preceding the date of such grant; and (iii) the 0.568% 7T ¢ K (iR EBEEFAX0.0001ETT °
nominal value of the Share at HK$0.0001 per Share.

(2) 40% of the options granted shall be vested and can be exercised upon one  (2) EHIERIENLA0%EEEBERE B R —F (A
year commencing the date of such grant (i.e. 21 September 2017) and a 201759218 ABER E—F R FHRERITE
continuous employment of one year. Another 30% of the options granted, R SM30% 1% B B RAR L B B M4 (B
shall be vested and can be exercised upon two years commencing the date 2018%F9A218) BRHEXEMFE A T 58 RITE -
of such grant (i.e. 21 September 2018) and a continuous employment of two FHBRIENSRT30% 8B BT L BT =F (8
years. The remaining 30% of the options granted, shall be vested and can 2019F9A21 ) ERFEZE=FE THBRITHE
be exercised upon three years commencing the date of such grant (i.e. 21
September 2019) and a continuous employment of three years.

(3) 1,200,000 share options granted to several employees lapsed two months ~ (3) #®F & T{EE 1,200,000/ BREAREL FZE Y

after their cessation of employment.

REmE A RA
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Equity-linked Agreements

Other than the Share Option Scheme of the Company as disclosed above,
no equity-linked agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing
shares or that require the Company to enter into any agreements that
will or may result in the Company issuing shares were entered into by
the Company during the Reporting Period or subsisted at the end of the
Reporting Period.

Directors
The Directors during the Reporting Period and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Huang Xiangbin (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Zhang Zhijie

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
Mr. Lau Ying Kit

Mr. Wang Qing

Mr. Liu Wenfang

In accordance with article 16.18 of the Articles of Association, Ms. Zhang
Zhijie and Mr. Wang Qing will retire and being eligible, have offered

themselves for re-election as Directors at the forthcoming AGM.

Details of the Directors to be re-elected at the forthcoming AGM are set
out in the circular to the Shareholders.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographies
Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the Group
are set out on pages 48 to 53 of this annual report.

Confirmation of Independence of

Independent Non-Executive Directors

The Company has received a confirmation of independence pursuant to
rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules from each of the independent non-executive
Directors and the Company considers such Directors to be independent in
accordance with rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Directors’ Service Contracts and Letter of
Appointments

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service agreement
with the Company for a term of three years commencing from the date
of service agreement, which may be terminated by not less than three
months’ notice in writing served by either party to the other.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into a
letter of appointment with the Company for an initial term of three years
commencing from the date of the letter of appointment, which may be
terminated by not less than three months’ notice in writing served by
either part to the other.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
AGM has a service contract which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

Directors’ Interests in Transactions, Arrangements
or Contracts of Significance

Other than those transactions disclosed in note 33 to the consolidated
financial statements, no transactions, arrangements or contracts of
significance in relation to the business of the Group to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or
an entity connected with a Director had, directly or indirectly, a material
interest subsisted during or at the end of the Reporting Period.

EEREAREEERE
AEBEERARERENREFBERNAFRES
Z53H -

BAUFHTESENBEUMRRE

ARBCEERBIIFNITESRIE LTRANFE3.13
BEENBYEERE  ARRARR  ZFEZHR
RIE EHRAIES NGB LAL ©

EERBESOREER

ERTERRARB I LIRG HE - FHARSE HE
RHEFAB=F AlEA—STRS—HTELTD
R=fAAEEBMT AL

BEUIEMTEFEARRILERE R - VI EHA
RN R AR=F  ThREF SRS %
HAPR=(EAEEBMT AL -

BERNIBRTHORRBFAE LEREBEEINES
RIVAEBEA AR —FARNEECEEBERIN M
RIEHBRIEA#)

EEREARS - ZHREHHER

BREAMBRAMEIBMBRENZETIHI - N
SRR - AR B HEEAINER R BERT L
FEEEXBMEBEN  BERSEEFHFNER
REPEERNEXRBEEEARANEARS - KX

BH -

Sinco Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2019



Report of the Directors EBE W&

Directors’ Interest in Competing Business

None of the Directors or their respective associates had engaged in or
had any interest in any business which competes or may compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group during the Reporting
Period.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the Reporting Period.

Employees and Emolument Policy

As of 31 December 2019, the Group had an aggregate of 107 full-
time employees. The remuneration committee of the Company (the
“Remuneration Committee”) was set up for reviewing the Group’s
emolument policy and structure for all remuneration of the Directors and
senior management of the Group, having regard to the Group’s operating
results, individual performance of the Directors and senior management
and comparable market practices.

Remuneration of Directors and Five Individuals with
Highest Emoluments

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and five highest paid
individuals are set out in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

Changes to Information in Respect of Directors

Save as otherwise disclosed in this report, the Directors confirm that no
information is required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the
Listing Rules.
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Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures
Save as otherwise disclosed in this report, no rights to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of Shares in or debentures of the Company
were granted to any Director or their respective spouse or children under
18 years of age, nor were any such rights exercised by them. Neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries was a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors, or their respective spouse or children under 18 years
of age, to acquire such rights in any other body corporate during the
Reporting Period.

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests

and Short Position in Shares, Underlying Shares

and Debentures

As at 31 December 2019, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company in the Shares, underlying Shares and
debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) (i) which were required to be notified
to the Company and the HKSE pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests or short positions which were taken or
deemed to have under provisions of the SFO), or (i) which were required,
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered into the register
maintained by the Company, or (iii) which were required to be notified
to the Company and the HKSE pursuant to Model Code as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules were as follows:

(i) Interestin Shares or Underlying Shares of the

EERBRORNESFHER

BARESAREES  BEXTEMEFARSE
B BB SRR 183 T 2 A 1] DA MR B 28 28 A R 19 3K
BTSSR OMT - S IR (TR AE (A R
M o RIE AR« A B REAE A B2 AR 2
IS EF RS E BORBARF8RT LR GHE
GESLEIN. L b

ESRFETHRAESRKRG - HERGOK
EEPHERERKXE

M20195F12A31H - EERARABEETHRAER
RARREM WA EE(TERES RS KGIE
XVEB) I - AR RESF - BB ()REES
FERE A XV ET R S AME NN T K E B
RS AR (BREREES RAEET B BIE
X HEWEEIERAREENTAESSAS)
H(NRIREFH R HIE (5 FI 5352 1& BR8N AR A1
BERELMAERS AR - skiiRik iR R 8%
TETEIZESFAIBME R AR B BB RTHERER
KRBT

() RADERDNAEEER D S

Company
Number of Approximate
Shares or percentage of
Name of Director and underlying shareholding
chief executive Nature of Interest Shares™ interest®
R IR HE
EERTETHABESE EEME HERGHEO BHUEDIHe
Mr. Huang® Founder of a discretionary trust 1,050,000,000 (L) 62.06%
|mELEO YIS EFERZA
Notes: Wiat -

(1) The Letter “L" denotes the person’s long position in the Shares.

(2)  Mr. Huang was the settlor of a trust in which Wickhams Cay Trust
Company Limited was the trustee and held the entire interest in
Fullwealth Holdings Limited, which in turn held the entire beneficial
interest in Risun. Mr. Huang was deemed to be interested in the
1,050,000,000 Shares beneficially held by Risun.

(3)  The calculation is based on the total number of 1,691,890,585 Shares
in issue as at 31 December 2019.
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(1) FEILEZBALREOAFENGERE

2 EEXER—EHEAMNPERTA Hm
Wickhams Cay Trust Company Limited £ #% {2 5F
H) 25T A+ A Fullwealth Holdings Limited 2 2P
#EZS - MFullwealth Holdings Limited#ARisun%
HERER - EEERRAAARUNE R TR
1,050,000,0008& A% 17 )i %5

B ZEDLLTIIBER2019F 12 A31H A
1,691,890,585/% B 31 TAX D Mt E15H
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(ii) Interest in associated corporation

(i) MEEEEREDS

Approximate

Name of Amount of percentage of
associated registered shareholding
Name of Director corporation Nature of Interest share capital interest
EEAW HBEE LR EREE EEMREEE - RESQMEIH
Ms. Zhang Zhijie Sichuan Sinco Biological Interest in controlled corporation® RMB300,000 30%
Technology Co., Ltd.
REHRLLE M| ERAEYRRERAR KRR EEOERD AE#300,0007T
Notes: Mat

(1) Sichuan Sinco Biological Technology Co., Ltd. was owned as to 30%
by Beijing Kang Tai Yun Dao Technology Co., Ltd., which was in turn
owned as to 60% by Ms. Zhang Zhijie.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, none of the
Directors and the chief executive of the Company had or was
deemed to have any interests or short positions in the Shares,
underlying Shares or debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) that was
required to be recorded in the register of the Company required to
be kept under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the HKSE pursuant to the Model Code.
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(1) ENEMEENRHBRAR AL REREER
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares

As at 31 December 2019, to the best knowledge of the Directors, the
following person/entities (not being a Director or chief executive of the
Company) had interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying
Shares of the Company which fall to be disclosed to the Company under
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO as recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336
of the SFO:

FTERRRBRORBERS P VERR

KB

R2019F 12 8318 - REBMFA - RIBAQAIE
BEELHEKNFEIB6KATFENELMAAT
8o UTAL/ BE(EEXAQARAETBITRAER
SN RAERBROXABARD R EEREEFESRPE
BB EEXVER 2 K 39 BV ESTARI AR R B4 & M)A 25

(i) RAERATER

(i) Interestin the Company

Approximate
percentage of

Number of shareholding
Name Nature of Interest Shares™ interest®
IREBA
=L EEME ROGEBE® BOLE®
Risun@ Beneficial owner 1,050,000,000 (L) 62.06%
Risun® BEmEA A
Fullwealth Holdings Limited Interest in controlled corporation 1,050,000,000 (L) 62.06%
Fullwealth Holdings Limited R EE R R
Wickhams Cay Trust Company Limited® Trustee 1,050,000,000 (L) 62.06%
Wickhams Cay Trust Company Limited @  &FEA
Wisen Group Holding Limited (“Wisen"”)®  Beneficial owner 90,000,000 (L) 5.32%
Wisen Group Holding Limited([Wisen1)®  EzZ#H A
Mr. Liu Sichuan® Interest in controlled corporation 90,000,000 (L) 5.32%
2B ES RREEB R R
Mr. Gui® Person having a security interest 1,049,990,000 (L) 62.06%
E el in shares
RIRMHERERERAL
Interest in controlled corporation 20,915,000 (L) 1.24%
REEE R
Total: 1,070,905,000 (L) 63.30%
R
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Notes:

M

The letter “L" denotes the person’s long position in the Shares.

(2)  Mr. Huang is the settlor of a trust in which Wickhams Cay Trust

Company Limited is the trustee and holds the entire interest in
Fullwealth Holdings Limited, which in turn holds the entire beneficial
interest in Risun. Fullwealth Holdings Limited, Wickhams Cay Trust
Company Limited and Mr. Huang are deemed to be interested in the
1,050,000,000 Shares beneficially held by Risun.

(3)  Wisen is owned as to 100% by Mr. Liu Sichuan. Therefore, Mr. Liu

Sichuan is deemed to be interested in the 90,000,000 Shares held by
Wisen.

@)

As confirmed by Mr. Gui, Innovative Advertising Company Limited, a
company wholly owned by Mr. Gui, held 20,915,000 Shares. Therefore,
Mr. Gui was deemed to be interested in such Shares. Mr. Gui also had
a security interest in 1,049,990,000 Shares held by Risun.

(5)  The calculation is based on the total number of 1,691,890,585 Shares

in issue as at 31 December 2019.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Listed Securities
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the Reporting
Period.

Connected Transaction

Details of the related party transactions undertaken by the Group are set
out in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements. Pursuant to Rules
14A.76 and 14A.90 of the Listing Rules, each of the staff advances to Mr.
Huang relating to prepayment of travelling and other expenses during
his course of employment and the guarantee provided by Mr. Huang as
disclosed in notes 16 and 25 to the consolidated financial statements is a
connected transaction exempted from announcement, reporting, annual
review and independent shareholders’ approval requirements under the
Listing Rules. The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements
in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect of the
above connected transaction.

2019 F# EMABEEERARAR

FEILUEZBALRRDARENTE -

BAEER—HEANPERTA  HAP
Wickhams Cay Trust Company Limited &% {2 5%
#5255 AL 35 A Fullwealth Holdings Limtied 2 &
#e 25 » T Fullwealth Holdings Limited 5 A& Risun
2 EE &= # 3 ° Fullwealth Holdings Limited
Wickhams Cay Trust Company Limited } & %t 4
A5 A PR RIsun B 2 PT#F A 1,050,000,000/%
Rt e o

WisenH 2B EE2EHES - At - 21BJ1%
A AR 7 B Wisen FT#5 90,000,000 8% % {5 &)
WS ©

(©)

AR BERE2EREaNARIAIEES
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X o
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)
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Directors and Controlling Shareholders’ Interests in
Contracts

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected Transactions” above,
there were no other contracts of significance in relation to the Company’s
business, to which the Company or any of the Company’s subsidiaries
was a party, subsisting at the end of the year or at any time during the
year and in which a Director had, whether directly or indirectly, a material
interest, nor there were any other contracts of significance in relation to
the Company’s business between the Company or any of the Company’s
subsidiaries and a controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the Cayman Islands Companies Law where the Company
was incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new Shares
on a pro rata basis to existing Shareholders.

Tax Relief and Exemption
The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to
the Shareholders by reason of their holding the Company’s securities.

Non-Competition Undertaking

On 1 February 2016, Mr. Huang and Risun, our controlling shareholders
entered into a deed of non-competition in favour of our Company (for
itself and on behalf of all members of the Group), pursuant to which they
have undertaken, subject to and except as mentioned in the Prospectus,
that they, would not, and would procure that none of their associates
(other than any member company of our Group) will directly or indirectly,
engage in any business which competes or is likely to compete, directly or
indirectly, with our Group’s business as described in the Prospectus in the
PRC or any other places in which our Group carries on business.

The Company has received confirmations from the controlling
shareholders confirming their compliance with the deed of non-
competition during the Reporting Period.

Permitted Indemnity Provision
As at the date of this report, all Directors of the Company were covered
under the liability insurance purchased by the Company.
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Charitable Donations
During the Reporting Period, the Group did not make any donations (2018:
Nil)

Disclosure Under Rule 13.20 of the Listing Rules

The Directors are not aware of any circumstances resulting in the
responsibilities of disclosure under Rule 13.20 of the Listing Rules
regarding the provision of advance by the Company to an entity.

Code of Conduct Regarding Directors’ Securities
Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code of conduct
regarding Directors’ securities transactions. Having made specific enquiry
with the Directors, all the Directors confirmed that they had complied with
such code of conduct throughout the Reporting Period.

Corporate Governance

The Company is committed to maintaining the highest standard of
corporate governance practices. Information on the corporate governance
practice adopted by the Company is set out in the Corporate Governance
Report on pages 71 to 93 of this annual report.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information publicly available to the Company and to the
knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued
share capital, the prescribed minimum percentage of public float approved
by the HKSE and permitted under the Listing Rules, are held by the public
at all times during the Reporting Period and up to the date of this report.

Audit Committee

The principal duties of the audit committee of the Company (the “Audit
Committee”) include the review and supervision of the Group’s financial
reporting system, the preparation of financial statements and internal
control procedures. It also acts as an important link between the Board
and the external auditor in matters within the scope of the group audit.

The annual results for the Reporting Period of the Company have been
reviewed by the Audit Committee.
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Auditors

The Company and Ernst & Young (“EY") had been unable to reach
a consensus on the audit fee of EY for the financial year ended 31
December 2019. After considering the facts and circumstances, the Audit
Committee, having been delegated to power to oversee the effectiveness
of the external auditor, was of the view that it would be in the best
interest of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole to replace EY
with another sizeable accounting firm.

The Company had received a letter from EY confirming that there are no
matters in connection with its removal that needs to be brought to the
attention of the Shareholders or the creditors of the Company.

At the Company’s extraordinary general meeting held on 18 July 2019,
the Shareholders removed EY as the auditor of the Group pursuant to
the Company’s articles of association, Crowe (HK) CPA Limited was
appointed as the auditor of the Group in place of EY to hold office until
the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company.

Possible acquisition after the reporting period

On 6 December 2019, the Company entered into a non-legally binding
memorandum of understanding with Ms. Pan Wen, Mr. Gong Tao and Ms.
Xu Jie in relation to the possible acquisition by the Company (or its wholly
owned subsidiary), of the entire equity interest in Zhongshan Sinobioway
Hygiene Biomedicine Co., Ltd* (FILKREZEBEEYELEERAF)
(“Sinobioway Acquisition”). Please refer to the Company’s announcement
dated 6 December 2019 in relation to the Sinobioway Acquisition. As at
the date of this report, the relevant parties are negotiating on terms of
the formal agreement. Save as disclosed above and in this report, there is
no other important event affecting the Group since 31 December 2019
and up to the date of this report.

On behalf of the Board
Huang Xiangbin
Chairman

Sichuan, the PRC, 17 April 2020
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Corporate Governance Practices

The Group is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of the Shareholders and to enhance
corporate value and accountability. The Company has adopted the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code") as set out in Appendix 14
to the Listing Rules as its own code of corporate governance. For the year
ended 31 December 2019, the Company has complied with all applicable
code provisions under the CG Code except for the deviation from code
provision A.2.1 as mentioned in the paragraph headed “Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer” of this report. The key corporate governance
principles and practices of the Company are outlined later in this
report. The Company will continue to review and monitor its corporate
governance practices to ensure compliance with the CG Code.

The Board

Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the Group, oversees
the Group'’s strategic decisions and monitors its business and performance.
The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility for day-to-day
management and operation of the Group to the senior management
of the Group. To oversee particular aspects of the Company’s affairs,
the Board has established four Board committees including the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the nomination committee
(the "Nomination Committee”) and the internal control and corporate
governance committee (the “ICCG Committee”) (together, the “Board
Committees”). The Board has delegated to the Board Committees
responsibilities as set out in their respective terms of reference.

All Directors have carried out duties in good faith and in compliance with
applicable laws and regulations, and have acted in the interests of the
Company and the Shareholders at all times.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance in respect of

legal action against the Directors. The insurance coverage will be reviewed
on an annual basis.
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Board Composition
As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises two executive
Directors and three independent non-executive Directors as follows:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Huang Xiangbin
Ms. Zhang Zhijie

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Lau Ying Kit

Mr. Wang Qing

Mr. Liu Wenfang

The biographies of the Directors are set out under the section headed
“Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report.

During the Reporting Period, the Company has been in compliance with
the requirements under rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules
relating to the appointment of at least three independent non-executive
Directors with at least one independent non-executive Director possessing
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

The Company has also complied with rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules
relating to the appointment of independent non-executive Directors
representing at least one-third of the Board.

The Company believes that the diversity of Board members will be
immensely beneficial for the enhancement of the Company’s performance.
Therefore, the Company has adopted a Board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) to ensure that the Company will, when determining the
composition of the Board, consider Board diversity in terms of, among
other things, age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skills and knowledge. The Board Diversity Policy sets out the
approach towards achieving diversity on the Board. Pursuant to the Board
Diversity Policy, all Board appointments will be based on merits, and
candidates will be considered against objective criteria, having due regard
for the benefits of diversity of the Board.
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As each of the independent non-executive Directors has confirmed his
independence pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, the Company
considers all of them to be independent parties.

Save as disclosed in the Directors’ biographies set out in the section
headed “Directors and Senior Management” in this annual report,
none of the Directors has any personal relationship (including financial,
business, family or other material or relevant relationship) with any other
Director and chief executive.

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors, have
brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge and
professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective functioning.
Independent non-executive Directors are invited to serve on the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee
and the ICCG Committee.

As regards the CG Code provision requiring directors to disclose the
number and nature of offices held in public companies or organisations
and other significant commitments as well as the identity and the time
involved to the issuer, Directors have agreed to disclose their commitments
and any subsequent change to the Company in a timely manner.

Dividend Policy
The Group adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”) on 21
December 2018. A summary of this policy is disclosed as below.

The Dividend Policy is to consider the payment of dividends, to allow

shareholders of the Company to participate in the Company’s profits
whilst retaining adequate reserves for the Group's future growth.
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The Board shall consider the following factors before declaring or
recommending dividends:

the Company’s actual and expected financial performance;

- retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company and
each of the subsidiaries of the Group;

—  the Group’s liquidity position;

—  general economic conditions, business cycle of the Group’s business
and other internal or external factors that may have an impact on
the business or financial performance and position of the Company;
and

- other factors that the Board deems relevant.

The payment of dividend is also subject to any restrictions under the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands and the Articles of Association of
the Company. The Board will continually review the Dividend Policy from
time to time and there can be no assurance that dividends will be paid in
any particular amount for any given period.

Induction and Continuous Professional Development

Each newly appointed Director is provided with necessary induction and
information to ensure that he/she has a proper understanding of the
Company'’s operations and businesses as well as his/her responsibilities
under relevant statues, laws, rules and regulations. The Company also
arranges regular seminars to provide Directors with updates on latest
development and changes in the Listing Rules and other relevant legal and
regulatory requirements from time to time. The Directors are also provided
with regular updates on the Company’s performance, position and
prospects to enable the Board as a whole and each Director to discharge
their duties.

Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The
company secretary of the Company has from time to time updated and
provided written training materials relating to the roles, functions and
duties of a Director to all Directors.
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According to the information provided by the Directors, a summary
of training received by the Directors throughout the year ended 31
December 2019 is as follows:

RIFZZMREMNER - EFERNEE2019F12A31
AIFEAESHEIMES0T

Nature of Continuous
Professional
Development Programmes

Name of Director BEEER FEEXRRTENME
Executive Directors HITEE

Mr. Huang Xiangbin BEWELE A, C&D
Ms. Zhang Zhijie SRR T A B, C&D
Independent Non-executive Directors BUIFHITEE

Mr. Lau Ying Kit BTG E A, C&D
Mr. Wang Qing AR A,B,C&D
Mr. Liu Wenfang BN s A C&D

Notes:

A.  Attending seminars and/or meetings and/or forums and/or briefings

B. Giving talks in the seminars and/or meetings and/or forums

C.  Attending training relevant to the Company’s business conducted by lawyers

D.  Reading materials relevant to corporate governance, director’s duties and
responsibilities, listing rules and other relevant ordinances

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Under code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer should be separate and performed by different
individuals.

Under the organization structure of the Company, Mr. Huang was the
Chairman of the Board and the chief executive officer of the Company
("CEQ"). With Mr. Huang's extensive experience in the pharmaceutical
industry, the Board considered that vesting the roles of chairman
and co-chief executive officer in the same person is beneficial to the
business prospects and management of the Group. The check and
balance of power and authority is ensured by the operation of the senior
management and the Board, which comprises experienced and high
calibre individuals. Accordingly, the Board believes that this arrangement
will not impact on the balance of power and authorizations between the
Board and the management of the Company.
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Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Each of the executive Directors has signed a service contract with the
Company for a term of three years commencing from their respective date
of appointment subject to termination as provided in the service contract.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has signed an
appointment letter with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from their respective date of appointment.

The appointments of executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors are subject to the provisions of retirement and rotation of
Directors under the Articles of Association and the applicable Listing Rules.

None of the Directors has a service contract which is not determinable by
the Group within one year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal
of Directors are set out in the Articles of Association. The Nomination
Committee is responsible for reviewing the Board composition and
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-election
of Directors and succession planning for Directors.

In accordance with the Articles of Association, one-third of the Directors
for the time being (or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three,
then the number nearest to, but not less than, one-third) shall retire from
office by rotation and shall be eligible for re-election and re-appointment
provided that every Director (including those appointed for a specific term)
shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years
at every AGM and any new Director appointed to fill a causal vacancy or
as an addition to the Board shall submit himself/herself for re-election by
Shareholders at the next general meeting after appointment.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal
of Directors are set out in the Articles of Association. The Nomination
Committee is responsible for reviewing the Board composition and
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-election
of Directors and succession planning for Directors.
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Board Meetings

The Company intends to hold Board meetings regularly, at least four times
a year, and at approximately quarterly intervals. Notices of not less than
fourteen days will be given for all regular Board meetings to provide all
Directors with an opportunity to attend and include matters in the agenda
for a regular meeting.

For other Board and Board Committee meetings, reasonable notice
is generally given. The agenda and accompanying board papers are
dispatched to the Directors or Board Committee members at least
three days before the meetings to ensure that they have sufficient time
to review the papers and are adequately prepared for the meetings.
When Directors or Board Committee members are unable to attend a
meeting, they will be advised of the matters to be discussed and given
an opportunity to make their views known to the Chairman prior to the
meeting. Minutes of meetings are kept by the joint company secretary
with copies circulated to all Directors for information and records.

Minutes of the Board meetings and Board Committee meetings are
recorded in sufficient detail about the matters considered by the Board
and the Board Committees and the decisions reached, including any
concerns raised by the Directors. Draft minutes of each Board meeting
and Board Committee meeting are/will be sent to the Directors for
comments within a reasonable time after the date on which the meeting is
held. Minutes of the Board meetings are open for inspection by Directors.

2019 F# EMABEEERARAR

Exgg3

ARRRERRTEFTEEH  8FE2L4KX - A
BEERITEH - MAEFSTERBAKNEHR
RUMELURX22REE  FEARSLES
& BRBNTEHANITEHARANER -

PHMEFEREEZEBEERME - ARF—KRE
BHAEBA - FRLEMNEFE BN ERETT
AMZEI3AFTEETREETZEGNE  UERES
BERREHHEENERAXH RASHIELTD %R -
EXREEZEINEREHESH RS SRS
MG TImNEERRNERRTA AR ERIRES
HENER - ERCEABFERIRMERT - BIAK
REREEMEMN  UH2E R -

EFeSR L EFREEERNERCRSIIERS
RELFZEEMERNEENERNRE  BRES
REMNEMAIFER SEFCTERNESFZEEY
FHNEHRLHERLNBRERRITERRERE
RENFEERES  UHKSREER -EFg9
B EHELEAHEESER -

77



78

Corporate Governance Report ¥ E RS

During the year ended 31 December 2019, four Board meetings and two
general meetings were held and the attendance record of each Director is
set out in the table below:

REZE2019F12A31HILFE - KBTOAESES
YEAMARRAD - SESHHECSIN TR

Attended/
Eligible to attend
the Board meeting(s)

Attended/
Eligible to attend
the general meeting(s)

BHE/WHE BHEAHE
Directors = EZEgeRRE RRXERE
Mr. Huang Xiangbin BEWELE 4/4 212
Ms. Zhang Zhijie sREGRLL 4a/4 212
Mr. Lau Ying Kit e 4/4 212
Mr. Wang Qing = htas 4/4 2/2
Mr. Liu Wenfang B35 EE 4/4 212

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding Directors’
dealings in the Company’s securities.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors and the Directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code for the
Reporting Period.

Delegation by the Board

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters of the Company,
including: approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall strategies
and budgets, internal control and risk management systems, material
transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict of interests),
financial information, appointment of Directors and other significant
financial and operational matters. Directors could have recourse to
seek independent professional advice in performing their duties at the
Company’s expense and are encouraged to access and to consult with the
Company’s senior management independently.

The daily management, administration and operation of the Group are
delegated to the senior management. The delegated functions and
responsibilities are periodically reviewed by the Board. Approval has to be
obtained from the Board prior to any significant transactions entered into
by the management.
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Corporate Governance Function and ICCG Committee
The ICCG Committee currently comprises three members, namely Mr. Lau
Ying Kit (chairman), Mr. Liu Wenfang and Mr. Wang Qing, all of them are

independent non-executive Directors.

The Board recognizes that corporate governance should be the collective

responsibility of the Directors and delegated the corporate governance

duties to the ICCG Committee which includes, without limitation:

(a

to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board;

to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management of the
Company;

to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors of the
Company;

to review the Company’s compliance with the code and disclosure
in the corporate governance report of the Company (the “Corporate
Governance Report”); and

to oversee the Company’s risk management and internal control
systems on an on-going basis and ensure that a review of the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems
of the Company and its subsidiaries has been conducted at least
annually and report to Shareholders that it has done so in its
Corporate Governance Report. The review shall cover all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls.

The written terms of reference of the ICCG Committee are available on
the websites of the HKSE and the Company.
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During the year ended 31 December 2019, one ICCG Committee meeting
was held and the attendance records are set out below:

REZE2019F12A31HILFE - K87 X REE
FIREEREEEEH - DELEHIOT ¢

Attendance

Number of meeting

Directors = R, EERE

Mr. Lau Ying Kit BTG AE ”n

Mr. Wang Qing AR A 11

Mr. Liu Wenfang BSOS E 11

Audit Committee EREES

The Audit Committee currently comprises three members, namely Mr. Lau B ZE@HRIA=ZBKE @ BIFEZIRAELE(E
Ying Kit (chairman), Mr. Liu Wenfang and Mr. Wang Qing, all of them are &) * BIXF LA RIRB L + BEHYRBILIENTT

independent non-executive Directors.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include but not limited to the
following:

(@) to review the relationship with the Auditor by reference to the work
performed by the Auditor, their fees and terms of engagement,
and make recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the Auditor;

(b) to review the financial statements and reports and consider
any significant or unusual items raised by the Company’s staff
responsible for the accounting and financial reporting function,
compliance officer or the Auditor before submission to the Board;
and

(c) to review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s financial
reporting system, internal control system and risk management
system and associated procedures, including the adequacy of the
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programmes
and budget of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting
function.

The written terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available on
the websites of the HKSE and the Company.
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During the year ended 31 December 2019, two Audit Committee
meetings were held and the attendance records of the Audit Committee
Meeting are set out below:

HE2019F12A3MHIEFE  HBITRMAEZELZE
LEE ERZELLRMNLEREERINNT

Attendance/
Number of meeting(s)

Directors B2=x HERE EERE
Mr. Lau Ying Kit BTG E 2/2
Mr. Wang Qing AR EA 2/2
Mr. Liu Wenfang IS5 E 2/2

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises three members,
including two independent non-executive Directors namely Mr. Wang
Qing (chairman), Mr. Liu Wenfang and one executive Director namely Ms.
Zhang Zhijie.

The principal duties of the Remuneration Committee include, but not
limited to, the following:

1. to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy
and structure for all remuneration of the Directors and senior
management and on the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing policy on such remuneration;

2. toreview and approve performance-based remuneration with
reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved by the Board;

3. to determine the remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and senior management. These include benefits in
kind, pension rights and compensation payments, including any
compensation payable for loss or termination of their office or
appointment;

4. to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
non-executive Directors;
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5.  to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group;

6. to review and approve compensation payable to executive Directors
and senior management for any loss or termination of office or
appointment to ensure that it is consistent with contractual terms
and is otherwise fair and not excessive;

7. toreview and approve compensation arrangements relating to
dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct to ensure that they
are consistent with contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable
and appropriate; and

8.  to ensure that no Director or any of his/her associates (as defined in
the Listing Rules) is involved in deciding his/her own remuneration.

The written terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
available on the websites of the HKSE and the Company.

During the Reporting Period, two Remuneration Committee meetings
were held and the attendance records are set out below:
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Attendance/

Number of meeting

Directors B 2978 V- /N
Mr. Wang Qing AR 2/2
Ms. Zhang Zhijie sRAEGELZ T 2/2
Mr. Liu Wenfang B35t 2/2
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee currently comprises three members, including
one executive Director namely Mr. Huang Xiangbin (chairman), and two
independent non-executive Directors namely Mr. Liu Wenfang and Mr.
Lau Ying Kit.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include the following:

1. to review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

2. to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members
and select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection
of individuals nominated for directorships;

3. toassess the independence of independent non-executive Directors;

4. to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and the succession planning for Directors,
in particular the chairman and the chief executive officer; and;

5. toreview the Board diversity policy.

The Company recognizes the importance of diversity in board members to
corporate governance and the board effectiveness. The purposes of the
Board Diversity Policy are to set out the basic principles to be followed to
ensure that (i) a diverse range of candidates are considered; and (ii) the
Board has the appropriate balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives necessary to enhance the effectiveness of the Board and to
maintain high standards of corporate governance. Board nomination and
appointments will be made on merit basis on its business needs from time
to time while taking into account the benefits of diversity.

Selection of board candidates shall be based on a range of diversity
perspectives with reference to the Company’s business model and
specific needs, including but not limited to gender, age, race, language,
cultural background, educational background, industry experience and
professional experience. The ultimate decision shall be based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates shall bring to the Board.
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For the purpose of implementation of the Board Diversity Policy, the
following measurable objectives were adopted:

(i)  Independence: The Board should include a balanced composition
of executive and non-executive Director (including independent
non-executive Directors) so that there is a strong element of
independence in the Board. The independent non-executive
Directors shall be of sufficient caliber and stature for their views to
carry weight.

(i) Skills and experience: The Board possesses a balance of skills
appropriate for the requirements of the business of the Company.
The Directors have a mix of finance, academic and management
backgrounds that taken together provide the Company with
considerable experience in a range of activities.

Apart from the above objectives, the board diversity policy has the
following objectives to comply with the Listing Rules:

1. At least one-third of the members of the Board shall be independent
non-executive Directors;

2. At least three of the members of the Board shall be independent
non-executive Directors; and

3. At least one of the members of the Board shall have obtained
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise.

The Board has achieved the measurable objectives in the Board Diversity
Policy.

The Nomination Committee assesses the candidate or incumbent on
criteria such as integrity, experience, skill and ability to commit time and
effort to carry out the duties and responsibilities. The recommendations of
the Nomination Committee will then be put to the Board for decision. The
written terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are available on
the websites of the HKSE and the Company.
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During the Reporting Period, two Nomination Committee meeting was ~ RIREHEIRN - DRITMAIREEZE €83 - HELE
held and the attendance records are set out below: T

Attendance/
Number of meeting
Directors = HERE FBRE
Mr. Huang Xiangbin BEWEE 2/2
Mr. Lau Ying Kit 2z @Kﬁ'ﬁﬂi 2/2
Mr. Liu Wenfang BIN5 S E 2/2
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Nomination Policy
1. Objective
1.1 The Nomination Committee shall review the structure, size and
composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience) of
the Board at least annually and make recommendations on any
proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy.

1.2 The Nomination Committee shall nominate suitable candidates
to the Board for it to consider and make recommendations to
Shareholders for election as Director as general meetings or
appoint him/her to fill causal vacancies.

1.3 The nomination policy of the Company (the “Nomination
Policy”) helps the Nomination Committee and the Board to
ensure that the Board has a balance of skills, experience and
diversity of perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the
Group’s business.

2. Selection Criteria
2.1 The factors listed below would be used as reference by
the Nomination Committee in assessing the suitability of a
proposed candidate.

(1) Reputation for integrity;

(2) Commitment in respect of available time and relevant
interest; and

(3) Diversity of the Board in all its aspects, including but
not limited to gender, age (18 years or above), cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.

These factors are for reference only, and are not meant to be

exhaustive and decisive. The Nomination Committee has the
discretion to nominate any person, as it considers appropriate.
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3.

Nomination Procedures
3.1 Appointment of Directors

(M

The Nomination Committee identifies individual(s)
suitably qualified to become Board members, having due
regard to the Nomination Policy and the Board Diversity
Policy, and assesses the independence of the proposed
independent non-executive Director(s) as appropriate.

The Nomination Committee makes recommendation(s) to
the Board.

The Board considers the individual(s) recommended by
the Nomination Committee, having due regard to the
Nomination Policy and the Board Diversity Policy.

The Board confirms the appointment of the individual(s)
as Director(s) or recommends the individual(s) to stand for
election at a general meeting. Individual(s) appointed by
the Board either to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition
to the Board will be subject to re-election by Shareholders
at the next following general meeting, in accordance with
the Article of Association.

The Shareholders approve the election of individual(s),
who stand(s) for election at general meeting, as
Director(s).

3.2 Re-appointment of Directors

(1

The Nomination Committee considers each retiring
Director, having due regard to the Nomination Policy and
the Board Diversity Policy, and assesses the independence
of each retiring independent non-executive Director.

The Nomination Committee makes recommendation(s) to
the Board.

The Board considers each retiring Director recommended
by the Nomination Committee, having due regard to the
Nomination Policy and the Board Diversity Policy.
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The Board recommends the retiring Directors to stand for
re-election at the annual general meeting in accordance
with the Articles of Association.

The Shareholders approve the re-election of Directors at
the annual general meeting.

3.3 The Board shall have the ultimate responsibility for all matters
relating to the selection and appointment of Directors.

4. Review of the Nomination Policy

4.1 The Nomination Committee will review the Nomination Policy,
as appropriate, to ensure the effectiveness of the Nomination
Policy. The Nomination Committee will discuss any revisions
that may be required, and recommend any such revisions to

the Board for consideration and approval.

Remuneration of Directors and Senior Management
Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 8 to the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report. The remuneration
of senior management, whose biographies are set out on pages 158 to
161 of this annual report, for the Reporting Period are set out below:

EReRBABEIRAREREIE
ERBRBFREG LERET -

BERPERBFARG LIESRE
=o

(5)

EEeUABBERZREFNMESE
BHERRAE-

3.3

4. RATEEHFE
41 REZESBHRFIERECE(RBERAERM
E)  LBRIBEBBRITZEN - REEE
g wmIMAREAERNER - BR
EFESRBBITNERESR  UHEFS
Z @RI -

EENEREEENEH

EXEHMF BN AFRIESMBEHRRMES - 2R
EEE(RENBEEHNAFRFE158E161H)RRE
HINEFENEZI T -

Number of individual

Remuneration band (RMB) FMsE(ARE) AE
Below 1,000,000 1,000,000L4 ~ 3

Directors’ Responsibilities for Financial Reporting in
Respect of Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2019 which give a true and
fair view of the affairs of the Company and the Group and of the Group’s
results and cash flows.

The management has provided to the Board such explanation and
information as are necessary to enable the Board to carry out an informed
assessment of the Company’s financial statements, which are put to the
Board for approval. The Company provides all members of the Board
with monthly updates on the Company's performance, positions and
prospects.

The Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties relating to

events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern.
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The statement by the Auditor regarding their reporting responsibilities on
the consolidated financial statements of the Company is set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 97 to 100 of this annual report.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board acknowledges that it is the responsibility of the Board for
maintaining an adequate risk management and internal control systems
to safeguard Shareholder investments and Company assets and reviewing
the effectiveness of such system on an annual basis.

The Group's internal audit department plays a major role in monitoring
the internal governance of the Company. The major tasks of the internal
audit department are reviewing the financial condition and internal
control of the Company and conducting comprehensive audits of all
branches and subsidiaries of the Company on a regular basis.

The Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group and considered
the risk management and internal control system to be effective and
adequate.

Main Characteristics of the Risk Management and
Internal Control Systems

The Group's risk management framework is structured in the following
“Three Lines of Defense” model as a guide:
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The Board acknowledges its responsibility of overseeing the Group's
risk management and internal control systems and reviewing their
effectiveness at least annually through the ICCG Committee and the Audit
Committee. Such review encompasses all major control aspects, including
finance, operation and compliance. Such risk management and internal
control systems can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss, as they are designed to manage,
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives.

The Board has completed its annual review of the internal control and risk
management systems of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2019, with all the above major control aspects covered. The Board has
considered the operation of risk management and internal control systems
to be generally adequate and effective, with no significant areas brought
to its attention during the year.

The ICCG Committee and the Audit Committee assist the Board to fulfill
its responsibilities of risk management and internal control, ensuring
adequate resources, staff qualifications and experience, staff training
courses and related budgets for the Group in executing its accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting functions. The committees also
considers the important investigation results concerning the matters of
risk management and internal control, reports to and raise suggestions to
the Board.

1st Line of Defense

By preparing a risk list with risk control responsibility allocated to
departments, the Group is able to deliver risk management across all
the business departments. These departments continuously review and
assess the risks that may have a potential impact on corporate operation,
and effectively execute the process control for business according to the
respective functions and departmental regulations, all in a bid to raise the
efficiency in risk management.

2nd Line of Defense

Composed of nominated department managers and senior management,
the Risk Management and Internal Control Team organizes business
departments to identify, assess and manage the risks that may have a
potential impact on corporate operation, and ensures the implementation
of proper measures and internal control regulations to address major
risks. In the meantime, the Team monitors risks and takes measures to
reduce the risks in daily operation, provides timely response to and follow
up of the investigation results of internal control from the Internal Audit
Department, and confirms to the Board as to the effectiveness of such risk
management and internal control systems.
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3rd Line of Defense

The Internal Audit Department executes the actual review procedure, to
collect the evidence on the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems, and report the review
results to the ICCG Committee. In addition, the Internal Audit Department
raises suggestions to the Board and the management, to address major
institutional inadequacies or any control loopholes spotted.

Procedures Applied for Identifying, Assessing and

Managing Major Risks

- Determining the scope: preparing uniform risk terms and risk
assessment standards for the Group

—  Risk identification: identifying the risks that may have a potential
impact on corporate operation

—  Risk assessment: considering risks in respect of the degree of
importance of their impact on business and their occurrence, and
assessing the risks identified

—  Risk management: establishing risk management policies and
internal control procedures, to avert or reduce risks

—  Risk monitoring and reporting: continuously monitoring relevant
risks, ensuring proper procedures of internal control, and regularly
reporting to the management and the Board on the results of risk
monitoring

Function of Internal Audit

The Group's Internal Audit Department plays a major role in monitoring
the internal governance of the Company. The Internal Audit Department’s
main responsibilities are to review the financial conditions and internal
control of the Company and all its subsidiaries, communicate with
department managers and senior management on the identified
problems, non-compliance issues and inadequacies, and jointly prepare
rectification and improvement solutions. The Internal Audit Department
also follows such rectification results, and reports to the ICCG Committee
and the Audit Committee.
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Information Disclosure System

The Group has formulated its information disclosure system, to ensure the
identification and confidentiality of potential inside information until it is
disclosed according to the Listing Rules in a consistent and timely manner.
The procedures for publishing and processing inside information include:

o Business department managers as the people in charge of
information reporting;

o Senior management as the people in charge of the information
confidentiality of their respective business segments;

e The Board as the party in charge of information disclosure; and

e  The Investor Relations Department and the Board Secretary as
the parties responsible for managing information disclosure, the
reporting, audit and disclosure of information which needs public
announcement, and archiving and keeping such information
disclosure documents and announcements.

Auditor’s Remuneration

The remuneration for the audit services provided by the Auditor to the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2019 was approximately
RMB1,850,000. There is no remuneration paid to the Auditor in respect of
non-audit services.

Company Secretary

Ms. Peng Yunlu (“Ms. Peng”), one of our joint company secretaries of the
Company, is responsible for advising the Board on corporate governance
matters and ensuring that the Board policies and procedures, as well as
the applicable laws, rules and regulations are followed.

In order to uphold good corporate governance and ensure compliance
with the Listing Rules and applicable Hong Kong laws, the Company also
engages Ms. Li Ching Yi (“Ms. Li"”), manager of Trident Corporate Services
(Asia) Limited, as another joint company secretary to assist Ms. Peng to
discharge her duties as company secretary of the Company. The primary
corporate contact person at the Company is Ms. Peng, one of the joint
company secretaries of the Company.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, Ms. Peng and Ms. Li have
undertaken not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
respectively in compliance with rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

During the Reporting Period, Ms. Leung Suet Lun (“Ms. Leung”) resigned
as a joint company secretary of the Company with effect from 29 March
2019. Following the resignation of Ms. Leung, Ms. Ko Wing Yu (“Ms.
Ko"”) became the sole company secretary of the Company up to her
resignation on 25 October 2019. Following the resignation of Ms. Ko, Ms.
Peng and Ms. Li were appointed as the joint company secretaries of the
Company with effect from 25 October 2019.
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Communication with Shareholders and Investor Relations
The Company considers that effective communication with the
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
understanding of the Group’s business, performance and strategies. The
Company also recognizes the importance of timely and non-selective
disclosure of information, which will enable Shareholders and investors to
make the informed investment decisions.

The AGM provides opportunity for the Shareholders to communicate
directly with the Directors. The Chairman of the Company and the
chairmen of the Board Committees will attend the AGM to answer
Shareholders’ questions. The Auditor will also attend the AGM to answer
questions about the conduct of the audit, the preparation and content
of the independent auditor’s report, the accounting policies and auditor
independence.

To promote effective communication, the Company adopts a shareholders’
communication policy which aims at establishing a two-way relationship
and communication between the Company and the Shareholders and
maintains a website of the Company at www.sinco-pharm.com, where
up-to-date information on the Company’s business operations and
developments, financial information, corporate governance practices and
other information are available for public access.

Shareholders’ Rights

To safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate resolution will
be proposed for each issue at general meetings, including the election of
individual Directors.

All resolutions put forward at general meetings will be voted by poll
pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on the
websites of the Company and the HKSE in a timely manner after each
general meeting.
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Convening of extraordinary general meeting and putting
forward proposals

Shareholders may put forward proposals for consideration at a general
meeting of the Company according to the Articles of Association. Any
one or more members holding as at date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times
have the right, by written requisition to the Board or any one of the joint
company secretaries of the Company, to require an extraordinary general
meeting of the Company to be called by the Board for the transaction
of any business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be
held within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21
days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting
the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner,
and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of
the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

As regards proposing a person for election as a Director, the procedures
are available on the website of the Company.

Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders who intend to put forward their enquiries about the
Company to the Board could send their enquiries to the headquarters
of the Company at E5-1805, Global Centre, No. 1700, North section of
Tianfu Avenue, High-Tech Zone, Chengdu, Sichuan, PRC. (email address:
sinco-pharm@sinco-pharm.com).

Change in Constitutional Documents

The amended and restated Memorandum and Articles of Association have
been adopted on 1 February 2016 and with effect from the Listing Date.
And there were no significant changes in the Memorandum and Articles
of Association of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2019.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
18 M % BEM R

A\ Crowe

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
SINCO PHARMACEUTICALS HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sinco
Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
"Group”) set out on pages 101 to 217 which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2019, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis For Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA"). Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”) and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.
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Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Preparation of the consolidated financial statements on a
going concern basis

Refer to note 2.1 to the consolidated financial statements.

BARETEEH(E)

BIEREEERRGS

BRIk

AT mAMTE2.1 -

n% 2 Eﬁ‘j?‘?

The Key Audit Matter
BRETSE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EENBHNAEEZSBE

To support the going concern basis in preparing the
consolidated financial statements, management has prepared
a cash flow forecast of the Group covering the next twelve
months from 31 December 2019 and concluded that there will
be sufficient funds from the Group’s existing cash resources,
available facilities from bank and an independent third
party and cash flows to be generated from its operations to
finance its future operations and enable it to meet its financial
obligations as and when they fall due in the next 12 months
from 31 December 2019.

The cash flow forecast involved key assumptions such as
revenue growth, gross profit margin, and availability of banking
facilities and availability of facilities from an independent third
party to the Group.

We focused on this assessment as it involves consideration of
future events and application of significant judgements and
estimates and accordingly, this was an area of audit focus.
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Our audit procedures included, amongst others, assessment
of the appropriateness of key assumptions in the cash flow
forecast, including revenue growth, gross profit margin by
referencing to actual historical performance of the Group and
making reference to the Group’s future development plan. We
tested the mathematical accuracy of the projections.

We also confirmed the cash resources and available banking
facilities as at year end by circularisation of bank confirmations.

We also obtained a financial support letter provided to the
Group from an independent third party, which is an import
agent of the Group, and also obtained a confirmation from
it to confirm the payable due to it by the Group of RMB
195,962,000 can be repaid on or before 30 June 2021 based
on the financial condition. We also assessed the financial
capability of that import agent providing financial support to
the Group.

Further, we evaluated the sensitivity of the projected available
cash by considering downside scenarios through applying
reasonably plausible changes to the key assumptions, including
revenue growth.

We considered, based on our audit procedures performed, that
the use of going concern basis of accounting to be supportable
by available evidence.
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Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Impairment assessment of other property, plant and

equipment

Refer to notes 2.3(e), 2.3(h)(ii), 3 and 12 to the consolidated financial

statements.

FRETEE(E)
HAp¥3 - BB MR BHRET G

BRI A M REMEE2.3(e) ~ 2.3(h)(i) ~3/K%12 -

The Key Audit Matter
HRENSEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EENETNAREZEE

As at 31 December 2019, other property, plant and
equipment held by the Group amounted to approximately
RMB198,034,000. The recoverable amount of the other
property, plant and equipment is determined by management
at the higher of the value in use and the fair value less cost of
disposal of these assets.

In determining the fair value less cost of disposal of other
property, plant and equipment, the Group engaged an external
valuer to perform that valuation. The valuation process was
inherently subjective and dependent on a number of estimates,
therefore this is considered as a key audit matter.

R2019F12H31H + BEEFERMYE - BiEREZEIA
FRH198,034,0007T » Eg= - Bifs R AT AT % B8 #
B EIEEEANFERHEZEEER LN R E
;f °

RETLFEREMYZE - BERZENLERTE - B
BZ FI BB ERETT BB 1E - (418 BN E_F BT B
FRZIEGE - MR (R EFE -
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The audit procedures included:

—  considering the independence and competence of the
external valuer employed by the Group;

— evaluating the valuation methodology and the
assumptions adopted by the valuer, with the assistance
from our internal valuation expert;

—  evaluating the data used as inputs for the valuation and
comparing such data with market data of comparable

properties;

—  discussing with management on key assumptions and
judgements need in the valuation.

EHEF R
- EE BEREMRZREIEMLERN BB T

= EENAIEEERA B T T Z (4 B/ AT ER AN
EEIDERERR

- FHEREGEEBABERNEE  YHBRZEREETE
LB TTISEUR

- HEEEENWGENTN BRI -
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Information other than the Consolidated Financial
Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with IFRSs issued by IASB and the disclosure requirements of
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

2019 F# EMABEEERARAR
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a
body and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional

judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.

98

We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

2019 F# EMABEEERARAR
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

Crowe (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 17 April 2020

Sze Chor Chun, Yvonne
Practising Certificate Number PO5049
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
meBEmkEMmEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019F12A318ILFE

2019 2018
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BitsE AR%T R ARBTFIT
REVENUE W& 4 1,176,409 952,957
Cost of sales THEMR AR (960,373) (731,932)
Gross profit EF 216,036 221,025
Other income and gains HAp g A R dzs 5 15,055 12,115
Selling and distribution expenses SHE MRS (114,536) (268,576)
Administrative expenses THRX (45,805) (55,497)
Impairment loss on goodwill EEREEE 15 - (23,701)
Impairment losses on trade receivables B RN EIBRERE 19 (1.326) (951)
Reversal of impairment loss/(impairment losses) &t AFA 0IE « EH b EIGIE
on financial assets included in prepayments, MEMEENSREERE
other receivables and other assets EEE R CRERR) 54 (526)
Other expenses HiRAx (7.151) (121,086)
Profit/(loss) from operations REFRBIRF(BR) 62,327 (237,197)
Finance costs BFRER AN 6 (20,026) (34,818)
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX BRBLATEF (B18) 7 42,301 (272,015)
Income tax expense s 9 (19,405) (8,600)
PROFIT/(LOSS) AND TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE & X5%%],/ (FiE) R
INCOME/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR ZEWE (5888 22,896 (280,615)
Attributable to: LA ALFEL :
Owners of the Company NARIERA 22,898 (280,614)
Non-controlling interests FEIERR R (2 (1
22,896 (280,615)
Earnings/(loss) per share BREFN,(BA) 11 RMB RMB
AR¥RT ARETT
Basic K 0.014 (0.166)
Diluted e 0.014 (0.166)
The notes on pages 108 to 217 form part of these financial statements. F108E217E MM HBRZEMIBIREN —FH -

2019 54 WHABEERARAT 101



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e BRI R

As at 31 December 2019 72019412 831H

2019 2018
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
k=2 AR¥T R AREBFT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Investment property REME 12 7,133
Other, property, plant and equipment EMYE - BB NRE 12 198,034 181,809
205,167 181,809
Intangible assets ‘AR 13 45 113
Payments in advance B RIE 14 3,665 39,455
Goodwill S 15 - -
Deposit e 16 - 3,000
Deferred tax assets EAEFIEEE 17 721 1,300
Total non-current assets FRBEEME 209,598 225,677
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Inventories 78 18 250,963 214,806
Trade and bills receivables 2 2 RN EIE R R E 19 30,710 26,177
Prepayments, other receivables and FERFIE - At EHGRIE R
other assets HihEE 16 46,108 64,759
Other financial assets measured REER AT ENEM
at amortised cost TREE 20 1,990 =
Pledged bank balances DIEIRIRTTAESR 21(a) 5,001 13
Cash and cash equivalents HeNEEEEY 21(a) 219,755 80,330
Total current assets REBEEAE 554,527 386,085
CURRENT LIABILITIES nREBAE
Trade payables 2 5 ERNIA 22 146,158 106,901
Contract liabilities SRAE 23 38,582 129,670
Other payables and accruals H b I R e IR 24 137,764 205,525
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings FTERIT REMBER 25 187,484 145,000
Lease liabilities HERE 26 1,022 =
Tax payable e R 11,361 1,943
Total current liabilities REAEARHE 522,371 589,039
NET CURRENT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) REBEE/(BE)FE 32,156 (202,954)
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBARE 241,754 22,723
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION #R&

As at 31 December 2019 72019412 H31H

BRI AR

2019 2018
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
iE=s AR¥T T ARBFT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBEE
Lease liabilities HEERE 26 154 =
Other payable H b e hE 24 195,962 -
Total non-current liabilities FRBABEEE 196,116 =
NET ASSETS BEEFE 45,638 22,723
EQUITY xR
Equity attributable to owners of RAREE AEIE
the Company En
Issued capital BEITIRAR 27 136 136
Reserves i 46,410 23,493
46,546 23,629
Non-controlling interests R ER (908) (906)
TOTAL EQUITY AT 45,638 22,723

Approved and authorised for issues by the board of directors on 17 April

2020.

Huang Xiangbin
MW
Director

EF

R2020F4 17 BEE S ARETIE -

Liu Wenfang

B3

Director

EF

The notes on pages 108 to 217 form part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GAEREDE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z2019F 12 A31HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KATHEAER
Changes
Share Share in non- Non-
Issued  premium Contributed  Statutory option  controlling  Acumulated controlling Total
capital account surplus reserve reserve  interests losses Total interests equity
FER

BETRE ROEER E4EE  iERE BRERE  BEE®  ZHER a  FBREE  BREE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARBTT ARETR ARMTR ARETT ARMTR ARBTn ARETR ARETLT ARMTR
(note27)  (note29(@)  (note 29(b))  (note 29(c)  (note 29(cf)
(eor)  (Wi29e)  (Wiow)  (WE290)  (H:290)

At 1 January 2018 201851518 130 258,887 4250 14,529 2,347 4014 (10,686) 27341 (905) 272,566
Shares issued on conversion of R ETARESTEIRE

convertible bonds (note 27(a) (Hr#27) 6 30,226 - - - - - 30232 - 30232
Loss and total comprehensive loss for the year ~ ERNEER2EEELESE = = = = = - (280614 (280614 (1) (280615
Equity-settled share-based transaction NEREEHRNIARS

(note 7) (Hi#7) - - - - 540 - - 540 = 540
At 31 December 2018 2018512318 136 289,113* 4,250 14,509* 2,887* 4014% (291,300 23,609 (906) 2,13
At 1 January 2019 20195118 136 289,113 4,250 14,529 2,887 4014 (291,300) 23,629 (906) 2,13
Profit and total comprehensive income ENERIREERE

for the year g - - - - - - 22,898 22,898 @ 22,896
Transfer from accumulated losses ERRZHER - - - 2,186 - - (2,186) - - -
Equity-settled share-based transaction WEREEHRNEIARS

(note 7) (i) - - - - 19 - - 19 - 19
At 31 December 2019 R20195128318 136 289,113* 4,250* 16,715* 2,906* 4,014%  (270,588)* 46,546 (908) 45,638

* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of RMB46,410,000  * ZERBERBEGEVBRARANGEHBARE
(2018: RMB23,493,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position. 46,410,0007T(20184F : AR#23,493,0007T) °

The notes on pages 108 to 217 form part of these financial statements. H108E217T AR AL I HREN — D
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

1‘/_.R EE/@U“JE%%

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019F12A318ILFE

2019 2018
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
(Restated)
BisE ARETR AREFT
(&%)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES ReEy
Profit/(loss) before tax BEATEF, (BB) 42,301 (272,015)
Adjustments for: FHEATEIE
Depreciation neE 7 10,333 10,363
Amortisation of intangible assets BB EEN 7 68 110
Unrealised foreign exchange gain REIE N 2 (63) (29)
Losses on disposal of items of property, HEME  BEREE
plant and equipment THH BB 7 39 =
Equity-settled share DA S E MR AL
share-based payment expense 7 19 540
Interest income FLEHA 5 (311) (627)
Finance costs B AR N 20,026 34,818
Foreign exchange gains, net, EHRFITERE
on bonds and bank loans HNE I \@‘%ﬁ - (4,534)
Consulting fees in relation to financing activities i & EB)EEZAE - 1,346
Write-off of inventories TFE M 7 106 117,875
Impairment of trade receivables B S REUGRIRRE 7 1,326 951
(Reversal of impairment loss)/impairment of STATENFOE - EthEWEIE
financial assets included in prepayments, REMEENSRERE
other receivables and other assets CREEIERE) RE 7 (54) 526
Impairment of goodwill EERE 7 - 23,701
73,790 (86,975)
Changes in working capital BEEGEE
(Increase)/decrease in trade and bills receivables B ZEWZRIB R
FEMEIE (8 m),/ R (5,859) 9,814
Decrease in prepayments, TR FRIE - HAEYGRIE R
other receivables and other assets HpEERD 21,705 81,071
Increase in inventories FEEM (36,263) (41,488)
Decrease in payments in advance BRFIERD 4,662 931
Increase in trade payables B S e RIEIE A 39,257 84,379
Increase in other payables and accruals H A S 5008 K AT RUE
N 119,911 120,710
(Decrease)/increase in contract liabilities BHBEBCRD),/HEm (91,947) 88,167
Cash generated from operations HERSHEE 125,256 256,609
Interest received B URE 311 627
Tax paid BERHHIE (9,408) (1,344)
NET CASH FLOWS GENERATED FROM RETBME
OPERATING ACTIVITIES RERERE 116,159 255,892

2019 F# EMABEEERARAR
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows Zx&

Eﬁﬁulbi%‘%

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #;{Z=2019F 12 A31HILFE

2019 2018
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
(Restated)
BisE AR¥TR ARBF T
(E7)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REED
Purchase of items of property, BEWE  BEIEREERE
plant and equipment (555) (1,154)
Increase in payments in advance FERTFIAE - (258)
Settlement of financial liability at fair value SEABEEERRATE
through profit or loss classified as held for STABZNERABEE
trading - (218)
Payment for acquisition of wealth management  URBEHZ#E SERK AT 2
products classified as other financial asset SERHEMEREER
measured at amortised cost BB EMTR (21,990) (25,000)
Proceeds from disposal of wealth management & IREH AT 2
products classified as other financial assets DEBEMSREEDN
measured at amortised cost B E RTS8 20,000 25,000
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES ~ REZBFIARSFE (2,545) (1,630)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES ~ BEEEIFISRERE
Capital element of lease rentals paid BERNESNERT S (871) =
Interest element of lease rentals paid BERESHF B (92) =
Other borrowing costs paid BERNEMEERAR (10,785) (20,021)
Net proceeds from issue of convertible BT ES R EH
bonds and bonds {3 R IE)F 88 - 30,559
Repayment of bonds BERS - (129,145)
Proceeds from bank and other borrowings RITREMIERTERIE 47,484 334,149
Repayment of bank and other borrowings BERITNEMER (5,000) (465,141)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM/(USED IN) BMEFEHME(FTA)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES ReRE 30,736 (249,599)

Sinco Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2019



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows Zxr&

EEJ%UILIE%‘:Z

For the year ended 31 December 2019 &{Z=2019F 12 A31HILFE

2019 2018
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
(Restated)
fisE ARETR AREFT
(E7)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH BeRBELZEEY
EQUIVALENTS B 144,350 4,663
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net GNETE RE B 2 FE 63 29
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year ~ FHB3R& KRS HED 80,343 75,651
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FERBERBELEEY
END OF YEAR 224,756 80,343
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF RERBREZEY
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ®EBROMW
Cash at banks and on hand RTRFHERAS 21 219,755 80,330
Time deposits with original maturity of less than ~ EUSKF R E|H B i@ =8 A 21
three months when acquired, pledged as REEREERNERER
security for letters of credit 5,001 13
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AS STATED G&aBERERMIEER
IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF REZEY
CASH FLOWS 224,756 80,343
The notes on pages 108 to 217 form part of these financial statements. F108E217E MM HIBKRZEMIBIMEN —F 5 -
2019 3 EIRIERBEZERER AR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SRS E R

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019F12A318ILFE

Corporate and Group Information

Sinco Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a limited
liability company incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 16 March
2015. The registered office address of the Company is P.O. Box 309,
Ugland House, Grand Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman Islands. The
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong is Unit 3105,
Office Tower, Convention Plaza, 1 Harbour Road, Wan Chai, Hong
Kong with effect from 29 January 2019.

During the year ended 31 December 2019 (the “Reporting Period”),
the Company and it subsidiaries (collectively referred to the
“Group”) were principally engaged in marketing, promotion and
channel management services for improved human plasma-based
pharmaceuticals, antibiotics and other pharmaceuticals focused
on therapeutic areas and complementary to human plasma-based
products and other fast-growing categories in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC"). There were no significant changes in the
nature of the Group's principal activities during the Reporting Period.

In the opinion of directors of the Company (“the Directors”), Risun
Investments Limited (“Risun”), a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands (“BVI"), is the parent and the ultimate holding
company of the Company and Mr. Huang Xiangbin (“Mr. Huang") is
the ultimate controlling party of the Group.

Information about subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31 December
2019 are as follows:

NAREEER

R REBEIERBRAT(AAT]) BHR2015
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Notes to Financial Statements B 7% ¥R R M 5E
For the year ended 31 December 2019 # %2019 12 A31H It FE

1. Corporate and Group Information (Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

1. DEAIREEER(
MEARER(E)

=]

=)

=

Place of
incorporation/ Percentage of
registration and Class of Issuedand  equity attributable
Name place of business shares held paid-up capital to the Company  Principal activities
ERAL/ ZMESR BEIR KT
£ EEBY RAGER HRRA BRADMN TEEH
Direct Indirect
HE 553
% %

Hong Kong Prosperous Group Hong Kong Ordinary 100 shares - 100 Purchase of pharmaceutical
Holding Limited Bk L@ 1008 R (7 products for group companies

EABREEZRERAT and investment holding

REBNTREEQRRARR

Sichuan Sinco Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd.%  PRC Registered RMB50,000,000 - 100 Sale of pharmaceutical products
(“Sichuan Sinco Pharmaceuticals") H gl AR¥50,000,0007C and investment holding

W) BRAEEEREL AT HEERRRERR
(Tm)EpEEZ])

Chengdu Sinco Pharmaceutical PRC Registered RMB22,000,000 - 100 Providing warehouse facilities for
Technology Co., Ltd. # B AR22,000,0007 pharmaceutical products
(*Chengdu Sinco Technology”) RUERAER

RABERABERMAREEARY
(TR ERE R ])

Qingdao Ruichi Pharmaceuticals Co., PRC Registered RMB10,000,000 - 100 Sale of pharmaceutical products
Ltd.® (" Qingdao Ruichi") H gl AK#10,000,0007 HEER

BB EXERAR0([F5M5H])

Chengdu Sinco Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd.f PRC Registered US$10,000,000 100 - Sale of pharmaceutical products
("Chengdu Sinco Pharmaceuticals”) ~ H1E 2t 10,000,000%7T HEER

RERNEBEERATO
(IRAENEEE])

(i) Sichuan Sinco Pharmaceuticals is registered as a limited liability (i) PO)I| BRI R BIED R ARAFMABR AR
company (solely invested by corporation in Taiwan, Hong Kong or (BREEATBE) -
Macau) under laws of the PRC.

(i) These subsidiaries are registered as limited liability company (solely (iiy ZSEMBRARBETEAEZAMABREARCE
invested by corporation) under laws of the PRC. ABE) -

(i) Chengdu Sinco Pharmaceuticals is registered as wholly foreign-owned (i) PREPERIABERIEPBIAEIMAINERE -

enterprise under laws of the PRC.

2019 F# EMABEEERARAR
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Notes to Financial Statements B 73Rk 3R fi&E
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #;{Z=2019F 12 A31HILFE

2.1 Basis of Preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
all applicable International Financial Reporting standards (“IFRSs"),
which collective term includes all applicable individual IFRS,
International Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB"),
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Significant accounting policies adopted by the Group are disclosed
below.

The IASB has issued certain new and revised IFRSs which are first
effective or available for early adoption for the current accounting
period of the Group. Note 2.2 provides information on any changes
in accounting policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to the Group for
the current and prior accounting periods reflected in these financial
statements.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2019 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries. ltems
included in the financial statements of each entity in the Group are
measured using the currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (the “functional currency”). These
financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB"), which is
the Company'’s functional and presentation currency.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is the historical cost basis.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying amounts of assets and liabilities not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

2.1 REEE

ZERBRRIZRAAERN BRI REER
(TERFBHREER ) (REREHENZES
(TER e ERZR B S ) RIGAATE E R [E 5 E
MR @RS R - BRI (B g5t £
A1) k2B AR E B R ARG ER
EMRE - REMBEBRRNTETEERARIME
RABIES LW R E R RE GRS -

REEMRANERSTBERBEENAT -

REFENRE S RANAREAR S HIM
BREMEH AR R RREE T #7] RAIERTE
PR TSRS 2ER o MiFE2. 2R B EIRER Lt
EHR] RS AT RS B R S E T R
AR AZEPBRRRRNA S R8T
BrTHHREAEEREERR -

HZE2019F12 A31H IEFEMERE P BRERE
ERRNRIREMBAR - KEBZERBIMBF®RE
FraEkis B IR B SR E ZLBERIENEE
([T BB Dt E - ZSHBHREAARB (A
REBDEY  MARBARQTMNERZEYE
qu o

RE TS MR TG BEERE L RAEE -

BT A B M BS RS R M R - B
BAFLZEBRRERALAEZHREE  AF K
ANFRAXSEHFE - that REBR - that R ER
BRENBELRIERBBERL TRIESENS
HEMAR - BRGRERAEELS EMRIR
HIREBNEERABREENEE - BRER
AT BEB RIN R E AT o
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Notes to Financial Statements B 73R 3R Mi&E
For the year ended 31 December 2019 &{Z=2019F 12 A31HILFE

2.1 RBEE(E)

2.1 Basis of Preparation (Continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of IFRSs that
have significant effect on the financial statements and major sources
of estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 3.

Going concern basis

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group incurred a
consolidated profit of RMB22,896,000 (2018: consolidated loss of
RMB280,615,000). As at 31 December 2019, the Group had net
current assets of RMB32,156,000 (2018: net current liabilities of
RMB202,954,000).

The Directors have given consideration to the future liquidity and
performance of the Group and its available sources of finance in
assessing whether the Group will have sufficient financial resources
to continue as a going concern. To sustain the Group as a going
concern and to monitor the Group's liquidity and cash flow, the
Group implemented or is in the process of implementing the
following measures:

(@) Asat 31 December 2019, the Group had unused bank facilities
in aggregate of RMB22.9 million;

(b) On 31 December 2019, the Group had obtained a facility of
RMB200 million from an independent third party, which is an
import agent of the Group, for a period from 1 January 2020
to 30 June 2021. As at 31 December 2019, the Group has an
amount payable to this import agent of RMB195,962,000.
According to the facility provided, the Group has the right to
repay the outstanding balance on or before 30 June 2021; and

(c) The Group has budgeted and laid out its business plan for the
next twelve months, and seeks to attain profits and generate
net cash inflows from the operating activities during the next
twelve months with the efforts of actively further improving its
sales model under the new policies for stabilising its business
development. The Group will continuously promote presence
in the downstream of marketing network channels and extend
it to the end market by establishing multi-mode cooperation
with hospitals and pharmacies.

2019 F# EMABEEERARAR

et KA RIS A B T AR © Wi
FIER RS - AlgsHEFHERT N %
TR - WIS E R AAR KR REARE - BIRAME
AT AR KR PR AR AR

EIEEAERAUMBHRR LA T EEENEE
KIRIEK BT B BIFR T B3RS E AR EL A
HE - M RE3 AR AL ©

HE2019F 128318 LFE - AEEELARA
s F AR B22,896,0007T (20184 : 4RAEEA
R#280,615,0007T) ° 12019412 A31H * &
SERBEEFERARE32,156,0007T(2018
FRBEEFEAAREK202,954,0007T)

ERNTAAEERTHE ARV B ERFEL
BEBE  EEEAKENARKRBES RKRIR
AREABATBEER - BEHFAEEFERE
MEEAEBERDESZIRERE FEECK
HIEAEEREA T

(@) M2019%12A318 ° "EEHEBHAREH
BITRIEAHARE229HETT

(b) H2019F12A31H » AEEBE —REL
FE=H(AARERBEORE)ESREAR
2008 &7 - HIRE2020F1 A1HEE
20216 A308 - R2019F 128318 -
AEERENZEOREBEORERARK
195,962,0007T ° RIFFTIRHOREE - K&
EA#EN20214E6 A30R K 2 AIEERE
BEMLESR &

@ AKREERART_EANERERER
S BAREFBR TE - T REHE
BANBEEEB R - BHSRNARR
T EAESENRERLEDELRS
MAVERR o AN [ B 1 TN i BH 1R
ERERE  WEBEREEERKEREN
ZEASER AR IHTIHTEM
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Notes to Financial Statements B 73Rk 3R fi&E
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #;{Z=2019F 12 A31HILFE

2.1 Basis of Preparation (Continued)

Going concern basis (Continued)

The Directors have reviewed the Group’s cash flow forecast
prepared by management which covers a period of twelve months
from the end of the Reporting Period. They are of the opinion that,
taking into account the above-mentioned plans and measures, the
Group will have sufficient working capital to finance its operations
and meet its financial obligations as and when they fall due in the
foreseeable future. Accordingly, the Directors are of the opinion that
it is appropriate to prepare the consolidated financial statements of
the Group for the Reporting Period on a going concern basis.

Should the going concern assumption for whatever reason or as a
result of changing circumstances, becomes inappropriate, necessary
accounting adjustments may have to be made to restate the values
of assets to their recoverable amounts, to provide for any further
liabilities that might arise, and to reclassify non-current assets
and non-current liabilities as current assets and current liabilities,
respectively. The effects of these potential adjustments have not
been reflected in these financial statements.

The Audit Committee of the Board has confirmed that it has
objectively and critically reviewed the measures mentioned above.
The Audit Committee of the Board and the Board have confidence in
the Group’s management and concurred with management’s view
that the Group's business plan for the next twelve months is feasible
and achievable.

The Group has actively implemented, or is actively implementing,
all the improvement targets outlined above for the purposes of
increasing profits and enhancing the cash flow position of the
Group, in order to remove uncertainties relating to the going
concern of the Group for the next twelve months.

2.1 RBEE(E)

FREGEERE(E)
EXCENEEERANASERSRERA -
HREREHREAS T EAHRE - BRERR
R EaET 8 R AREREE R EEER
BB EEEBERETRER R AR
B - Bt - EERA - BHELEEEREAL
SENRENENEEMBRREBIRE -

ﬁ?ii“‘”%“i & B B 5% R A AT 3R |l S 1B 50 8 A 7 2K
AR EE RN M E SR AE - UEEER
Tﬁiﬂiﬁ—lﬂﬂlﬁﬁgﬁ " RATREEE AR AT E M
BEREBEURSIERDEERIFRDEED
REFDEARBEERRBAL - ZZELH
BBV ARELFNBRERP R -

ERgERLZE RN HEFEMBHEBERS
biifEe  EFeBERZEeREESUAEH
WEREFRED  WEREERENEE BB
REERAE+ —EANEBA BRI RATE
IH o

AEECDKHEERITEZE LRAEHRERR -
FERSEMNEREARERSRENN - AH
BRASEBR AR+ — 8 A BB L B T8
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Notes to Financial Statements B 7% ¥R R M 5E
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z2019F12A318ILFE

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies

The IASB has issued a new IFRS, IFRS 16, Leases, and a number
of amendments to IFRSs that are first effective for the current
accounting period of the Group.

Except for IFRS 16, Leases, none of the developments have had a
material effect on how the Group’s results and financial position for
the current or prior periods have been prepared or presented. The
Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is not
yet effective for the current accounting period.

IFRS 16, Leases

IFRS 16 replaces IAS 17, Leases, and the related interpretations, IFRIC
4, Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease, SIC 15,
Operating leases — incentives, and SIC 27, Evaluating the substance
of transactions involving the legal form of a lease. It introduces
a single accounting model for lessees, which requires a lessee to
recognise a right-of-use asset and a lease liability for all leases,
except for leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less (“short-
term leases”) and leases of low value assets. The lessor accounting
requirements brought forward from IAS 17 substantially unchanged.

2019 F# EMABEEERARAR

2.2 SRS

Bire st ERIEE S0 MR BRM % HR
SEA (BB BRELENE1REE) %
HERM RS ERNERTA - EHMFTERIR
ERTARAEB ARG B & RERR -

BREIN B B A ERIE 165K ESN - REER
BRI A S B A MR S8 E MR RE kMBI
MRAE 2NN T ABREATE - AEELEE
FERR A& 5 HAR i R £ RO T R Rl g
o

B B i s 2RI 16570 E

BB B R 5 R 16 K BIR 25t A E
17 S R EARRRE - ERMERE2RE
ZECRBRANEELHREEREEHE  BER
EEREZEeREFSRKEHE-BERER
RRZEERBEF2IRAGESREEERT A
WRZEE - ERABAASIAE -2 EER
A BRABEAERMARENEBEEENE
SafE  HEEABRS2EAXATHEE(EH
HE D MEEEEENHEERRI - HIEEERK
BT ERIE175RE B A SF R IERE AR
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Notes to Financial Statements B 73Rk 3R fi&E
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #;{Z=2019F 12 A31HILFE

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies (Continued)

IFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

IFRS 16 also introduces additional qualitative and quantitative
disclosure requirements which aim to enable users of the financial
statements to assess the effect that leases have on the financial
position, financial performance and cash flows of an entity.

The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 as from 1 January 2019. The
Group has elected to use the modified retrospective approach and
has therefore recognised the cumulative effect of initial application as
an adjustment to the opening balance of equity at 1 January 2019.
Comparative information has not been restated and continues to be
reported under IAS 17.

Further details of the nature and effect of the changes to previous
accounting policies and the transition options applied are set out
below:

a)  New definition of a lease

The change in the definition of a lease mainly relates to the
concept of control. IFRS 16 defines a lease on the basis of
whether a customer controls the use of an identified asset for a
period of time, which may be determined by a defined amount
of use. Control is conveyed where the customer has both the
right to direct the use of the identified asset and to obtain
substantially all of the economic benefits from that use.

The Group applies the new definition of a lease in IFRS 16 only
to contracts that were entered into or changed on or after
1 January 2019. For contracts entered into before 1 January
2019, the Group has used the transitional practical expedient
to grandfather the previous assessment of which existing
arrangements are or contain leases. Accordingly, contracts that
were previously assessed as leases under IAS 17 continue to be
accounted for as leases under IFRS 16 and contracts previously
assessed as non-lease service arrangements continue to be
accounted for as executory contracts.

22 SEBEREH(E)

BIPR B A R 5 RIS 1657 E ()

BB B 5 4R i A BB 1697 7R S| ABRSME HE e E
BREAT  EERVBRRERETIEEEY
EBUHMRR  MBRRARRSRENTE o

ANEEBE2019F1 A 18 8 X E B R
SRR F165F - NEBTDEALEITBRE -
WAL B X ER R R B RER A20196F1 A
THFVEREHRNAR - LERERTEST -
MREEREEESERE 17525 -

BRBAT ST BRESNEE RFEARPIER
BB T RAE — FRHBESIT

a) MEMFEE
HEEENEHTRETFIRORSA
W - B BREERE1RRIETSZ
BEX-EBRAZFIESENEENRE(H
AIREEEREE) MEHEFELESR - E
EFBRERA B EENRZIARIEZ
AP RESERE D LB R - R
BEEGIRE -

BRI mEERE 16N EENTEE
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B et ERIE17R T M AHENE O
ERIE B R B TS S ERIFE 165 AR AT
& mER A EEERBLHENEH
BB AR AFRITEH -

Sinco Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2019



Notes to Financial Statements B 73R 3R Mi&E
For the year ended 31 December 2019 &{Z=2019F 12 A31HILFE

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies (Continued)
IFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

b)

Lessee accounting and transitional impact

IFRS 16 eliminates the requirement for a lessee to classify
leases as either operating leases or finance leases, as was
previously required by IAS 17. Instead, the Group is required
to capitalise all leases when it is the lessee, including leases
previously classified as operating leases under IAS 17, other
than those short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
which are exempt. As far as the Group is concerned, these
newly capitalised leases are primarily in relation to other
property, plant and equipment as disclosed in note 12. For an
explanation of how the Group applies lessee accounting, see
note 2.3(g).

At the date of transition to IFRS 16 (i.e. 1 January 2019), the
Group determined the length of the remaining lease terms and
measured the lease liabilities for the leases previously classified
as operating leases at the present value of the remaining
lease payments, discounted using the relevant incremental
borrowing rates at 1 January 2019. The weighted average of
the incremental borrowing rates used for determination of the
present value of the remaining lease payments was 5.5%.

To ease the transition to IFRS 16, the Group applied the
following recognition exemption and practical expedients at
the date of initial application of IFRS 16:

(i)  the Group elected not to apply the requirements of IFRS
16 in respect of the recognition of lease liabilities and
right-of-use assets to leases for which the remaining
lease term ends within 12 months from the date of initial
application of IFRS 16, i.e. where the lease term ends on
or before 31 December 2019;

(i)  when measuring the lease liabilities at the date of
initial application of IFRS 16, the Group applied a single
discount rate to a portfolio of leases with reasonably
similar characteristics (such as leases with a similar
remaining lease term for a similar class of underlying asset
in a similar economic environment); and

2019 F# EMABEEERARAR

2.2 S BEREBH(E)
B B i s RS 165R A E ()
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Notes to Financial Statements B 73Rk 3R fi&E
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #;{Z=2019F 12 A31HILFE

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies (Continued) 2.2 SHBESE(E)
IFRS 16, Leases (Continued) BRI R E RSB 1655 HE ()
b)  Lessee accounting and transitional impact (Continued) b) RFANCHEIEER B (E)

(i) when measuring the right-of-use assets at the date of (i) FAE K E R R IS A R F 165
initial application of IFRS 16, the Group relied on the HHHEFEEELER  NEBKE
previous assessment for onerous contract provisions as SERTE 201812 A31 B E1E 4#/—\%’9
at 31 December 2018 as an alternative to performing an 1B HERE - AERRERS
impairment review.

The following table reconciles the operating lease commitments RS EE31(0) AT ER 2018512 A31

as disclosed in note 31(b) as at 31 December 2018 to the H R 38 SR EEMA 20191 B 1 B IER

opening balance for lease liabilities recognised as at 1 January TS B EEELRYE -

2019.

1 January
2019
2019F1A1A
RMB’000
ARBTR
Operating lease commitments at 31 December 2018 F20185F 12 431 BV &£ T G A 2,218
Less: commitments relating to leases exempt B BAREENMEEER
from capitalisation: A
— short-term leases and other leases with remaining lease — 5 EATH & K H A ISR TH EARR 20194F
term ending on or before 31 December 2019 12A31 Ak Z A ERHNEE (39)
2,179
Less: total future interest expenses W ARRF B 4% (132)
Present value of remaining lease payments, RN HERNRIRE - £FA2019F1A1R°
discounted using the incremental borrowing rate mig = %?}’(f'JT&BAZO19¢1 A1H
at 1 January 2019 and total lease RHEE B BREEETRER
liabilities recognised at 1 January 2019 2,047

The right-of-use assets in relation to leases previously classified EERELRIDEACEHENHERE

as operating leases have been recognised at an amount equal WEAREE  AoBEASAMBRTHEE

to the amount recognised for the remaining lease liabilities, BEERNLSEE - WIHKE2018F12H31H
adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease Hjﬁ%ﬂj(/ﬂi%q:ﬁﬁwa’]”u %ﬁﬁﬁg@g@{ﬂﬁj

payments relating to that lease recognised in the statement of FE SR R & 2

financial position at 31 December 2018.
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Notes to Financial Statements B 73R 3R Mi&E
For the year ended 31 December 2019 &{Z=2019F 12 A31HILFE

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies (Continued)
IFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

b)

22 SEBEREH(E)

B P B 75 e o R R 56

£1655HE (8)

Lessee accounting and transitional impact (Continued) b) BN CEHEELR B EE)
The following table summarises the impacts of the adoption T 25 49t 45 4 R R B S 2R 4 Y R 55 1 6 95
of IFBS 16 on the Group’s consolidated statement of financial AEEEA RN RN
position:
Carrying Carrying
amount  Capitalisation amount
at 31 December  of operating at 1 January
2018 lease contracts 2019
R20185E 20195
12A31H ReEdg 1A1A
HEREE EHHE HEEE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000
AREFTT AREFT ARETFT
Line items in the consolidated FEMBRRZRZ
statement of financial position RNEI R B R
impacted by the adoption of EHF165HEMN
IFRS 16: &R :
Other property, plant and equipment HibW% - WER&E 181,809 2,047 183,856
Total non-current assets FRBEERE 225,677 2,047 227,724
Lease liabilities (current) HEAR(RE) = 870 870
Current liabilities REERE 589,039 870 589,909
Net current liabilities RBEEEHE (202,954) (870) (203,824)
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBASE 22,723 1,177 23,900
Lease liabilities (non-current) HEBEGERS) = 1,177 1,177
Total non-current liabilities FRBEELE = 1177 1177
Net assets EEFE 22,723 - 22,723

2019 F# EMABEEERARAR
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Notes to Financial Statements B 73Rk 3R fi&E
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #;{Z=2019F 12 A31HILFE

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies (Continued)
IFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

c

Impact on the financial result, segment results and cash flows
of the Group

After the initial recognition of right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities as at 1 January 2019, the Group as a lessee is required
to recognise interest expense accrued on the outstanding
balance of the lease liability, and the depreciation of the right-
of-use asset, instead of the previous policy of recognising rental
expenses incurred under operating leases on a straight-line
basis over the lease term. This results in a positive impact on
the reported profit from operations in the Group’s consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, as
compared to the results if IAS 17 had been applied during the
year.

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, the Group as a
lessee is required to split rentals paid under capitalised leases
into their capital element and interest element (see note 26).
These elements are classified as financing cash outflows, similar
to how leases previously classified as finance leases under IAS
17 were treated, rather than as operating cash outflows, as
was the case for operating leases under IAS 17. Although total
cash flows are unaffected, the adoption of IFRS 16 therefore
results in a significant change in presentation of cash flows
within the consolidated statement of cash flows.

The following tables give an indication of the estimated
impact of the adoption of IFRS 16 on the Group’s financial
result, segment results and cash flows for the year ended 31
December 2019, by adjusting the amounts reported under
IFRS 16 in these consolidated financial statements to compute
estimates of the hypothetical amounts that would have
been recognised under IAS 17 if this superseded standard
had continued to apply in 2019 instead of IFRS 16, and by
comparing these hypothetical amounts for 2019 with the
actual 2018 corresponding amounts which were prepared
under IAS 17.

2.2 St BEREBH(E)
B B i s RS 165R A E ()
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Notes to Financial Statements B 7% ¥R R M 5E
For the year ended 31 December 2019 # %2019 12 A31H It FE

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies (Continued) 2.2 DEBEREE (E)
IFRS 16, Leases (Continued) BIPREF TSR 5 ZE I SE 1655 FHE (4)
¢)  Impact on the financial result, segment results and cash flows 0 HAREEHFEE SEEERESTE
of the Group (Continued) TR L (4 )
2019 2018
Deduct:
Estimated
amounts
related to Compared
Add back: operating  Hypothetical to amounts
Amounts IFRS 16 leases as amounts reported
reported  depreciation if under for 2019 for 2018
under  and interest IAS 17 as if under under
IFRS 16 expense (note 1) 1AS 17 IAS 17
A
HEERg
BRNE

B S8 BN 2019FHBR HREEE

REERET EREFHRE RERRSH SFBR SHENEITR
HEERFE 165 EBIE6H ERF7HRAE  REERET 2BM2018%
SHNEE FERAERX (Hi1) BAIBITHHE Exlizg

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR AR¥ETR AR¥TR ARETR AREFT
(A (B) © (D=A+B-C)

Financial result for the year ZRGERT KRS ER
ended 31 December 2019 F16RFENEZS
impacted by the adoption 2019%12A31A
of IFRS 16: LHEEMETHEE
Profit/(loss) from operations & FE%F / (5E) 62,327 1,006 (962) 62,371 (237,197)
Finance costs BTBRA (20,026) 92 - (19,934) (34,818)
Profit/(loss) before tax BBATER/ (8) 42,301 1,098 (962) 42,437 (272,015)
Profit/(loss) for the year ERER/(BR) 22,896 1,098 (962) 23,032 (280,615)
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Notes to Financial Statements B 73Rk 3R fi&E
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #;{Z=2019F 12 A31HILFE

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies (Continued)

IFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

2.2 SEBEREEH (E)

B B i s RIS 165R A E ()

¢) Impact on the financial result, segment results and cash flows o HAREEEFFEE SEEERESTE
of the Group (Continued) VR ()
2019 2018
Estimated
amounts
related Compared
Amounts to operating Hypothetical to amounts
reported leases as if amounts for reported
under under 1AS 17 2019 as if for 2018
IFRS 16 (notes 182) under IAS 17 under 1AS 17
it
HERRN
fEitesE
RIEER BIRE 20195 H EREER
B RS %ER EREtER  BRE®E Bm  LHENEIR
#1635 EUHHE  REERE:  2RO2018F
2HNEE (HiF1R2)  ERIETHHE EilizIng
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBTR ARBTR ARETT
(A) (B) (C=A+B)
Line items in the consolidated SRAERRE KRS ERFE 165
statement of cash flows FEMEZ2019F12831H
for the year ended LEENGRRERERER |
31 December 2019
impacted by the adoption
of IFRS 16:
Cash generated from operations BEMERE 125,526 (962) 124,294 256,609
Net cash flows generated from  E&ZHFERLFETE
operating activities 116,159 (962) 115,197 255,892
Capital element of lease rentals paid 2 & MERLH (870) 870 - -
Interest element of lease BERAEHFSHH
rentals paid (92) 922 - -
Net cash generated from/(used in) BEZEFE/(FTH)
financing activities BEFHE 30,736 962 31,698 (249,599)
Note 1: The “estimated amounts related to operating leases” is an Fiatr - [HEEREFRNMGHTSEIEEY
estimate of the amounts of the cash flows in 2019 that relate HEAKEHENTHEBAA2019F R
to leases which would have been classified as operating SREMEE  MUBRSERSE
leases, if IAS 17 had still applied in 2019. This estimate 17552019 NAREA » ZEEHR®
assumes that there were no differences between rentals and HeREReReEcATE=2 - BME
cash flows and that all of the new leases entered into in 2019 R2019F A M ER R EEERE
would have been classified as operating leases under IAS 17, FPEREI7ROBAKLETEE - B
if IAS 17 had still applied in 2019. Any potential net tax effect BB st R E 17520195 A E
is ignored. A o BB ER BRI AT ©
Note 2: In this impact table these cash outflows are reclassified from Witz . REFERP  ZEREMLHRES

financing to operating in order to compute hypothetical
amounts of net cash generated from operating activities and
net cash generated from/used in financing activities as if IAS
17 still applied.

MOBERE  UFERREEMER
SFERMEFDNG AR FE
BWRReE  BOBERGERE 17
SEADZER -
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Notes to Financial Statements B 73R 3R Mi&E
For the year ended 31 December 2019 &{Z=2019F 12 A31HILFE

23 FESHHEHRE
(a) KBTI RIEIERAERS

2.3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(a) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only substantive
rights (held by the Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary
not attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in
respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of those interests which would result in
the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation in respect
of those interests that meets the definition of a financial
liability. For each business combination, the Group can elect
to measure any non-controlling interests either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the
subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately from
equity attributable to the owners of the Company.

Non-controlling interests in the results of the Group are
presented on the face of the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income as an allocation of
the total profit or loss and total comprehensive income or
loss for the year between non-controlling interests and the
owners of the Company. Total comprehensive income or loss
of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. Loans from
holders of non-controlling interests and other contractual
obligations towards these holders are presented as financial
liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position.

2019 F# EMABEEERARAR
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Notes to Financial Statements B 7% 3R R i E
For the year ended 31 December 2019 & %2019 12 A31H It FE

23 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

(@)

(b)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the amounts
of controlling and non-controlling interests within consolidated
equity to reflect the change in relative interests, but no
adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss is
recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with
a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
losses (see note 2.3(h)), unless the investment is classified as
held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified as
held for sale).

Gooduwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business
less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the Group's cash-generating units (or groups of cash-
generating units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination, which represent the lowest level at which
the goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes
and not larger than an operating segment.

23 TESHBERME(E)

(@)

(b)
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Notes to Financial Statements B 7% ¥R R M 5E
For the year ended 31 December 2019 # %2019 12 A31H It FE

23 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2.3 XES:BEME(E)
(Continued)

(b) Goodwill (Continued) (b) BHE(E)

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently whenever there is indication that
the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition
in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit (or group of
cash-generating units) to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment before the end of that reporting period.
If the recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill and then to the other assets on a pro-rata
basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit (or
group of cash-generating units).

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit or any of
the cash-generating unit within the group of cash-generating
units, the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.
When the Group disposes of an operation within the cash-
generating unit (or a cash-generating unit within a group of
cash-generating units), the amount of goodwill disposed of is
measured on the basis of the relative values of the operation (or
the cash-generating unit) disposed of and the portion of the
cash-generating unit (or the group of cash-generating units)
retained.

2019 F# EMABEEERARAR
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Notes to Financial Statements B 7% 3R R i E
For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z20195F12A318ILFE

2.3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
(c) Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)  the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is

a part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or to the parent of the Group.
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Notes to Financial Statements B 7% ¥R R M 5E
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z2019F12A318ILFE

2.3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

()

(d)

Related parties (Continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by that person in their dealings with the entity.

Investment property

Investment property is land and/or buildings which are owned
or held under a leasehold interest (see note 2.3(g)) to earn
rental income and/or for capital appreciation. Such properties
are initially measured at cost, including transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment property is stated
at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Depreciation is calculated on
the straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of 45
years.

Any gains or losses from the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the profit or loss.
Rental income from investment properties is accounted for as
described in note 2.3(q)iii).

For a transfer from investment property to owner-occupied
property, the deemed cost of a property for subsequent
accounting is its carrying amount at the date of change in use.
If a property occupied by the Group as an owner-occupied
property becomes an investment property, the Group accounts
for such property in accordance with the policy stated under
"Other property, plant and equipment” up to the date of
change in use.

2019 F# EMABEEERARAR
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Notes to Financial Statements B 7% 3R R i E
For the year ended 31 December 2019 & %2019 12 A31H It FE

2.3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
(e) Other property, plant and equipment

The following items of other property, plant and equipment,
other than construction in progress, are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see note
2.3(h)):

— interests in land and building where the Group is the
registered owner of the property interest;

—  right-of-use assets arising from leases over leasehold
properties where the Group is not the registered owner
of the property interest; and

— items of plant and equipment, including right-of-
use assets arising from leases of underlying plant and
equipment (see note 2.3(g)).

Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable
to the acquisition of the items. The cost of self-constructed
items of property, plant and equipment includes the cost of
materials, direct labour, the initial estimate, where relevant, of
the costs of dismantling and removing the items and restoring
the site on which they are located, and an appropriate
proportion of production overheads and borrowing costs (see
note 2.3(1)).

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component
accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when
replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are recognised
in profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are
incurred.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount.
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Notes to Financial Statements B 7% ¥R R M 5E
For the year ended 31 December 2019 # %2019 12 A31H It FE

2.3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2.3 XES:BEME(E)
(Continued)

(e) Other property, plant and equipment (Continued) (e) EHAb¥Z - MERRE(E)

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment are determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item and are recognised in profit or loss on the
date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight line method over their estimated
useful lives as follows:

- Land and buildings are depreciated over the shorter of
the unexpired term of lease and the buildings’ estimated
useful lives, being no more than 50 years after the date
of completion.

= Machinery 10 years
- Office equipment 3-5 years
- Motor vehicles 4-5 years

- Leasehold improvement 3-5 years or over the
remaining term of the

lease, if shorter

Where parts of an item of other property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated
on a reasonable basis between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its
residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Buildings in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any
recognised impairment loss. Cost includes any costs directly
attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management and, for qualifying assets, borrowing
costs capitalised in accordance with the Group’s accounting
policy. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other
property assets, commences when the assets are ready for their
intended use.
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Notes to Financial Statements B 73Rk 3R fi&E
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #;{Z=2019F 12 A31HILFE

2.3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

(f)

(9

Intangible assets (other than goodwiill)

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses (see note 2.3(h)).

Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives is
recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of
any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective
basis. The following intangible assets with finite useful lives are
amortised from the date they are available for use and their
estimated useful lives are as follows:
Software 5 years
Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer has
both the right to direct the use of the identified asset and to
obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from that use.

(i)  Asa lessee
Policy applicable from 1 January 2019
Where the contract contains lease component(s) and
non-lease component(s), the Group has elected not
to separate non-lease components and accounts for
each lease component and any associated non-lease
components as a single lease component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group recognises
a right-of-use asset and a lease liability, except for short-
term leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less
and leases of low-value assets. When the Group enters
into a lease in respect of a low-value asset, the Group
decides whether to capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease
basis. The lease payments associated with those leases
which are not capitalised are recognised as an expense on
a systematic basis over the lease term.
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Notes to Financial Statements B 73R 3R Mi&E
For the year ended 31 December 2019 &{Z=2019F 12 A31HILFE

2.3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
(g) Leased assets (Continued)

(i

As a lessee (Continued)

Policy applicable from 1 January 2019 (Continued)
Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is initially
recognised at the present value of the lease payments
payable over the lease term, discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, using a relevant incremental borrowing rate.
After initial recognition, the lease liability is measured at
amortised cost and interest expense is calculated using
the effective interest method. Variable lease payments
that do not depend on an index or rate are not included
in the measurement of the lease liability and hence are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is
capitalised is initially measured at cost, which comprises
the initial amount of the lease liability plus any lease
payments made at or before the commencement date,
and any initial direct costs incurred. Where applicable, the
cost of the right-of-use assets also includes an estimate
of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or
to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is
located, discounted to their present value, less any lease
incentives received. The right-of-use asset is subsequently
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (see notes 2.3(e) and 2.3(h)(ii)).

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change
in future lease payments arising from a change in an
index or rate, or there is a change in the Group’s estimate
of the amount expected to be payable under a residual
value guarantee, or there is a change arising from the
reassessment of whether the Group will be reasonably
certain to exercise a purchase, extension or termination
option. When the lease liability is remeasured in this
way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit
or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has
been reduced to zero.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not meet
the definition of investment property in “Other property,
plant and equipment” and presents lease liabilities
separately in the consolidated statement of financial
position.
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Notes to Financial Statements B 73Rk 3R fi&E
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #;{Z=2019F 12 A31HILFE

2.3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
(g) Leased assets (Continued)

()

As a lessee (Continued)

Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2019

In the comparative period, as a lessee the Group
classified leases as finance leases if the leases transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the Group. Leases which did not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership to the Group
were classified as operating leases, with the following
exceptions:

—  property held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment
property was classified as investment property on
a property-by-property basis and, if classified as
investment property, was accounted for as if held
under a finance lease; and

— land held for own use under an operating lease,
the fair value of which could not be measured
separately from the fair value of a building situated
thereon at the inception of the lease, was accounted
for as being held under a finance lease, unless the
building was also clearly held under an operating
lease. For these purposes, the inception of the lease
was the time that the lease was first entered into by
the Group, or taken over from the previous lessee.

Where the Group acquired the use of assets under
finance leases, the amounts representing the fair value
of the leased asset, or, if lower, the present value of the
minimum lease payments, of such assets were recognised
as property, plant and equipment and the corresponding
liabilities, net of finance charges, were recorded as
obligations under finance leases. Depreciation was
provided at rates which wrote off the cost of the assets
over the term of the relevant lease or, where it was likely
the Group would obtain ownership of the asset, the life
of the asset, as set out in note 2.3(e). Impairment losses
were accounted for in accordance with the accounting
policy as set out in note 2.3(h). Finance charges implicit in
the lease payments were charged to profit or loss over the
period of the leases so as to produce an approximately
constant periodic rate of charge on the remaining balance
of the obligations for each accounting period. Contingent
rentals were charged to profit or loss in the accounting
period in which they were incurred.
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Notes to Financial Statements B 73R 3R Mi&E
For the year ended 31 December 2019 &{Z=2019F 12 A31HILFE

2.3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
(g) Leased assets (Continued)

(i

(ii)

As a lessee (Continued)

Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2019 (Continued)
Where the Group had the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases were
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis was more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received were recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals were charged to profit or loss
in the accounting period in which they were incurred.

As a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease
inception whether each lease is a finance lease or an
operating lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease if it
transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to the ownership of an underlying assets to the lessee. If
this is not the case, the lease is classified as an operating
lease.

When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in
the contract to each component on a relative stand-alone
selling price basis. The rental income from operating
leases is recognised in accordance with note 2.3(q)(iii).

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, the sub-leases
are classified as a finance lease or as an operating lease
with reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the
head lease. If the head lease is a short-term lease to
which the Group applies the exemption described in note
2.3(g)(i), then the Group classifies the sub-lease as an
operating lease.
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Notes to Financial Statements B 7% 3R R i E
For the year ended 31 December 2019 & %2019 12 A31H It FE

2.3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets

)

Credit losses from financial instruments and lease
receivables

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit
losses (ECLs) on the following items:

— financial assets measured at amortised cost
(including pledged bank balances, cash and cash
equivalents, trade and bills receivables, deposit,
other receivables and other financial assets
measured at amortised cost, which are held for the
collection of contractual cash flows which represent
solely payments of principal and interest); and

- lease receivables.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses.
Credit losses are measured as the present value of all
expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the
cash flows due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive).

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted using the
following discount rates where the effect of discounting is
material:

- fixed-rate financial assets, trade and bills
receivables and other receivables: effective interest
rate determined at initial recognition or an
approximation thereof;

- variable-rate financial assets: current effective
interest rate;

- lease receivable: discount rate used in the
measurement of the lease receivable.

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is
the maximum contractual period over which the Group is
exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account
reasonable and supportable information that is available
without undue cost or effort. This includes information
about past events, current conditions and forecasts of
future economic conditions.
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Notes to Financial Statements B 7% ¥R R M 5E
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z2019F12A318ILFE

2.3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

i)

Credit losses from financial instruments and lease
receivables (Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

— 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are expected
to result from possible default events within the 12
months after the reporting date; and

—  lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are expected
to result from all possible default events over the
expected lives of the items to which the ECL model
applies.

Loss allowances for trade receivables and lease receivables
are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs. ECLs on these financial assets are estimated using
a provision matrix based on the Group’s historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to
the debtors and an assessment of both the current and
forecast general economic conditions at the reporting
date.

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises
a loss allowance equal to 12-month ECLs unless there has
been a significant increase in credit risk of the financial
instrument since initial recognition, in which case the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs.
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Notes to Financial Statements B 7% 3R R i E
For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z20195F12A318ILFE

2.3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

i)

Credit losses from financial instruments and lease
receivables (Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of default
occurring on the financial instrument assessed at the
reporting date with that assessed at the date of initial
recognition. In making this reassessment, the Group
considers that a default event occurs when (i) the
borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the
Group in full, without recourse by the Group to actions
such as realising security (if any is held); or (i) the financial
asset is 90 days past due. The Group considers both
guantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition:

- failure to make payments of principal or interest on
their contractually due dates;

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in
a financial instrument’s external or internal credit
rating (if available);
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Notes to Financial Statements B 7% ¥R R M 5E
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z2019F12A318ILFE

2.3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

i)

Credit losses from financial instruments and lease

receivables (Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (Continued)

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; and

—  existing or forecast changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that have a
significant adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to
meet its obligation to the Group.

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments,
the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk is
performed on either an individual basis or a collective
basis. When the assessment is performed on a collective
basis, the financial instruments are grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics, such as past due status
and credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to reflect
changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk since
initial recognition. Any change in the ECL amount is
recognised as an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss.
The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss for all
financial instruments with a corresponding adjustment to
their carrying amount through a loss allowance account.
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Notes to Financial Statements B 7% 3R R i E
For the year ended 31 December 2019 & %2019 12 A31H It FE

2.3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

i)

Credit losses from financial instruments and lease
receivables (Continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance with note
2.3(q)(ii) is calculated based on the gross carrying amount
of the financial asset unless the financial asset is credit-
impaired, in which case interest income is calculated
based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying
amount less loss allowance) of the financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
a financial asset is credit-impaired. A financial asset is
credit-impaired when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
the following observable events:

significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

— it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
into bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an adverse
effect on the debtor; or

—  the disappearance of an active market for a security
because of financial difficulties of the issuer.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset and lease
receivables is written off (either partially or in full) to the
extent that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This
is generally the case when the Group determines that the
debtor does not have assets or sources of income that
could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts
subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously
written off are recognised as a reversal of impairment in
profit or loss in the period in which the recovery occurs.
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Notes to Financial Statements B 7% ¥R R M 5E
For the year ended 31 December 2019 # %2019 12 A31H It FE

2.3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

if)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period to identify indications
that the following assets may be impaired or, except
in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have decreased:

investment property;

—  other property, plant and equipment, including
right-of-use assets;

- goodwill;

— intangible assets;

—  deposits and prepayments; and

— investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s
statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwiill, intangible
assets that are not yet available for use and intangible
assets that have indefinite useful lives, the recoverable
amount is estimated annually whether or not there is any
indication of impairment.

—  Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely independent of
those from other assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit).
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Notes to Financial Statements B 73Rk 3R fi&E
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #;{Z=2019F 12 A31HILFE

2.3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

if)

fif)

Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

- Recognition of impairment losses
An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
whenever the carrying amount of an asset, or the
cash-generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised
in respect of cash-generating units are allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the cash-generating unit (or group of
units) and then,to reduce the carrying amount of
the other assets in the unit (or group of units) on a
pro rata basis, except that the carrying amount of
an asset will not be reduced below its individual fair
value less costs of disposal (if measurable) or value
in use (if determinable).

—  Reversals of impairment losses
In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. An impairment
loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the
asset’s carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised
in prior years. Reversals of impairment losses are
credited to profit or loss in the year in which the
reversals are recognised.

Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Group
is required to prepare an interim financial report in
compliance with IAS 34, Interim Financial Reporting, in
respect of the first six months of the financial year. At the
end of the interim period, the Group applies the same
impairment testing, recognition, and reversal criteria as
it would at the end of the financial year (see notes 2(h)(i)
and 2(h)(ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in
respect of goodwill are not reversed in a subsequent
period. This is the case even if no loss, or a smaller loss,
would have been recognized had the impairment been
assessed only at the end of the financial year to which the
interim period relates.
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Notes to Financial Statements B 7% ¥R R M 5E
For the year ended 31 December 2019 # %2019 12 A31H It FE

2.3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

(i)

()

Inventories
Inventories are assets which are held for sale in the ordinary
course of business.

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost formula
and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and
other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of completion and
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised.

The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable
value and all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense
in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of
any reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognised
as a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to receive
consideration is unconditional if only the passage of time
is required before payment of that consideration is due.
If revenue has been recognised before the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration, the amount is
presented as a contract asset.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the effective
interest method less allowance for credit losses (see note 2.3(h)).
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Notes to Financial Statements B 73Rk 3R fi&E
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #;{Z=2019F 12 A31HILFE

2.3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

(k)

(1)

(m)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions,
and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that
are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group's cash management are also included as a component of
cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated
statement of cash flows. Cash and cash equivalents are assessed
for expected credit losses (“ECLs"”) in accordance with the
policy set out in note 2.3(h).

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value
and are subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect
of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially at fair
value less transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. Interest expense is recognised in
accordance with the Group's accounting policy for borrowing
costs (see note 2.3(t)).
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Notes to Financial Statements B 7% ¥R R M 5E
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z2019F12A318ILFE

2.3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

(n) Provisions, contingent liabilities and onerous
contracts
(i)  Provisions and contingent liabilities

(ii)

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Onerous contracts

An onerous contract exists when the Group has a
contract under which the unavoidable costs of meeting
the obligations under the contract exceed the economic
benefits expected to be received from the contract.
Provisions for onerous contracts are measured at the
present value of the lower of the expected cost of
terminating the contract and the net cost of continuing
with the contract.
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Notes to Financial Statements B 73Rk 3R fi&E
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #;{Z=2019F 12 A31HILFE

2.3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
(0) Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised
in profit or loss except to the extent that they relate to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and
unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities,
and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the asset
can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that may
support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those that will arise
from the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided that those differences relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected to
reverse either in the same period as the expected reversal of
the deductible temporary difference or in periods into which a
tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back
or forward. The same criteria are adopted when determining
whether existing taxable temporary differences support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax
losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a period, or
periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.
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Notes to Financial Statements B 73R 3R Mi&E
For the year ended 31 December 2019 &{Z=2019F 12 A31HILFE

2.3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2.3 XES:BEME(E)
(Continued)

(o) Income tax (Continued)

(o) FrfEHL(4&)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and
liabilities are those temporary differences arising from goodwill
not deductible for tax purpose, the initial recognition of assets
or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit
(provided they are not part of a business combination), and
temporary differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to
the extent that, in the case of taxable differences, the Group
controls the timing of the reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the
case of deductible differences, unless it is probable that they
will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised.
Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of
dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the related
dividends recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against
current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against deferred
tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the following additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Group
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously; or
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Notes to Financial Statements B 7% 3R R i E
For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z20195F12A318ILFE

2.3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

(o)

(p)

(a)

Income tax (Continued)

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current tax assets
and settle the current tax liabilities on a net basis or
realise and settle simultaneously.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on
a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, which it is
intended to compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to
a deferred income account and is deducted from the carrying
amount of the asset and released to profit or loss by way of a
reduced depreciation charge.

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it arises
from the sale of goods and the provision of services in the
ordinary course of the Group's business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or service
is transferred to the customer at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected to be entitled,
excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
Revenue excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is
after deduction of any trade discounts.
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Notes to Financial Statements B 7% ¥R R M 5E
For the year ended 31 December 2019 # %2019 12 A31H It FE

2.3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
(q) Revenue and other income (Continued)

Where the contract contains a financing component which
provides a significant financing benefit to the customer for
more than 12 months, revenue is measured at the present
value of the amount receivable, discounted using the discount
rate that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
with the customer, and interest income is accrued separately
under the effective interest method. Where the contract
contains a financing component which provides a significant
financing benefit to the Group, revenue recognised under that
contract includes the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method. The Group takes
advantage of the practical expedient in paragraph 63 of IFRS
15 and does not adjust the consideration for any effects of a
significant financing component if the period of financing is 12
months or less.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income
recognition policies are as follows:

()  Sale of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the point
in time when control of the asset is transferred to the
customer, generally on delivery of the goods.

(i) Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues under the
effective interest method using the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial asset to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset. For financial assets
measured at amortised cost that are not credit-impaired,
the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying
amount of the asset. For credit-impaired financial assets,
the effective interest rate is applied to the amortised cost
(i.e. gross carrying amount net of loss allowance) of the
asset (see note 2.3(h)(i)).
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Notes to Financial Statements B 7% 3R R i E
For the year ended 31 December 2019 & %2019 12 A31H It FE

2.3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
(q) Revenue and other income (Continued)

(r)

(i) Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over
the periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Variable lease payments that do not depend
on an index or a rate are recognised as income in the
accounting period in which they are earned.

(iv)  Service income
Revenue from provision of service is recognised at the
point in time when control over service is transferred to
the customer.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays non-
refundable consideration before the Group recognises the
related revenue (see note 2.3(q)). A contract liability would
also be recognsied if the Group has an unconditional right
to receive non-refundable consideration before the Group
recognises the related revenue. In such cases, a corresponding
receivable would also be recognised (see note 2.3())).

For a single contract with the customer, either a net contract
asset or a net contract liability is presented. For multiple
contracts, contract assets and contract liabilities of unrelated
contracts are not presented on a net basis.

When the contract includes a significant financing component,
the contract balance includes interest accrued under the
effective interest method (see note 2.3(q)).
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Notes to Financial Statements B 73R 3R Mi&E
For the year ended 31 December 2019 &{Z=2019F 12 A31HILFE

2.3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
(s) Employee benefits

0

(ii)

Short term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would
be material, these amounts are stated at their present
values.

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a share option reserve within equity. The fair
value is measured at grant date using the binomial model,
taking into account the terms and conditions upon which
the options were granted. Where the employees have to
meet vesting conditions before becoming unconditionally
entitled to the share options, the total estimated fair value
of the share options is spread over the vesting period,
taking into account the probability that the options will
vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options
expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment
to the cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is
charged/credited to the profit or loss for the year of the
review, unless the original employee expenses qualify for
recognition as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment
to the share option reserve. On vesting date, the amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual
number of share options that vest (with a corresponding
adjustment to the share option reserve) except where
forfeiture is only due to not achieving vesting conditions
that relate to the market price of the Company’s shares.
The equity amount is recognised in the share option
reserve until either the option is exercised (when it is
transferred to the share premium account) or the option
expires (when it is released directly to accumulated
losses).
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Notes to Financial Statements B 73Rk 3R fi&E
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #;{Z=2019F 12 A31HILFE

2.3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

(t)

(u)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for
its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of
that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in
which they are incurred.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss, except those arising from foreign
currency borrowings used to hedge a net investment in a
foreign operation which are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. The
transaction date is the date on which the Group initially
recognises such non-monetary assets or liabilities. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies stated at fair value are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was measured.

The results of foreign operations are translated into RMB at the
exchange rates approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the dates of the transactions. Statement of financial position
items, including goodwill arising on consolidation of foreign
operations acquired on or after 1 January 2005, are translated
into RMB at the closing foreign exchange rates at the end of
the reporting period. The resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the exchange reserve. Goodwill arising
on consolidation of a foreign operation acquired before 1
January 2005 is translated at the foreign exchange rate that
applied at the date of acquisition of the foreign operation.
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Notes to Financial Statements B 7% ¥R R M 5E
For the year ended 31 December 2019 # %2019 12 A31H It FE

2.3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
(u) Translation of foreign currencies (Continued)

(v)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation), all of the exchange differences accumulated
in equity in respect of that operation attributable to the owners
of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that
does not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiary,
the proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences
are re-attributed to non-controlling interests and are not
recognised in profit or loss.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified from
the financial information provided regularly to the Group’s
executive directors (the chief operating decision maker) for
the purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group's various lines of business and
geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and the nature
of the regulatory environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.
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Notes to Financial Statements B 73Rk 3R fi&E
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #;{Z=2019F 12 A31HILFE

Significant Accounting Estimates

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities
affected in the future.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below.

Provision of expected credit losses (ECL) on trade receivables

Trade receivables with significant balances and credit impaired are
assessed for ECL individually. In addition, the Group uses a provision
matrix to calculate ECL for trade receivables which are individually
insignificant. The provision rates are based on days past due as
groupings of various customers that have similar loss patterns.

The provision matrix is based on the Group’s historical observed
default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to adjust the
historical credit loss experience with forward-looking information.
For instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e., gross domestic
products) are expected to deteriorate over the next year which can
lead to an increased number of defaults, the historical default rates
are adjusted. At each reporting date, the historical observed default
rates are reassessed and changes in the forward-looking information
are considered.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed default
rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate.
The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and
forecast economic conditions. The Group's historical credit loss
experience and forecast of economic conditions may also not
be representative of customer’s actual default in the future. The
information about the ECLs on the Group’s trade receivables is
disclosed in notes 19 and 35(a) to the financial statements.

3. EEEGHAE

AR BRRATREEL L - R
B MRS HE - RBRP B - H
¥ - AERABNSFLEREIEE - URE
Mt AR ENRE - RS ERRIGH O TEEE
ZAEHAKAUS Y EAER R ENEREE
TEABE -

fhEt T EER R

R EIRBIR R BB R R (T e A
ZNEBEERRAAIH T —HRFENEE
RAERE G EARRNEARR - Bl
o -

B S ENH BB EER (B EER)
1

BB A& A ERRENE S RUGIREEF G
HIRHEREE - thoh - AREE BB EEREL
HERFERE ZREFANRIEEERE - &
BEDEREGRUBEEANTREFPEAR
HAHETE -

BREPEENARBEEATEBEMBENXME
E o NEERHBER - FEARAEEENRE
BEEERIELE - £ E - MIRLEIRR
(BB REERE FRER AR —F2L - B
ERNFMHBEEM  ASARBEEOE - N
BERH  BEESEASEOTESHIE - X
R AIE ISR EE

YRABRMSENR - BAKER N RIEHE
BBz EMEEEETHTEBEAN G - 8
HEEEENSESZIE RSB RIEALEAR R
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IR MEERREE AR ERENER - 5
AEEE FEVRGENBHREESENENER
B TSR R EE 19X 35(a) IR EE -
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Notes to Financial Statements B 73R 3R Mi&E
For the year ended 31 December 2019 &{Z=2019F 12 A31HILFE

Significant Accounting Estimates (Continued)
Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Determining the lease term

As explained in policy note 2.3(g), the lease liability is initially
recognised at the present value of the lease payments payable over
the lease term. In determining the lease term at the commencement
date for leases that include renewal options exercisable by the
Group, the Group evaluates the likelihood of exercising the renewal
options taking into account all relevant facts and circumstances that
create an economic incentive for the Group to exercise the option,
including favourable terms, leasehold improvements undertaken and
the importance of that underlying asset to the Group’s operation.
The lease term is reassessed when there is a significant event or
significant change in circumstance that is within the Group’s control.
Any increase or decrease in the lease term would affect the amount
of lease liabilities and right-of-use assets recognised in future years.

PRC corporate income tax (“PRC CIT")

The Group’s operating subsidiaries in PRC are subject to PRC CIT.
As a result of the fact that certain matters relating to PRC CIT have
not been confirmed by the relevant local tax authorities, objective
estimates based on currently enacted tax laws, regulations and
other related policies are required in determining the provision for
PRC CIT to be made. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts originally recorded, the differences
will impact the income tax expense and tax provision in the period
in which the differences realise. The carrying amount of PRC CIT
payable as at 31 December 2019 was RMB11,361,000 (2018:
RMB1,943,000).

2019 F# EMABEEERARAR

ERETHEE(E)

fhET THRERZ(E)

ETHH

AP E2 3(g) TR - HERBEUESRA
FENRENREIREETTVI SR o RFH A
HRESURAEETEEEENEER T HY
B AEERHEITREEEN RN - BPE R
RS EF R R A KB T AR ERER
FERIER  BEEAGR  CETHRERE
MEZMEEESRNEEEBNERM - WELES
REMAREBAAEEZHBEAANEAES) -
A ERHEEE - AP0 ERKEEDE
TENARFREERNAELBELERREEES
e

BT IE R ([P B2 AT 2 )
AEBEFEMNEENB R RBEMNT RSN
1851 o FRAAERAM 5 RIS HLRE 1M R iR B R
TCEMEBHRNETEE  ALEBTHESCEAN
SHBERERERTEE AR REAMERH
BURIEL BB LG o WZEFBENRKRTELE
BYNMAEESREAR  ZEERBTEMSHR
X R EREEMEOTIERE - 20195124
318 ENHECEMESHORAEAARKE
11,361,0007T(20184F = AK#1,943,0007T) °
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Notes to Financial Statements B 7% 3R R i E
For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z20195F12A318ILFE

Significant Accounting Estimates (Continued)
Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and related
depreciation charges for its property, plant and equipment. This
estimate is based on the historical experience of the actual useful
lives of property, plant and equipment of similar nature and
functions. Management will increase the depreciation charge where
useful lives are less than previously estimated, or it will write off or
write down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have
been abandoned or sold. The useful lives of property, plant and
equipment are disclosed in note 2.3(e) to the financial statements.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less estimated costs to be incurred to
completion and disposal. These estimates are based on the current
market condition and the historical experience of selling products of
a similar nature. Management reassesses these estimates at the end
of each reporting period. The carrying amount of inventories as at
31 December 2019 was RMB250,963,000 (2018: RMB214,806,000).

ERETHEE(E)

fhET THRERZ(E)

YIE ~ B R R A AT FH]
AEEBEEME - MEMRENEFTAERSE
HIRARREITE RIS o ;X hRT DERIEE RIRE
EOYIR - BB RREBENERAERFHNBE
&5 o WAERFIER LA GE  EEESL
AT ERS - HEH MR R TR e B A
HERERRIEEE - W% - BE MRENTE
FRFEHRIEIRRM T2 3() K FE -

7 & A EE
GFERMEEFEN—RERKBREPOHAEER
TR ERTEEMFRAE - ZEhFEERE
AT RS E M EREEMMBILR - NER
LHR  BRESEHTAZEME c R2019F
12A318 ' FEMKRAMEAARY250,963,000
J0(2018% © AR#214,806,0007T) °
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Notes to Financial Statements B 7% ¥R R M 5E
For the year ended 31 December 2019 # %2019 12 A31H It FE

Significant Accounting Estimates (Continued)
Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences and unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses can be
utilised based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable
profits together with future tax planning strategies. The carrying
amount of deferred tax assets at 31 December 2019 was
RMB721,000 (2018: RMB1,300,000). Further details are given in
note 17 to the financial statements.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment
for all non-financial assets at the end of each reporting period. Non-
financial assets are tested for impairment when there are indicators
that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment
exists when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating
unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair
value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The calculation of
the fair value less costs of disposal is based on observable market
prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. When value
in use calculations are undertaken, management must estimate the
expected future cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit
and choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows.

2019 F# EMABEEERARAR

BEEgTHEE(E)
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Notes to Financial Statements B 7% 3R R i E
For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z20195F12A318ILFE

4. Revenue and Segment Reporting 4. WaRkoHBE

The Group's revenue and contribution to consolidated results are AEBENREMEGREEENEREEREHERN
mainly derived from its sales of human albumin solution, antibiotics REIAMEAMBEERFSIR - UEE - FER
and other pharmaceutical products focused on therapeutic areas ERL A B8 1 4% 84 00 5 9 EL A6 S5 o S ELAth R AR
and complementary to human plasma-based products and other ERERNEERE  RMGREAE—MrHRES
fast-growing categories in Mainland China, which is regarded as a EO#H  KEREATOAEESREREREE
single operating and reportable segment in a manner consistent with BHAHRE RS RRIRFTE—BH A R E o It
the way in which information is reported internally to the Group'’s S REBFERANZEIFRHEEBAITOUN
senior management for the purposes of resource allocation and RER - At - BRIAERASMAEEIN - K
performance assessment. In addition, the principal non-current assets BE2HDEBAHT

employed by the Group are substantially located in Mainland China.
Accordingly, no segment analysis is presented other than entity-wide

disclosures.
An analysis of revenue is as follows: Wz
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AREETTT
Revenue from contracts with customers B B B 745 S 5 2RI 28 1 555%
within the scope of IFRS 15 HEAKE TP &8
Sale of pharmaceutical products BEMIEHE 1,176,409 952,957
Revenue from contracts with customers REEFEHNKRE
(a) Disaggregated revenue information (a) WamBH A
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥TT ARBTFT
Type of pharmaceutical products E-finp kil
Human albumin solution AMBEHFSIR 848,156 548,423
Antibiotics (Axetine, Medocef and MAEZR(LAIR - BBELR
Trifamox IBL) Frialh) 325,994 396,413
Other pharmaceutical products (Taurolite, — HEfh &R CEREYE - B&E
Esafosfine, FEIEMIENER)
Dipherelina, and Tanakan) 2,259 8,121
Total revenue from contracts with customers B &F & L U258 1,176,409 952,957
Geographical markets WETE
All revenue from contracts with customers of the Group during REERBE20195 %2018 12 A31H1E
each of the two years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018 MIEFESFEMBRETF &K
was attributable to customers located in Mainland China, the RAMAFE R (REEEZELEELEH
place of domicile of the Group’s principal operating entities. i) B EP - REEWIERBEERBS
The Group's non-current assets are substantially located in 77 R B A 3,

Mainland China.
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Notes to Financial Statements B 7% ¥R R M 5E
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z2019F12A318ILFE

4. Revenue and Segment Reporting (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(@)

(b)

(©

Ws e o BP R E (48)
REEF AR (E)

Disaggregated revenue information (Continued) (@) ez EFIBAH(E)
Timing of revenue recognition B 22 B B T
All revenue from contracts with customers of the Group during HZE2019F %2018 12 A31 B IEMEAFE
each of the two years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018 are Z2E  AEERMAERAERL ALK ER
recognised when goods transferred at a point in time. IR E YRR ERER o
The following table shows the amounts of revenue recognised TRETFAREBVNEHNEBEELRR
in the current reporting period that were included in the EHABER RGNS
contract liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period:
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBFT
Revenue recognised that was RImERNFT A HAER
included in contract liabilities at the 2 MERUES
beginning of the reporting period:
Sale of goods (note 23) EMIEE (K15t23) 89,189 33,542
Information about major customers FEEFEH
Revenue from each of the major customers, which amounted KEZFEEPLAINEE10%E A EAIU
to 10% or more of the total revenue, is set out below: mEGIT
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARBTFT
Customer A BPA 212,321 120,370
Customer B =FB N/A RERA * 116,763
Customer C EPC 121,675 N/A REA *
*  Less than 10% of total revenue o DRAIRERI10%
Performance obligations b) EHEF
Information about the Group's performance obligations is BREAEBEAHSTMERME MM -
summarised below:
Sale of goods EBEYHEE
The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of the BHBEERTEMRERK - TR —K%
goods and payment is generally due within O days to 1 year RRHBEOKRE—F(2018F : 45KE—F)
(2018: from 45 days to 1 year) from delivery, except for new NEIR - EFIERP MR FREATEL
and small customers, where payment in advance is normally 38
required.
Revenue expected to be recognised in the future arising from (0 EABHHEFEANEGFEEFHEE A

contracts with customers in existence at the reporting date

As at 31 December 2019, the aggregated amount of the
transaction price allocated to the remaining performance
obligations under the Group’s existing contract with one
customer entered in 2018 is RMB29,685,000 (2018:
RMB48,956,000), which represents revenue expected to
be recognised in the future. The Group will recognise the
expected revenue in future when or as the goods are delivered
and control of the goods is transferred to the customer, which is
expected to occur over the next 12 months.

2019 F# EMABEEERARAR

HIR A R W

MN2019F 128318 - BREAEBR
2018 F B — B RBFFIUMBEBFEND
HEEHTENETINRZFEREES
A R #29,685,0007T (20184 : AR
48,956,0007T) ED%EHHEAEH%EEWE@H&
w o EEMERNREYIEHEDE S
BE(BERARRI2ME A L) B - ZJ&‘EI
S BB ERTERES
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Notes to Financial Statements B 7% 3R R i E
For the year ended 31 December 2019 & %2019 12 A31H It FE

4. Revenue and Segment Reporting (Continued)

5.

6.

4,

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)
(iii)  Revenue expected to be recognised in the future arising from
contracts with customers in existence at the reporting date

(Continued)

The Group has applied the practical expedient in paragraph
121 of IFRS 15 to its sales contracts with other customers such
that the above information does not include information about
revenue that the Group will be entitled to when it satisfies the
remaining performance obligations under the contracts for
sales of pharmaceutical products that had an original expected

duration of one year or less.

Other Income and Gains
An analysis of other income and gains is as follows:

a7 BP R (48)

REFFALHKES ()

(i) BB RS AR EFFATANNE
B A (R B s ()

AEBEREEMETPHE S LT R RBRY
BRELEAEISHRFI2NBRRNER RS % -
B ERER T REERASENEITYHRESRN
RAEBS—FNEMEEA D THRIBENE
KA RESHKRDRER

H AU B K 3
BRI RN AT -

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETT

Interest income on financial assets measured at BHEK AT ENEREE
amortised cost F 2 WA 311 627
Government grants* T B * 712 1,611
Foreign exchanges gains, net bE R E F 58 63 3,414

Gains on settlement of TEEMT AL
derivative financial instruments Wk - 6,407
Service income BRAEURA 12,992 =
Gross rental income from investment property REYMERSBKA 234 =
Others EAth 743 56
15,055 12,115
& There were no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to the S R RS B B AR BT IR S sk A FIE -

government grants.

Finance Costs
An analysis of finance costs is as follows:

B R A A
BUMBMBRANIHIT -

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TRT AREFIT
Interest on bank loans and other borrowings RITE R EAETRFLE 18,683 27,583
Interest on discounted bills receivable (note 79(b))  BLIRFEUSZ & FI| 8. (H15319(b)) 392 1,033
Interest on bonds BEHH B - 6,202
Interest on lease liabilities (note 26) MEBENE(H7F26) 92 =
Total interest expense on financial liabilities not at I 3FIR A F(EET AIBZEH
fair value through profit or loss (note 21(b)) SRAENERASRE
(K15221(b)) 19,167 34,818
Interest accrued on advance payments EETEN REER
from customer (note 23) FBE(Ha223) 859 =
20,026 34,818
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Notes to Financial Statements B 7% ¥R R M 5E
For the year ended 31 December 2019 # %2019 12 A31H It FE

7. Profit/(loss) Before Tax 7. BRBANER(EE)
The Group's profit/(loss) before tax was arrived at after charging/ AEEHNBRFILEF, (BB) Bk GEA)T
(crediting): HITER -
2019 2018
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BiRE AR¥TT ARETT
Cost of inventories sold EEFEKA 18 960,373 731,932
Depreciation charge (note a) rERX (fita)
— Investment property — B 114 -
— Owned property, plant and equipment —BBYE  BEX
(note b) BT 9,213 10,363
— Right-of-use asset (note b) —(EREAE(Mitb) 1,006 =
12 10,333 10,363
Amortisation of intangible assets mEERE 13 68 110
Research and development expenses (note a) i Z5FISZ (Afita) 1,585 2,074
(Reversal of impairment loss)/impairment FA TSI (B RREE
losses recognised on: 18B) THERNRERSRE
Goodwill e 15 - 23,701
Trade receivables Z S W RIA 35(a) 1,326 951
Financial assets included in prepayments, s AFERFUE -
other receivables and other assets HoAth FE U RIE K
HiBEEN S REE 35(a) (54) 526
1,272 25,178
Short-term lease payments SEIEIEN - NE 627 =
Total minimum lease payments for SRR IEBIR &5
lease previously classified as operating F1TRPERAEENE
leases under IAS 17 (note b) MAENRERENRK
HREE(H17EDb) - 1,464
Auditors’ remuneration 2 S BT B 1,850 2,700
Employee benefit expense RERAMA
(including Directors’ remuneration (B IEMTsE8FTE
as set out in note 8): (note a) EE2HM) - (Wita)
Wages and salaries TERF® 10,209 11,061
Welfare and other benefits &R R E A TS 352 307
Equity-settled share-based payment LA S E R
expense e 19 540
Pension scheme contributions BIKE Jri\M ,T,)\
— Defined contribution fund — R SRE 1,410 1,336
Housing fund FTEAED
— Defined contribution fund —THEHRES 506 513
Total employee benefit expense EERMAX B 12,496 13,757
Write-off of inventories (note ¢) GFEME (A tc) 18 106 117,875
Losses on disposal of items of property, HEWE  HEK
plant and equipment = AEIEE W EE 39 -
Rental income from investment property WEWMERS WA REE
less direct operating expense of RMB nil LEFHT ARBZIT
(2018: RMB nil) (2018%F : ARKZTT) (234) -
Notes: Wit -

(@) Included in research and development expenses are depreciation of
RMB315,000 (2018: RMB112,000) and employee benefit expenses
of RMB458,000 (2018: RMB534,000), which are also included in the
respective total amounts disclosed separately above.

2019 F# EMABEEERARAR

(@) WEARM315,0007T (20184 : AR
112,0007T) KB E@FIFZ ARMEE458,0005T
(20184 : AR¥534,000 jt) St AHTEFH
Y RESENAALNEBEENEELSE
ﬁq o
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Notes to Financial Statements B 7% 3R R i E
For the year ended 31 December 2019 & %2019 12 A31H It FE

7. Profit/(loss) Before Tax (Continued) 7. BRBIADEF,(EE) (8)
Notes: (Continued) MEE (88D
(b)  The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 using the modified retrospective (b) AEESERLEITENEERERBERITER
approach and adjusted the opening balances at 1 January 2019 to HRERE 165 - WHAER2019F1A1BHFY)
recognise right-of-use assets relating to leases which were previously EARAREREERIRERR S ERFE 17555518
classified as operating leases under IAS 17. After initial recognition of BEETHEMNTHEEBNEREEE - R2019
right-of-use assets at 1 January 2019, the Group as a lessee is required FIATEEAERERAREER  AEEEA
to recognise the depreciation of right-of-use assets, instead of the RN BRERGEAEEEE - MIERABLA
previous policy of recognising rental expenses incurred under operating BEGCEHENEGRZNEHRNERMEEHAS
leases on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Under this approach, FZHIBER « R L - EBREBTTEN - R
the comparative information is not restated. See note 2.2. MizE2.2 °
() Included in “other expenses” in the consolidated statement of profit or (0 FrAGZAEmkEMEEKEROIEMAS] -
loss and other comprehensive income.
8. Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Remuneration 8. EERIETBRAEFMUREEE
and Five Highest Paid Employees =5ES
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed BEBBHEIPMBRARESFLTRE - &
pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the BATEBIFEIBMNMER AT (BBEESHEE
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, section 383(1) of the Hong BORBIE2HHTE - FRAEEREETHAE
Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure HET ¢
of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBFT
Fees e 640 752
Other emoluments: Hiuu s -
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e R REYER 2,135 2,156
Pension scheme contributions RIREETEIHK
— Defined contribution fund —ERERES 38 37
2,813 2,945
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Notes to Financial Statements B 7% ¥R R M 5E
For the year ended 31 December 2019 # %2019 12 A31H It FE

8. Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Remuneration 8. EERTETBRAEFMUREZE

and Five Highest Paid Employees (Continued) BHEE(E)
(a) Independent non-executive Directors (a) BAFHITES
The fees paid to independent non-executive Directors during FABNBIUIENTESTNBRESOT ¢

the year were as follows:

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARETTT
Mr. Chow Siu Lui (note ii) BN ST (B Az - 136
Mr. Liu Wenfang RIS E 160 160
Mr. Wang Qing TR AL 160 160
Mr. Lau Ying Kit (note i) BB A (W 7ii) 160 24
Mr. Chen David Yu (note i) BRF S (i) - 56
Mr. Philip Wong Yee Teng (note ) HEMESL LN - 56
480 592
Notes: BisE -
i) Appointed on 19 January 2018 and retired on 25 May 2018 i) R2018F 1 H19R EZ T K H2018F5A
25HRME
i) Resigned on 8 November 2018 i) 2018511 A8HEHE
il Appointed on 8 November 2018 i) 72018511 A8HEERT
There were no other emoluments payable to the independent FRBEEN TEIEMITES A E M
non-executive Directors during the year (2018: Nil). (20185 : &) o
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Notes to Financial Statements B 7% 3R R i E
For the year ended 31 December 2019 & %2019 12 A31H It FE

8. Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Remuneration 8. EERTETBRAEFMUREEZE

and Five Highest Paid Employees (Continued) BHEE(S)
(b) Executive Directors and the chief executive (b) HTEERFEITHAE
2019
Salaries,

allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees inkind contributions remuneration

A -1 BEike
ok RENEF HELEEN e Pkl
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
AR®TR AR®TR AR®TR AR®TR

Executive Directors: HIEE
- Mr. Huang Xiangbin —EEWEAE - 2,135 38 2,173
~ Ms. Zhang Zhijie — k&ALt 160 - - 160
160 2,135 38 2,333
2018
Salaries,

allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees in kind contributions  remuneration

e 2 ERe
ik REMEF HEae e Pk
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFT AREFT ARETT

Executive Directors: WIEE
— Mr. Huang Xiangbin —EHW AL - 2,046 15 2,061
- Mr. Wu Qingjiang* — BT kA - 110 22 132
— Ms. Zhang Zhijie —REGLL 160 - - 160
160 2,156 37 2,353
3 Mr. Wu Qingjiang resigned as a co-chief executive officer of the * RETHRER2018F11 ASHEEARRR]
Company on 8 November 2018. BRI TIARE ©

1 60 Sinco Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2019



Notes to Financial Statements B 7% ¥R R M 5E
For the year ended 31 December 2019 # %2019 12 A31H It FE

8. Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Remuneration
and Five Highest Paid Employees (Continued)
(c) Five highest paid employees
The five highest paid employees during the year included one
Director (2018: one Director), details of whose remuneration

EERFRTHRABHFMUREER

EXEE(E)

(0 EEBEHES
R LABREHEERE —RES

(2018% : —REF) - AFBFHEHRN L

are set out in note 8(b) above. Details of the remuneration X HIEES(b) o HEAPOZ (20184F : U5 ) &
during the year of the remaining four (2018: four) highest paid BEHEEER AR ETETRABRER
employees who are neither a Director nor a chief executive of FRMEHFIBOT
the Company as follows:
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETT
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e RN EYEN 1,831 1,502
Pension scheme contributions BRAREFT B 154 101
Equity-settled share-based payment expense LA 2 45 B Y IR0 5 R <2 87 344
2,072 1,947
The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest HMN T TSR ZE T EEENIET
paid employees whose remuneration fell within the following BIHBAEREENASWNT :
band is as follows:
2019 2018
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z 21,000,000/ 7T 4 4

During the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018,
no emolument was paid by the Group to the directors or
chief executive or any of the five highest paid individuals
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office. None of the directors or chief
executive or any of the five highest paid individuals has waived
or agreed to waive any remuneration for the years ended 31
December 2019 and 2018.

2019 F# EMABEEERARAR

HZE2019F 2018412 A31HIEFE - K
EEMERNEEHIETETRAERAME
ZEEBHFATIMAME  (EAEMALRSE
Es AR S ERHEE - Sk EARERH
B o HZE2019F 2018412 A31H IF4F
B BMEEENETEBTRAERIMES
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Income Tax

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands and the
BVI, the Group is not subject to any income tax in the Cayman Islands
and BVI.

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the
Group's subsidiary in Hong Kong has accumulated tax losses brought
forward which exceed the estimated assessable profit for the year
ended 31 December 2019 (2018: the Group had no assessable
profits derived from or earned in Hong Kong during the year).

The provision for PRC Corporate Income Tax (“PRC CIT") is based
on the respective PRC CIT rates applicable to the subsidiaries located
in Mainland China as determined in accordance with the relevant
income tax rules and regulations of Mainland China for the year. All
subsidiaries domiciled in the PRC were subject to PRC CIT at a rate
of 25% during the two years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018.

The major components of income tax expense recognised in profit or
loss are as follows:

Fris®t
RENSRSRABRMRBBORATAR
FEBBASMHSHEREBEBRRESNE
RS -

R AREEBENEB R &[T 251 FIEE R
WA ZE2019F12 A31 B L FEGHERBIEF
(2018 F : "EBF AW ERE B AN B
A FERTLEH]) - BRE TR B SIS BIEME -

REIDZEASH ([ REMEMEH D BEDIRE
F AR B A BFTSHAR I R RFTE E 5 Bl
AR E R E A R AR B EAS R
FHE - #E2019F %2018 12 A31 8 I M A4S
- AP EIEMMET A E QB ERF R
BIRRHEE25% 87 -

RBRHERNA SRR REKIEI T

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARBTFT
Current tax: BNEARRIE
PRC CIT for the year FAPEPEMREN 12,114 10
Under-provision of PRC CIT in respect of wEFEREPEPERSH
prior years BETE 6,712 731
18,826 741
Deferred tax (note 17) BIERRIA(MaE17)
Origination and reversal of temporary differences R4 ZEER)ZE A4 K 0] 579 7,859
Total tax expense TIBF 2 4858 19,405 8,600
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Income Tax (Continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expense and accounting profit/(loss) at the

applicable tax rates as follows:

9. FREH(E)
AR R HOBUERI X R &R (518)
BHIRRIT -

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBTR ARBFT
Profit/(loss) before tax BEALER],(E58) 42,301 (272,015)
Added: disallowed expenses incurred AN - ANARIEAR
by the Company* GIE L 28,087 28,249
Profit/(loss) before tax generated by Hong Kong FEELTEME QR
and PRC subsidiaries EARBRERATSF(EE) 70,388 (243,766)
Tax at the respective statutory tax rates BREBEAEBRERAENTHIE
— PRC subsidiaries at 25% — BB A RIR25%5TE 14,180 (44,866)
— Hong Kong subsidiaries at 16.5% —BERWBATIRI6.5%:TE 2,255 (10,610)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax AR OB E 3,159 35,833
Utilisation of deductible temporary B BT AR TER A AT HIR
differences previously not recognised R (5,939) =
Under provision in previous year TEREBTR 6,712 731
Tax effect of income not subject to tax BART AR B E (5) -
Utilisation of tax losses previously not recognised  Eh @7 R ER N TIEEIB (2,431) =
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERHEEIBNRGTE 1,412 13,658
Tax effect of other deductible temporary RAERHE A A]HR
differences not recognised R EENTSTE 62 13,854
19,405 8,600

* Expenses incurred by the Company during each of the two years ended *
31 December 2019 and 2018 mainly consisted of consultancy service
fees, equity-settled share-based payment expense, interest on bonds
and other borrowing and foreign exchange differences incurred by the
Company. These expenses are not expected to be tax deductible.

2019 F# EMABEEERARAR

HE2019F K2018F12 A3 B ILMEFES
F o ARBMEANRASYEEBEAARMEL
RBARISEA « S
EHREMEROF S AREY =8 - %S>
FEE AT ATHR o

HHRM A REA
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Notes to Financial Statements B 73Rk 3R fi&E
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #;{Z=2019F 12 A31HILFE

10. Dividends

At a meeting of the Board held on 30 March 2020, the Directors
resolved not to pay final dividends to Shareholders for the Reporting
Period (2018 final dividend: Nil).

11.

Earnings/(Loss) Per Share

(a)

(b)

Basic earnings/(loss) per share

The calculation of basic earnings/(loss) per share is based
on the profit/(loss) attributable to owners of the Company
for the Reporting Period of RMB22,898,000 (2018: loss of
RMB280,614,000), and the weighted average number of
1,691,890,585 ordinary shares (2018: 1,688,529,683 ordinary
shares) in issue during the year.

Diluted earnings/(loss) per share

For the year ended 31 December 2019, diluted earnings
per share did not assume the exercise of the Company’s
outstanding share options as the exercise price of the option
was higher than the average market price per share. For the
year ended 31 December 2018, diluted loss per share was the
same as the basic loss per share as the potential ordinary share
outstanding had an anti-dilutive effect on the basic loss per
share.

10. RE
BEOMN2020F3A30BRITHNESSEF Lk
EAE A R RS R B E (2018 K
RS - ) o

11.
(@)

(b)

SRER,(E8)

SREXREF,(EHE)
BREARBF(FR)ZRENREHR
RARIHEAANELBR(BE) AR
# 22,898,000 7T (20184 : FHHE AR
280,614,0007C ) A R F A B #FH17 il AR
HN#E ¥ 15 281,691,890,585 A% ( 2018 4F
1,688,529,6830% L iEA% )5t & -

SREERF(HE)

HE2019F 128318 IEFE - BIREEER
IS 4B SR AN R B 1 AR AT O B I 1T
ff - RARERETEESNERTEN
B - B E20185F 12 A31 B ILEE - TS
SEEBEEGRERNBEER  REAEBR
BTN ERRESRERSBERES

2/ 48
=
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Notes to Financial Statements BAFS3RFRMIFT

For the year ended 31 December 2019 &{Z=2019F 12 A31HILFE

12. Investment Property and Other Property, Plant

and Equipment

12. REMEREMYE - BERRE

Ownership
interests in Other
landand properties
buldings held leased Construction
forownuse  for own use Office Motor ~Leasehold in progress Investment
carredatcost carriedatcost  Machinery  equipment vehicles  improvement ("cP7) Sub-Total property Total
BEATEN
itz i
feE Rt SIEH
tHRERH  EHER BEIR
fEREE  ERNE BB BOZRE fE EERE  (#RIR) Nt RENE i
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARBTn  ARMTr  ARMTR ARETR ARBTn  ARMTx  ARMTR ARBTR ARRBTR
Cost: A
At 1 January 2018 1201851718 184330 - - 10,381 18473 - 1,745 1499 - 114919
Additons e - - - 51 - - 1092 1143 - 1143
Tranferred fiom CP BRETRTE 4 - 1,531 - - = (1,903) = = -
Tranferred to payments n adance BRATENE = = = = 2 = (138 (738 > (738)
At 31 December 2018 1018E12831R 184,704 - 1531 10432 18473 - 194 15334 - 15334
Impact on il applicaton o IFRS 16 ENEREREAREE
(Note2.) FleHTEMT2) - 200 - - - - - 2047 - 207
At 1 January 2019 1201981718 184,704 2047 1531 10432 18473 - 194 17381 - 17381
Additions e 3 - 1 k7 - 201 276 55 - 555
Transfer from payments in advance EREBTE - - - B - 176 30,809 318 - 318
Transferred from CP ERERRTE - - 3 - - - (31) - - -
Transferred from property, plant and ERanE BER
equipment to investment property B Y (8.400) - - - - - - (3400) 8,400 -
Disposal it - - - ®) ) - - 1) = (1)
At 31 December 2019 R019812831R 176,347 2047 1563 10426 18,445 an 31208 240,553 8,400 248,953
Accumulated depreciation: EitlE:
At 1 January 2018 H2018E1318 9,704 = = 4193 9,265 = = 53162 = 53162
Provided for the year (note /) ERREW) 445 - 1] 2061 3517 - - 10363 - 10363,
At31 December 2018 and 1 lanuary 2019 20185128318 R
WIEIA1A 14,156 - 127 6,460 12,78 - - 355 - 3505
Provided for the year (note 7) ERREI) 433 1,006 bl 210 249 8 = 10219 114 1033
Transtered fiom property, plant and BREN% BER
equipment to investment property FEERENE (1153) - - - - - - (1,153) 1153 -
Wte back on disposal HERD - - - ] - - = ] = m
At 31 December 2019 10195128318 17,335 1,006 8 8,508 15274 68 - 0519 1,267 13786
Net canrying amount; FARE.
At 31 December 2019 1019812A31R 159,012 1041 1235 1918 31N 409 31208 198,034 113 205,167
At 31 December 2018 R018E1A3NA 170,548 - 1404 397 5,691 - 194 181,809 - 181,809

2019 F# EMABEEERARAR
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Notes to Financial Statements B 73Rk 3R fi&E
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #;{Z=2019F 12 A31HILFE

12. Investment Property and Other Property, Plant
and Equipment (Continued)

(a)

(b)

As of 31 December 2019, the Group's buildings and CIP
with aggregate net carrying amount of approximately
RMB116,919,000 (2018: RMB98,528,000), were erected on
the land where the Group is still in the process of applying for
the land use rights certificate. The Directors are of the view
that the Group is entitled to lawfully and validly occupy and
use the above-mentioned land. The Directors are also of the
opinion that the aforesaid matter will not have any significant
impact on the Group’s financial position as of 31 December
2019 and 2018.

As of 31 December 2019, the Group's buildings with a net
carrying amount of RMB72,755,000 (2018: nil) were pledged
to two banks to secure the bank loans (note 25(a)).

The Group’s land included in property, plant and equipment
is situated in Mainland China and held under medium lease
terms and long lease terms.

Right-of-use assets
The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets by
class of underlying asset is as follows:

12. i%g%%%&ﬂf&%% -BERBE

(@) M2019%F 128318 » AEEREAFE

HAR116,919,00070 (20184 = AR

98,528,0007T) WIEF R TIRENR A S

ENERBLinFEREEN T E  -ES

RENEBEEGEZRABEARER L

it EESRA LMEEHAEE

2019 %2018 12 A31 BB AT
THAMEATE -

MR2019F12A318 » AEBREFEASA
R#72,755,0007C (20184 : T)MEFE
T RERTT - (ERBRITEROER
£525(a)) ©

SAYE - BE RREHARE AR
TEAM - RPPRORERPRORE -

(b) EREEE
REREERN Y BNERREEREDF
EAFIT

31 December 1 January
2019 2019
20194 20194
12A31H 1H1H
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
iik=d ARBTR AREETTT
Other properties leased for own use, HibaAHEEME
carried at depreciated cost LI B AT R (i) 1,041 2,047
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Notes to Financial Statements BAFS3RFRMIFT

For the year ended 31 December 2019 &{Z=2019F 12 A31HILFE

12. Investment Property and Other Property, Plant

and Equipment (Continued)
(b)

Right-of-use assets (Continued)

The analysis of expense items in relation to leases recognised in

profit or loss is as follows:

(%)
(o)

12. REVERHMWYE - BERRE

EREEEE)
HERNBENEERFIAB DTN

2019 2018
(Note)
(B5E)
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBFT
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets RAREEHR D EAEA
by class of underlying asset: BEETERY :
Other properties leased for own use HiahEAHEYE 1,006 -
Interest on lease liabilities (note 6) HEaENE(Hze) 92 =
Expense relating to short-term leases and A B2 BAE B R EL A JRIBRAA BR
other leases with remaining lease term 7201912 A31H Z Al
ending on or before 31 December 2019 ERNFAENRAS 627 -
Total minimum lease payments for leases SRR REIR &5t 2R
previously classified as operating leases FNTRDERLEHER
under IAS 17 HENRERE KRBT - 1,464
Notes: Hiat -

The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 using the modified retrospective
approach and adjusted the opening balances at 1 January 2019 to
recognise right-of-use assets relating to leases which were previously
classified as operating leases under IAS 17. After initial recognition of
right-of-use assets at 1 January 2019, the Group as a lessee is required
to recognise the depreciation of right-of-use assets, instead of the
previous policy of recognising rental expenses incurred under operating
leases on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Under this approach,

the comparative information is not restated. See note 2.2.

Details of total cash outflow for leases and the maturity analysis of

lease liabilities are set out in note 26.

(i) Other properties leased for own use

R

ANEEE RS RIEE X ERABRBRI RS
AERNFE 1658 - WHAER2019F1 A1 BFLE
£ LR SEATIRIRBRR @5 ERIE 1 7R AL
CHENEBHEERRAEREEE - RN2019F1
R1BEREREREEER  AEB(EREAM
AN)VBEBREREEAENTE - MIEFRIRERNR
EHENERINEBANERTEERSH
THIBUR - BIBZ A S HBRERTTFEY - B

Fi3E2.2 ©

HERE R AENEERERH A DT ENH

7126 °

@

The Group has obtained the right to use other properties as
its office through tenancy agreements. The leases typically run
for an initial period of 2 to 5 years. Lease payments are usually

increased every 2 years to reflect market rentals.

2019 F# EMABEEERARAR

Hitg MAEMx
AEECRBHEERAMSEELNER
EEMRAZHRERN - EREENMIEHR
BER2ESF - HENK—REMFIEN
—IR > ARBRTISHEEKFE -
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Notes to Financial Statements B 73Rk 3R fi&E
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #;{Z=2019F 12 A31HILFE

12. Investment Property and Other Property, Plant
and Equipment (Continued)
()  Fair value measurement of investment property
(i)  Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group's properties measured at the end of the Reporting
Period on a recurring basis, categorised into the three-
level fair value hierarchy as defined in IFRS 13, Fair
value measurement. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with reference
to the observability and significance of the inputs used in
the valuation technique as follows:

o Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only
Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date

o Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2
inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level
1, and not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market
data are not available

o Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs

12. REVERHMWYE - BERRE

(%)
(0 BEMENAFEE
iy AFEER

TRERRE ARIRE E R LT
ENAEEVENATE  BEDE
R BB B R R s 2 R S 135 A A AT
EFEN=BRATFEBLESE - 2 F
B ENENEREL2EGHERIMF
FTABABNAIRREEREEEE
EWT -

©  FRIAE  BERE BB
B (R AES A iR A
clant L EES LS R
EHATE

o FE_RMHE:ERF-_ABAE
(AREFE—FNTBRBAE)
B MERERTAESREAERT
ENAHE - TABRBAER
Y EMSEIEAH2ENBAE

o FE=AMHE: EREATAER
BWAEAENATE

Fair value measurements as at
31 December 2019 categorised into

H2019512A31BNAFENED ES

Fair value at
31 December

2019 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
20194
128318
DFE E—® E-R E=ZR
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT

Recurring fair value KwEENTENE
measurement

Investment property BEYE
— Industrial - PRC —(TE—FE

During the year ended 31 December 2019, there
were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2,
or transfers into or out of Level 3 (2018: nil). The
Group's policy is to recognise transfers between
Levels of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the
reporting period in which they occur.

168

8,120 - - 8,120

HE2019F128318 ILFfE
FE—REE — 4 I
IR EE A o8 58 = 4 (2018
FE)  AEENBKARE
NP EB RS o P35
MRS BAR AR A RS o

Sinco Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2019



Notes to Financial Statements B 7% ¥R R M 5E
For the year ended 31 December 2019 # %2019 12 A31H It FE

12. Investment Property and Other Property, Plant
and Equipment (Continued)
()  Fair value measurement of investment property (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

The valuation was carried out by an independent
firm of surveyors, Asia-Pacific Consulting and
Appraisal Limited, who hold a recognised relevant
professional qualification and have recent
experience in the location and category of property
being valued. The Group's chief financial officer
has discussion with the surveyors on the valuation
assumptions and valuation results when the
valuation is performed at each annual reporting
date.

Valuation techniques

The income capitalization approach estimates the value
of the property on an open market basis by capitalizing
rental income on a fully leased basis having regard to
the current passing rental income from existing tenancy
and potential future reversionary income at the market
level. In calculating the net rental income, no deduction
has been made from the passing rental income which is
exclusive of property management fee. In this valuation
method, the total rental income is divided into a current
passing rental income over the existing lease term (the
term income) and a potential future reversionary rental
income over the residual land use term (the reversionary
income). The term value involves the capitalization of the
current passing rental income over the existing lease term.
The reversionary value is taken to be current market rental
income upon the expiry of the lease over the residual
land use rights term and is capitalized on a fully leased
basis. It is then discounted back to the date of valuation.
In this approach, the independent qualified valuer has
considered the term yield and reversionary yield. The term
yield is used for capitalization of the current passing rental
income as at the date of valuation whilst the reversionary
yield is used to convert reversionary rental income.

2019 F# EMABEEERARAR

12. REVERHMWYE - BERRE

(%)

mE

(0 HBEWMENRTEFEGE)

U

(ii)

RNFEBRE)
HERBINE QR AR
ABBRABET  ZAREEE
RAMAEERERALHEEREN
WEHE MR E RIRRI AT B
B o NEFERERIETHE
B AREEFMEE LR ER
AAERR kEESRETH

A
i

B ER
WABRFEEZEEREGHEINE
RESBARBREEERRANT
HKFE - BEREEEYENESEA
BRE - MRARMSEREEZE
MENEE - SHEESRAFEE
BENRREESRA(TEEDE
EEE) - HUHETE  HEWRA
RED RNERMREGERANIREE
WA (FRBA) R T L ERF
HAnBREEERESBAGER
WA) - FHEEPERNRA B
ERRAESBARTTER - NHE
etk - EREERT DA%
FHARGIEERNMSESRA - 1
EEHELELEENE - WREKRER
EHEANRE - RILTE - BIA
BRMAEMEEBFHOHRERER
EIFE - WERAF RO BRGREE
BHEARAESRABERL - MR
REFEEHRERERERHSIWNA -
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Notes to Financial Statements B 73Rk 3R fi&E
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #;{Z=2019F 12 A31HILFE

12. Investment Property and Other Property, Plant
and Equipment (Continued)
() Fair value measurement of investment property (Continued)

(i)  Key unobservable inputs used to determine fair values

(a

(0)

Capitalization rate

This is estimated based on the market lease over
market value on comparable. The higher the
capitalization rates used, the lower the fair values of
the investment property. In the 31 December 2019
valuation, a capitalization rate of 5.0% is used in
the income capitalization approach.

Base rent

Base rent is the standard rent payable under
the lease exclusive of any other charges and
reimbursements. This was estimated based on the
market lease comparable. The higher the base rent
used, the higher the fair values of the investment
property. The average gross daily unit base rent of
RMBO0.99 per square meter exclusive of Value-added
tax (“VAT") is used in the valuation.

The movements during the period in the balance

12. RENEREMY R - RERRRE

(%&)
(0 HEMENDNTEZ(E)
(i) BEATEMFEANERNTIERE
ABIE
(@ BARMbtx
B R RIBR IS A
B BMEAMmESE o FTEA
BERELERRS  BREVENHA
FEAK - R2019F12A31H
HEITHER - RABARNMEERE
FBrREAbLE & A5.0% °

(o) HAXHEE
EXNHSERBEEOENOERE
He  MEEEAEMERERE
EF0E - AXRHESERIEAELL
BhiHEAME o IERNER
HERR  KEMENHRIFER
= o HEMERFHELELRR
MERAEF I RKARKE0.997T
(T RERER(HEER])) -

(0 HANZFE=FNFEASHER

of these Level 3 fair value measurements are as SEIT
follows:
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTFT
Investment properties — Industrial - PRC & & ZE—17%E—F
At 1 January M1A1H - =
Transfer from other property, e A MY -
plant and equipment BB K& 7,247 -
Depreciation charge for the year FRFTERX (114) =
At 31 December ®12831H 7,133 -
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Notes to Financial Statements B 7% ¥R R M 5E
For the year ended 31 December 2019 # %2019 12 A31H It FE

12. Investment Property and Other Property, Plant 12. REVMERHMYXE - BERRKRE

and Equipment (Continued) (&)
(c)  Fair value measurement of investment property (Continued) (0 WEMENQNFET=(E)
(iii)  Key unobservable inputs used to determine fair values (i) BEAFEMERANERTAERE
N ¢
(d) The Group leases out investment property under () AEBZEEHERHEEY
operating leases. The leases typically run for an ¥ o ZEHE—RVBHRAE=
initial period of 3 years, with an option to renew & ARERNEFIRETA G
the lease after that date at which time all terms are 2 ABEENE - HEB T EE
renegotiated. None of the leases includes variable ATEEENK -
lease payments.
Undiscounted lease payments under non-cancellable RS BB A R rEEHE
operating leases in place at the reporting date will TR T 15 B 7R 52 B AR SR B T e W
be receivable by the Group in future periods as RIRBREENRAT -
follows:
2019 2018
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBTR AREFIT
Within 1 year —FNRX 51 -
After 1 year but within 2 years —FRIEMFNR 511 -
After 2 years but within 3 years MEERE=FR 128 -
1,150 =

2019 54 WHABEERARAT 171
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Notes to Financial Statements B 73Rk 3R fi&E
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #;{Z=2019F 12 A31HILFE

13. Intangible Assets

13. B EE

Software
B4
RMB’000
AREFTT
Cost at 1 January 2019, 201991 1 BIRAA -

net of accumulated amortisation Bk BT 113
Amortisation provided during the year FBERE A7)

(note 7) (68)
At 31 December 2019 720194912 A31H 45
At 31 December 2019: 7201912 A31H8 -

Cost BN 403

Accumulated amortisation RET# Y (358)
Net carrying amount REVFE 45
Cost at 1 January 2018, 7201841 B 1 BN

net of accumulated amortisation HIBR RETHESH 223
Amortisation provided during the year (note 7) FREEERE(MZ7) (110)
At 31 December 2018 720184 12H31H 113
At 31 December 2018: 2018F12A31H

Cost XA 403

Accumulated amortisation RETHEE Y (290)
Net carrying amount SR A 113

The amortisation charge for the year is included in “Administrative
expenses” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income.

FABHE NG AFEBREREMEERERT
BT
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Notes to Financial Statements B 7% ¥R R M 5E
For the year ended 31 December 2019 # %2019 12 A31H It FE

14. Payments In Advance 14. FENAFIE

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETT
In respect of- BER -
Prepayments made in relation to: AT B IENTEFRIA -
Prepaid long-term technique service fee TR BRI AR 75 2 3,157 7,819
Prepaid office decoration A AZES - 827
Construction of a warehouse ERAE 508 30,809
3,665 39,455
15. Goodwill 15. &
RMB’000
ARETTT
Cost at 1 January 2019, net of accumulated impairment 201951 1 BIRIKAR - Hfk 2EHRE -
Impairment during the year FARRE =
Net carrying amount at 31 December 2019 72019412 A31 BRI REFE -
At 31 December 2019: 72019912 H318 -
Cost AR (62,662)
Accumulated impairment ZEHRE (62,662)
Net carrying amount AREDFE =
Cost at 1 January 2018, net of accumulated impairment 7201851 1 RIRKA - Hfk 2FHRE 23,701
Impairment during the year (note 7) FENRIE A EZ7) (23,701)
Net carrying amount at 31 December 2018 72018512 A31 BHREFE =
At 31 December 2018: 72018%F12H318 -
Cost PR AR 62,662
Accumulated impairment ZERE (62,662)
Net carrying amount AR HE =

2019 F# EMABEEERARAR
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Notes to Financial Statements B 73Rk 3R fi&E
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #;{Z=2019F 12 A31HILFE

15. Goodwill (Continued)

Goodwill was acquired through the business combination of
Chengdu Hengsheng Ziguang Pharmaceutical Technology Co., Ltd.
and its wholly-owned subsidiary, namely, Xizang Linzhi Ziguang
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (“Linzhi Ziguang Group”) on 31 March
2015 (the “Linzhi Ziguang Goodwill”), the business combination
of Qingdao Ruichi on 22 December 2016 (the “Qingdao Ruichi
Goodwill”) and the business combination of Chengdu Sinco
Pharmaceuticals on 19 September 2017 (the “Chengdu Sinco
Pharmaceuticals Goodwill”).

Impairment testing of goodwill

For the year ended 31 December 2018

Goodwill acquired through business combinations was allocated to
the following cash-generating units (“CGU") for impairment testing:

o Sichuan Sinco CGU (Linzhi Ziguang Goodwill and Chengdu
Sinco Pharmaceuticals Goodwill); and

. Qingdao Ruichi CGU (Qingdao Ruichi Goodwill)

Sichuan Sinco CGU

The recoverable amount of the Sichuan Sinco CGU had been
determined based on a value in use calculation using cash flow
projections based on financial budgets covering a five-year period
approved by senior management. The discount rate applied to
the cash flow projections was 20.5%, which was determined by
reference to the average rates for a similar industry and the business
risk of the relevant business unit. Cash flows beyond the five-year
period were assumed to be stable.

Fﬁ%ﬁmﬁz%&@@%t S ERMAREER

2B BRI TR %ﬁi%ﬁ@ﬁ&An
(FMZ%%%J)%ZOB@H 31THMEBE O
([REZEXEE]D - FEmMN20165F12 722
HOEBKEH([EEHMEE]) R BERAE
20179 A 19H XA G ([ B EBERER B
BEPNE | )FESE ©

TR ER

BE2018F12A318 LFE
BEBAHASEEIEE TIREELEN
(MReEEEM DIERER

o MIEMERSELFEMMNZRALHER
REERBELERE) - &

o EERHREEABN(EESHHEER)

79) 1] 257 2 A B

o)l BRI S E A BB ) PR El S R AR A
RESRER B ERENLFHMNMBREE
HRReRERILREREETEEE - Han
STERPAERAMNALIR X 520.5% » W2 ZEH
PITER T R AR R B A E R R &
ET AFHBN ENRSREBRABTE °
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Notes to Financial Statements B 73R 3R Mi&E
For the year ended 31 December 2019 &{Z=2019F 12 A31HILFE

15. Goodwill (Continued) 15. BE(E)

Impairment testing of goodwill (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Continued)

Qingdao Ruichi CGU

The recoverable amount of the Qingdao Ruichi CGU had been
determined based on a value in use calculation using cash flow
projections based on financial budgets covering a five-year period
approved by senior management. The discount rate applied to
the cash flow projections was 21.3%, which was determined by
reference to the average rates for a similar industry and the business
risk of the relevant business unit. Cash flows beyond the five-year
period were assumed to be stable.

The following describes each key assumption on which management
had based its cash flow projections to undertake impairment testing
of goodwill:

Budgeted gross margins — The basis used to determine the value
assigned to the budgeted gross margins was the average gross
margin achieved in the year immediately before the budget year,
increased for expected market development.

Discount rates — The discount rates used were pre-tax and reflect
specific risks relating to the relevant units.

The values assigned to key assumptions were consistent with
external information sources.

2019 F# EMABEEERARAR

EERERR(E)

HZ2018F 128310 L EE(4E)
BEEHH L ELEN
SEmREEEBENMATKEI SR TIRAER
EegEmEL ERE R FHRNMEBEEEY
mEeRERAREABENEST - Rans
FEBIFTIR FARIBRIR R A21.3% » It &2 E 5L
TENFIEERARESSMNEBRREE
E o AFHBN ENBSRERRAIET

EEERETHERENARIERSRERR
FriiER) R IAE Z2RBR @AM T -

BHEMNE - REEEREEMNXMIEEEEN
EETNERBEFEN —FMESHNFEER
xR RBHTISRRMIE M -

FEIRE— PRI R RTRATLL X - RIRB RIS
R E R o

BT EEZRENVEERINBERRIFAER

175



Notes to Financial Statements B 73Rk 3R fi&E
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #;{Z=2019F 12 A31HILFE

16. Prepayments, Other Receivables and Other

16. FE{SRIE ~

HttEWRER L MEE

Assets
2019 2018
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BiaE AR¥TT ARBTFT
Current portion BN
Prepayments in respect of: LT IE B By 78115008
— purchase of inventories —BERE 12,335 32,441
— consultation service fee —BHRAREE 202 2,129
— others —H 1,718 72
Deposits £ 4,803 16,154
Value-added tax recoverable 7] U [B] 32 {E T 26,657 14,150
Amount due from a director B —BEEHIE ©) 447 -
Other receivables in respect of: LTI B BB JEWE -
— purchase rebate —HEE - 57
— staff advances —BI#xK 418 282
46,580 65,285
Less: Allowance for credit losses B S EEEEE 35(a) (472) (526)
46,108 64,759
Non-current portion IERENER D
Deposit e (b) - 3,000
46,108 67,759

Prepayments and deposits expected to be recovered or recognised as
expense after more than one year is RMB nil (2018: RMB3,000,000).
All of the other prepayments, other receivables and other assets are

expected to be recovered or recognised as expense within one year.

Notes:

(@)  The balance due from Mr. Huang Xiangbin is staff advances, which are
unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand. No allowance for
doubtful debts has been made in respect of the amount due from a

director.

The maximum outstanding balance during the Reporting Period is

RMB447,000 (2018: nil).

(b)  The balance represented a deposit paid to an independent third
party, which is controlled by State-owned Assets Supervision
and Administration Office of Shuangliu District, in respect of the

construction of the Group’s warehouse.
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TEHAR —F & IR B sk R AR X M TE N FIB K&
BeEBARBZT (20184  AR% 3,000,000
JL) ° AT HATEN FRIE - At ERETE R A
BEETER—FRWEERAMAX

(a)

(b)

FEME RN R E AR BRI - 2B RIRER
BENBTRN - AEELEHR R —REEK

B RAREE -

RmERNERREREHR/AREA447,0007T

(2018%F : &)

EHRERERAEEREMA —2mERERE

BEEBEERZ B GEHN
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Notes to Financial Statements B 7% ¥R R M 5E
For the year ended 31 December 2019 # %2019 12 A31H It FE

17. Deferred Tax

Deferred tax assets recognised
The components of deferred tax assets recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position and the movements

during the year are as follows:

17. EERE

CHRRELERIREE
R R RRREITH B AR
RS REBIT :

Changes in

fair value of
financial
liabilities at fair
value through

Losses available

profit or loss for offsetting Provision
classified as  against taxable for
held for trading profits impairment Total
PEABIFEE
BAFEHA
BRHER R
BEATESE EREZNNER BERE st
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBT T ARBTR ARBTR
At 1 January 2018 ®2018F1 718 33 9,126 - 9,159
Deferred tax credited/(charged) FRt AR
to profit or loss during the year (BEEMR)E
(note 9) ERTE(WZE9) (33) (8,039) 213 (7,859)
At 31 December 2018 7201812 A318 &
and at 1 January 2019 2019517318 - 1,087 213 1,300
Deferred tax credited/(charged) FRAERE
to profit or loss during (BE&EMR)E
the year (note 9) B IB(H159) - (1,087) 508 (579)
At 31 December 2019 #2019%128318 - - 721 721

2019 3 EIRIERBEZERER AR
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Notes to Financial Statements B 73Rk 3R fi&E
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #;{Z=2019F 12 A31HILFE

17. Deferred Tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets recognised (Continued)

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had accumulated tax
losses arising in Mainland China of RMB18,204,000 (2018:
RMB16,166,000) that would expire in five years for offsetting
against future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses
arose. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the
tax losses arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss making as it was
not considered probable that tax profits would be available against
which the tax losses can be utilised.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group has allowable tax losses
arising in Hong Kong of approximately RMB54,322,000 (2018:
RMB66,181,000) which are available for offsetting against future
taxable profits of the company in which the loss arose. Deferred tax
assets have not been recognised in respect of that tax losses arisen
in subsidiary in Hong Kong for both years due to the unpredictability
of future profit streams. The tax losses do not expire under current
tax legislation.

Deferred tax liabilities not recognised

Pursuant to the income tax rules and regulations of the PRC, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors
from the foreign investment enterprises established in Mainland
China. The requirement has been effective from 1 January 2008 and
applied to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding
tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland
China and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. The withholding
tax rate for the Group is 10%.

As of 31 December 2019, no deferred tax liability has been
recognised for withholding taxes that would be payable on the
unremitted earnings that are subject to withholding taxes of the
Group's subsidiaries established in Mainland China. In the opinion of
the Directors, it is not probable that these subsidiaries will distribute
such earnings in the foreseeable future after their assessment based
on factors which included the dividend policy, the level of working
capital required for the Group’s operations and the expansion of
the Group's operations in Mainland China. The aggregate amount
of temporary differences as associated with undistributed profit of
subsidiaries in Mainland China for which deferred tax liabilities have
not been recognised totalled approximately RMB25,259,000 (2018:
RMB6,809,000).

17. EERE(E)

ERERELERIEEE(E)
2019128318 » AEERFBEAMEER
R HEEE A ARE18,204,0007T (20184 ¢
AR#16,166,0007T) * R AFRE|E - A]A
VEHRSHEE £ B IE M A R R AR R IE SR BB FI o W 4R
HAFEBBNNEBRREENTIEHERERE
EMIBEE - RAREHENBATWR A8
B FERRT s A AT R S IE & o

2019128318 - X"EBEEEBELEN I E
ERHIBEKBY A ARES4,322,0005t(2018
F: AR¥66,181,0007T) * ATARIKBEEEE
ERREARRIERBRF] o BRI = F 578
A I ERRETERE BB ARELNH
HBHBERECHEBEE - RERITRE - %5
FIEE B K g o

REREEFHIEEE
RBEFEAEHRRNRER - SRR R AL
RISNE S EMINEZREE T IR R EEUK10%
HIFEHIRL © 5% R FE B 2008E1 A1B AR - IF
EAR2007F12A31BENAEF - fHHhE A
BOINEIS EE ATE R AR B SR M
AR FRARERTENRE - REENEINHEA
10% °

HZE2019612A8310 T ERAEERTPENR
HbAK ST BB A R FE A5 RO SR BE HY BRI P R ) 78
NBERELCHERE - E2RE - ERREK
B AEEEBAENEEESKTERAEEE
AP B AR EEERZETITGEE - ZENE
ARAA] BRI ARAT e D IR B EAEF - Rt E
R P B b AR ST HY BB A BB AR 90 T s A 0 B
B = BRABEEL AR #25,259,0007T (20184 ¢
ARH6,809,0007T) ERRLET IHA & o
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Notes to Financial Statements B 7% ¥R R M 5E
For the year ended 31 December 2019 # %2019 12 A31H It FE

18. Inventories
At the end of the Reporting Period, all inventories represent
purchased pharmaceutical products.

The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an expense
and included in profit or loss is as follows:

18 ﬁdb

i

SR - AEFEREMBENE

o

BERAAXAAABRNFESEONET

2019 2018

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR ARBFT

Carrying amount of inventories sold BEEFERAE 960,373 731,932
Write-off of inventories MiHFE 106 117,875
960,479 849,807

At 31 December 2019, the Group's inventories with a carrying
amount of RMB224,686,000 (2018: RMB147,516,000) were
pledged to secure the Group’s other payables as further detailed in
note 24(b) to the financial statements.

19. Trade and Bills Receivables

MR2019F 12310 * AEEBUGFEREEBEAR
#224,686,0007T(20184F : AR% 147,516,000
TERAEBEMENFIERNEIR - E— 5
BB = P 5E24(b) ©

19. EZRIRREARERRE

2019 2018
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
PR AR®T T AREFTT
Trade receivables B 5 R GRIA (a) 28,412 23,921
Less: Allowance for credit losses B S EEEEE 35(a) (2,441) (1,115)
Bills receivable FEUNE (b) 4,739 3,371
30,710 26,177

(a) The Group granted credit terms ranging from 0 days to 1 year
(2018: from 45 days to 1 year) to customers after the delivery
of goods, except for small and new customers who make
payments in advance prior to the delivery of goods. The Group
seeks to maintain strict control over the settlements of its
outstanding receivables and has a credit control department to
minimise credit risk. Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.
Further details of the Group’s credit policy and credit risk
arising from trade receivables are set out in note 35(a).

2019 F# EMABEEERARAR

(a)

BB R FTIE R E R RN & RATTEN 5B
Hh AEBERRPEERIMTEMEBORE
—F(2018F : 45 RE—F)MEEH - K
SESKEEMRKBIMEIRELEE %
%ﬁ%? fll - WERAEEESIET - g
zi‘f BRERE - 5 EWKREST

ZKEEIE@;ﬁ RRIRAE SRR
IEE’\M%EJ‘L b 0 — 2 S HIBE AT EE35(a) ©
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Notes to Financial Statements B 7% 3R R i E
For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z20195F12A318ILFE

19. Trade and Bills Receivables (Continued)
(a) (Continued)

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the
reporting periods, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

19. EZEWE

(@)

RIE R W RS ()

(%)

REs MR ER T BN E 5 EKHIER
BRI ST -

2019 2018

RMB’'000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARBETFTT

Within 3 months —EAR 26,476 20,684
3 to 12 months =Zz+_-f@AA 1,509 2,755
Over 1 year —FLAE 427 482
28,412 23,921

(b) As at 31 December 2019, the Group discounted certain

unexpired bills receivable accepted by banks in the PRC, with
a carrying amount in aggregate of RMB37,800,000 (the
“Derecognised Bills”) (2018: RMB96,465,000). All of the
Derecognised Bills had been accepted by reputable banks
in the PRC and had a maturity of three months (2018: one
to seven months) at the end of the Reporting Period. In
accordance with the Law of Negotiable Instruments in the PRC,
the holders of the Derecognised Bills have a right of recourse
against the Group if the PRC banks default (the “Continuing
Involvement”). In the opinion of the Directors, the Group has
transferred substantially all risks and rewards relating to the
Derecognised Bills. Accordingly, it has derecognised the full
carrying amounts of the Derecognised Bills and the associated
advances on discounting. The maximum exposure to loss from
the Group’s Continuing Involvement in the Derecognised
Bills and the undiscounted cash flows to repurchase these
Derecognised Bills is equal to their face amounts. In the opinion
of the Directors, the fair values of the Group’s Continuing
Involvement in the Derecognised Bills are not significant.

During the year, the Group has recognised interest expenses
of RMB392,000 (2018: RMB1,033,000) (note 6) on discounted
bills receivable. No gains or losses were recognised from the
Continuing Involvement, both during the year or cumulatively.
The discounting has been made evenly throughout the year.

(b)

MR2019%F 128318 AEBERMBRE TE
PREMRITERENROHRKRER 2%
EWEEEERES XA ARK37,800,000
(TR IEERERE]) (2018F : ARK
96,465,0007T) ° ZEp4L E TR REF
MBRITHEN, - RIBEBR - ZERED
BIER A=A (2018%F : —=+@A) -
BE(PEARLMBEZEE) - WHEH
BITEY  RIEBRZENBEAEELE
EREAERE(FELE]) - EFERA
AEEDERRABOBRIEREES
AR R EER - Hlt - EEKRIERERK
IFEREERABMRBARN2IEE
B AEBREEKRIEERERNZFES M
ME R &S E KRR BB ZER L E
REBMARMBRESREHAEERS -
EERE  AEEHKIIBEREEORE
SHENAFETTIERK -

FR - ANEBEEREWRIEZEBENF S
X AR®392,0007C(20184F : ARME
1,033,0007T ) (fizE6) - BEERF Ak R+
ERFES AN ELEE - BEMEE
AT -
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Notes to Financial Statements BAFS3RFRMIFT

For the year ended 31 December 2019 &{Z=2019F 12 A31HILFE

20. Other financial assets measured at Amortised Cost

20. ZBERATENEMESBMEE

2019 2018
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARETTT
Unlisted debt investments outside Hong Kong — BRBUIINYIE ETEBIRE —
wealth management products issued by banks RITEITHIEBE R 1,990 -

The above unlisted debt investments at 31 December 2019 were
wealth management products issued by banks in Mainland China.
They were classified as financial assets measured at amortised cost
as their contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and

interest on the principal amount outstanding.

21. Cash and Cash Equivalents, Pledged Bank 21.

Balances and Other Cash Flow Information
(a) Cash and cash equivalents and pledged bank

M2019F 128318 » LilldF EEBKIRE AP R A

RITRITOEMER

DRBREBHERAENER

BE REGHREREE/INAEREAREER
SENFE -

ReRBREEEY SEFRTER
REMRSREER
(a) RERRESEFEWUR S EFRT

balances 4EER
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR AREETTT
Cash at banks and on hand RITRFEES 219,755 80,330
Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated 44 B EHRREZTHIRE R
statement of financial position REZEEY 219,755 80,330
Pledged bank balances* BRI TAE SR 5,001 13
Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated ~ 4FAIREHRERARIRE &
statement of cash flows BEEEY 224,756 80,343

* The balances represented bank deposits with original maturity of
less than three months when acquired which are pledged to bank
for issuance of letters of credit for the purchase of pharmaceutical

products.

The Group’s cash and bank balances at the end of the

*

EMERER REBRTHBB=EA %R
BIEME NS E A EIR T RITORT

MIBEHR - NEBEHR S RIRITHERT

Reporting Period can be further analysed as follows: E—FHWAT :
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARETT AREFTT
Denominated in RMB LAAREEHE 211,624 25,849
Denominated in US$ LAZETEHE 12,770 53,490
Denominated in HK$ LA TTATE 301 937
Denominated in SGD LAST I3 JTatE 61 67
224,756 80,343

2019 F# EMABEEERARAR
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Notes to Financial Statements B 73Rk 3R fi&E
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #;{Z=2019F 12 A31HILFE

21. Cash and Cash Equivalents, Pledged Bank
Balances and Other Cash Flow Information
(Continued)

(@) Cash and cash equivalents and pledged bank
balances (Continued)
The RMB bank balances placed at bank in Mainland China is
not freely convertible into other currencies. However, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily

21. fﬁ%&fﬁﬁﬁﬁ% C KR T

THEER
HttReREBER(E)

(@) RERREEB/YURCIKIFRT

wmeR(E)
FARBEABRITHARBRITESRTEE
BRABRAEMEY - AW - RIEFERA
HICONEE IR RG] R HEEE - BIERNEE
BRE)  AEEREBERERRINEE
HERTTII AR AR E AL EH -

ROTRSEBEEARTERFEFEN

bank deposit rates. Time deposits are made for the period CEFERE S o THEZNGEAEH A= E
of three months, and earn interest at the respective deposit B WEEEMEARF R B - $R174
rates. The bank balances and time deposits are deposited with REBFEZIIER Eﬁﬁ/ﬁ\y—mpafjﬂ{; o
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default. BIFR5E1T ©
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (b) MEITHELANEGEHER
activities
Bank and
Interest other Lease
Bonds payable borrowings liabilities Total
BTR
&% ERFIES Hitifa R HERE st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARBTR ARETE:
(note 24) (note 25) (note 26)
(Hizt24) (Hii25) (Hizt26)
At 1 January 2018 R20185181A 133,856 9 275,815 - 409,765
Changes from financing cash flows RERSTRER (98,586) (20,021) (130,992) - (249,599)
Non-cash changes: FHeEH
Exchange adjustments fE 5 A% (5,044) - 177 - (4,867)
Equity component of convertible bonds AT EHMERAR D (30,226) - - - (30,226)
Interest expenses (note 6) FEFZ (Hizke) = 34,818 = = 34,818
At 31 December 2018 2018512318 - 14,891 145,000 - 159,891
Impact on initial application of IFRS 16 &)X fEF BB F5 iR £ )
FIRNFE - - - 2,047 2,047
At 1 January 2019 R2019%181A - 14,891 145,000 2,047 161,938
Changes from financing cash flows BEBRL TSR = (10,785) 42,484 (963) 30,736
Interest expenses (note 6) FERE (o) = 19,075 = 92 19,167
At 31 December 2019 2019128318 - 23,181 187,484 1,176 211,841
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Notes to Financial Statements B 7% ¥R R M 5E
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z2019F12A318ILFE

22. Trade Payables 22. E

An ageing analysis of trade payables as of the end of the Reporting
Period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

2 5 BT 08
PHERRENBEEZ AN E 5N ZIERE D
W

2019 2018

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR AREETTT

Within three months =@AAR 252 106,241
Over three months =EAE 145,906 660
146,158 106,901

Trade payables of the Group are non-interest-bearing and are
normally settled within 360 days from the invoice date (2018: 90
days).

23. Contract Liabilities 23.

The Group recognised the following revenue-related contract
liabilities, which represented the unsatisfied performance obligation
as at 31 December 2018 and 2019. The balance of contract liabilities
is expected to be recognised as revenue within one year.

Movements in the contract liabilities balances during the year 2019
and 2018 are as follows:

AEBNEFENFETTE  —BREEAH
%3608 (20184 : 90H ) N&EE -

SHEE

AEERRA T ERKSEBAANEOEE - BEER
2018¢&2019¢12H31E%LﬁXEﬁEiﬁEEO
AW EBEEBTESITR —FRER AR -

ABHBEEHN2019F X2018FREFINT -

RMB’000
AREETTT
Carrying amount at 1 January 2018 72018F1 A1 HEEREIE 41,503
Revenue recognised that was included in the contract RENF AR AGEERY
liabilities balance at the beginning of the year (note 4(a)) B RS (M E4@)) (33,542)
Transfer to value-added tax payable upon revenue recognised R U %5 14 B 15 2= e (< J (B 734 (4,360)
Consideration received from customers, excluding amounts  [A]& F UEEY (B
recognised as revenue during the year TEERERNER A RN ST 126,069
Carrying amount at 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019 8201812 A31H &
201941 A1 HABREE 129,670
Revenue recognised that was included in the contract REFETAE N B EEHRD
liabilities balance at the beginning of the year (note 4(a)) B R (FiiE4a)) (89,189)
Transfer to value-added tax payable upon revenue recognised RN 75 12 B 35 2 JE (SHEB(E R (11,595)
Consideration received from customers, excluding amounts @& FWEHIK(E
recognised as revenue during the year TEERFRERANENEEE 8,837
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of Higal 257 SR EHAE L a EHEMN
accruing interest expense on advances (note 6) (Hi3E6) 859
Carrying amount at 31 December 2019 R2019F 12 431 BHRREIE 38,582

2019 F# EMABEEERARAR

183



Notes to Financial Statements B 7% 3R R i E
For the year ended 31 December 2019 & %2019 12 A31H It FE

23. Contract Liabilities (Continued)

184

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of contract
liabilities recognised are as follows:

Sale of pharmaceutical products

The Group requests certain customers to pay deposits when they
place the sales order. The advance payment received result in
contract liabilities being recognised until the Group delivers the
products and the customers obtain control of the pharmaceutical
products.

The significant decrease in contract liabilities in the year ended 31
December 2019 was mainly due to the performance obligations
satisfied upon delivery of products of RMB89,189,000 resulting in
a decrease in contract liabilities of RMB100,784,000 taking into
account the effect of value-added tax on the revenue recognised.
For the year ended 31 December 2018, the significant increase in
contract liabilities was due to the advances received from customers,
mainly the new customers, of RMB126,069,000, resulting in an
increase in contract liabilities of RMB88,167,000.

There was no revenue recognised in the current reporting period
that related to performance obligations that were satisfied in a prior
year.

23. EHNERE(E)

FECHRAOAESEN —REFIERAT

HEZmM

AEBEBRETEPR NEHETERI TR
% - ERFENFAEHA DB BERARERNE
an 1 55 BR IS 4 BE S O P IR B 5 T HERR. o

BHZE2019F12A31BLEFE - GHEERER
LEBRARRZ ARES9,189,0007T ) E
BEKBHRMR  MERIGETECERRED
HEBFEEHAERD AR100,784,0007T ©
HZE2018F12A31HIEFE - GHBEKNIRE
MEREARUBREF(EZANES)NBENFIE
AR ®126,069,0007T * F&HABEEMARKE
88,167,0007T °

RAREHL BERBBEFERNBEOEEN
Wiz e
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Notes to Financial Statements B 73R 3R Mi&E
For the year ended 31 December 2019 &{Z=2019F 12 A31HILFE

24. Other Payables and Accruals

24, HiEAFRIE R BT FIE

2019 2018
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B s ARBT ARET T
Current portion BNERER
Payables related to: BRAATIEE B FERIFUA
Payroll and welfare payable FENTERER 605 1,129
Property, plant and equipment Y R NG 1,312 1,312
Deposits received Bz e (a) 7,532 18,596
Consulting and professional fees BAREEE 19,122 17,562
Other tax payables H b e i 18 786 6,717
Interest payable FERTFI B, 23,181 14,891
Other payables H fth e3R8 (b) 85,226 145,318
137,764 205,525
Non-current portion FERNEREL >
Other payables H fth fEATRRIA (b) 195,962 -
333,726 205,525

Notes: B -

(@) The balances represented refundable deposits received from the (a) HHIEARIBAEBCHERBEHEpEROM
Group's distributors according to the sales contracts in order to BREBHESNREERBMNRERS -
guarantee their performance under the distribution agreement.

(b)  The balance as at 31 December 2019 mainly represented the payables (b) H2019F 12 A3THWAHRTIERENTIOA

to four (2018: one) independent third parties, which are principally
engaged in import agent services, for its settlement of part of purchase
of pharmaceutical products on behalf of the Group together with the
service charge for the import and logistics services. Such payables were
non-interest-bearing and secured by inventories with a carrying amount
of RMB224,686,000 (2018: RMB147,516,000) (note 18).

On 31 December 2019, the Group had obtained a facility of RMB200
million from one import agent, for a period from 1 January 2020 to
30 June 2021. As at 31 December 2019, the Group has an amount
payable to this import agent of RMB195,962,000. According to the
facility provided, the Group has the right to repay the outstanding
balance on or before 30 June 2021. In the opinion of the Directors, the
Group will repay the balance of RMB195,962,000 to the import agent
after one year from the end of the Reporting Period.

Except that the RMB195,962,000 (2018: RMB nil) is expected to
be settled after one year, all of the other payables and accruals are

expected to be settled within one year or are repayable on demand.

2019 F# EMABEEERARAR

(2018%F + —&) TR B EAORERLEHE
ME=ZFTHFR  AERRAREE D%
n 2R B0 SRR A RO O R )R AR S 60 AR 7S & o
FHEEMRERTE - BERAEBARS
224,686,000 7T (2018 4F = A K ¥ 147,516,000
TO) R (FIEE18) R -

R2019%F12A31H » AEEE —REQORE
EESRMEARB200EET - 8B H2020F 1
B1H#ZE202146 A30H - %2019 12 A31
B AEEENZEORENZEAARK
195,962,0007T ° HRIEFMIBEHIFE - XEBE
HEMR2021F6 A30A sk 2 ATEE KRB EM R -
EERE  AEEBRNHREHR—FREEAR
HEEAH AR 195,962,0007T °

Br AR #195,962,00070(2018%F «+ ARBZT)

RN —FRBMEN

PR B A A 5008 e e T

PR N —FRBESILEREE -

185



Notes to Financial Statements B 73Rk 3R fi&E
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #;{Z=2019F 12 A31HILFE

25. Interest-Bearing Bank and Other Borrowings 25. FFRRITRHAMER
2019 2018
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
(%) Maturity RMB'000 (%) Maturity RMB'000
BRAIE(%) HER  ARETT  EBRRE®) JER ARETR
Current; Hngg
Bank loans ROER
- Secured and guaranteed -EHAREER 4.8-5.6 2020 47,484 6.1 2019 5,000
Other borrowings HibfER
- Secured and guaranteed (Note (b)) —-BEBRBERWHY) 132 2020 140,000 13.2 2019 140,000
Bank and other borrowings repayable  [EEEBTREMER
Within one year —ER 187,484 145,000
Notes: ez -

(@ The Group's bank loans and other borrowings are secured and
guaranteed as follows:

(i) At 31 December 2019, the bank loans of RMB47,484,000 are
secured by the Group’s ownership interests in land and buildings
held for own use of RMB72,755,000.

At 31 December 2018, the bank loan of RMB5,000,000 was
secured by the 100% equity interests in Xizang Linzhi Ziquang
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (“Xizang Linzhi Ziquang”) and 40%
equity interests in Sichuan Sinco Pharmaceuticals, both are the
indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company.

(i) At 31 December 2019, the bank loan of RMB9,000,000 is
guaranteed by Mr. Huang, the Chairman, executive Director,
Chief Executive Officer and the controlling party of the Company.

At 31 December 2019, the bank loan of RMB38,484,000
is guaranteed by the Company and its subsidiaries including
Chengdu Sinco Technology, Xizang Linzhi Ziquang and Qingdao
Ruichi.

At 31 December 2018, the bank loan of RMB5,000,000 was
guaranteed by the Company’s subsidiaries including Chengdu
Sinco Technology, Xizang Linzhi Ziquang, Sichuan Sinco Biological
Technology Co., Ltd. and Chengdu Hengsheng Ziguang
Pharmaceutical Technology Co., Ltd.

(i) At 31 December 2019, the other borrowings of RMB140,000,000
(2018: RMB140,000,000) is secured by 1,049,990,000 issued
ordinary shares of the Company held by Risun and guaranteed by
Mr. Huang.

(@) AEBERITERLEME R AT EERRE
®

() M2019%F12A318  RITERARK
47,484,000t A AREBRFEE A1
MEFHFAE#EZS ARBET2,755,0007T
YRS -

MR2018%F12A318 » FITERARE
5,000,0007C PRI S SN EEBRET
ARN([PEEIRZ 5L ]) B9 2 SRR A K rm) |
FRIARBEZE R 40% RAEIEER - MEAR
HEARTRNEEZEHBRR -

iy M2019F12A318  RITERARE
9,000,000TTHA AR EE « MITES « 17
BB R F E SRR -

R2019F12 8318 RITERARKE
38,484,000 AR A R E B AT (B
AREBEBIARRM - ARMAE EXRESR
B VEHEAR o

MR2018%F12A318 » FITERARE
5,000,0007T 3 A2 &1 B A &) (BB D
SRR - AR SO - W) ERLE
AR AR A B A #PE AR 5K BE B
TR A B ERER -

(i) M2019F12A31H  HERARK
140,000,0007T (20184 = A R # 140,000,000
JL) B Risun$ A #91,049,990,000 % 4 A 7]
BT BRI R E T AEEER -
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25. Interest-Bearing Bank and Other Borrowings
(Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(b)  On 27 March 2019, the Company as the borrower, Mr. Gui Guoping,
an independent individual as the original lender, Risun as the chargor,
Mr. Huang as the guarantor, Guangsha Overseas Holdings Limited
and Mr. Ye Songshao, both are independent third parties as the
new lenders, entered into a supplemental agreement to extend the
repayment date of the other borrowing of RMB140,000,000 for an
additional year from 30 April 2019 to 30 April 2020. The borrowing of
RMB 140,000,000 was fully repaid on 3 January 2020.

(c)  All of the Group’s bank loans and other borrowings as at the end of
the Reporting Period are denominated in RMB.

(d)  All of the Group’s bank loans and other borrowings as at the end
of the Reporting Period are fixed rates interest-bearing (2018: other
borrowing of RMB140,000,000 was fixed rate interest-bearing whereas
the bank loan of RMB5,000,000 was variable-rate interest-bearing).

Management has assessed that the fair values of the Group’s
short-term interest-bearing bank and other borrowings approximate
to their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of
these instruments.

2019 F# EMABEEERARAR

. ATRBRITREMER(E)

Hrit - (&)

(b)

(@)

(d)

R20196F38278  ARRI(EAEZRA) - B
Y ATEBRFEEWERBRERA) * Risun({E
BWEA) BREMERERA) - BUE=
FTEESIMNEIEBERARREERELE(FA
MERAN) I — DR E  SHAERA
IR 140,000,000 7T 89 38 X B B 20194 A
30 B FINER —FE20206F4H30H - AR
140,000,000 CHIE R E 7R 202091 A3 B B EE
2.

AEERRERROMBRITERREAMEFIS
AARBEE °

AEEBRREHRKOMERITERREAbE
FHBEEBF B (20184 : HMMERARE
140,000,0007C BIZE S5t 8 - MIBITERAR
#5,000,000TT BIZF BT E) °

EIRE D AR EE BT B RTT M E M E R
AFEEREREERES  TEARZETLARE
HimaH -
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26. Lease Liabilities 26
The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities of
the Group's lease liabilities at the end of the current and previous
reporting periods and at the date of transition to IFRS 16:

. HERE
TRIFAEBRE R ERARE ARBERE
B RE BEEER I B RS EAF 1652
A TAKIHR :

As at 31 December 2019

As at 1January 2019 (note) ~ As at 31 December 2018

#2019%12R31A R2019F1818(#72) R2018%12A31H
Present Present Present
value of Total value of Total value of Total

minimum minimum
lease lease
payments payments
RIEHE RIEHE
NHRE DELE
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETR

minimum minimum minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments
RIEHE RIEHE RIEHE RIEHE
NHRE DELE AHEE DB
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARETT AR%TR

Within 1 year = 1_,(_)%2_ _____ 1 _,q5_8 ________ ?29 ______ ?GEZ_ ________ - - |
After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMEA 154 158 1,023 1,058 - -
After 2 years but within 5 years mERERER - - 4 1 - - |
154 158 1177 1,217 - -
ﬂ 1,216 ﬂ 2,179 - - -
Less: total future interest expenses B RRAS A e% (40) (132) -
Present value of lease liabilities HEaERE 1,176 2,047 -

Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 using the modified retrospective
approach and adjusted the opening balances at 1 January 2019 to
recognise lease liabilities relating to leases which were previously
classified as operating leases under IAS 17. Comparative information
as at 31 December 2018 has not been restated. Further details on the
impact of the transition to IFRS 16 are set out in note 2.2.

Biet - ANEEFERLISETBMEEIXER BRI %R
AR FE 1657 - WHBNR2019F1S1BNFE
NS - LB ATRIEERR 25T RIS 175
SEACEHENEHEERERAEEARE -
2018F 12 A3 AN AR ESS - B
BEEEEMEREERNE16RATENE
—HHBERMRE2.2

Sinco Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2019



Notes to Financial Statements B 7% ¥R R M 5E
For the year ended 31 December 2019 # %2019 12 A31H It FE

26. Lease Liabilities (Continued) 26. HEEE(E)

(a) Total cash outflow for leases (a)
Amounts included in the consolidated statement of cash flow
for leases comprise the following:

HERSRLAR
BARSRBERTAEWAENIEREN
TIER

2019 2018

RMB’'000 RMB'000

(note)

AR¥TF R AREFTT

(BIE)

Within operating cash flows AR ESMA 627 1,464

Within financing cash flows RERSRA 963 -
Note: MHEE

As explained in note 2.2, the adoption of IFRS 16 introduces a change
in classification of cash flows of certain rentals paid on leases. The
comparative amounts have not been restated. All the above amounts
relate to the lease rentals paid.

PAAPRE2.2Fm3 - SR BB BT S S RIS 16
SRMELHHEMNETESNRERENH - 1t
ReBWESY - A LMSRECNEESAE
B

27. Share Capital 27. R4
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET AREFT
Authorised: ERE
10,000,000,000 (2018: 10,000,000,000%(2018%F :
10,000,000,000) ordinary shares of 10,000,000,0000% )
HK$0.0001 each FARE{E0.0001ETH]
LA 822 822
Issued and fully paid: ERITRER
1,691,890,585 (2018: 1,691,890,585[% (2018%F :
1,691,890,585) ordinary shares of 1,691,890,585% )
HK$0.0001 each SRXE(E0.00015 7T
TR 136 136
2019 ¥y BERIRBETRER AT
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27. Share Capital (Continued)
A summary of movements in the Company’s issued share capital is as
follows:

27. A (%)
ARFARBTRARBHENT

Number of Nominal value of

ordinary shares  ordinary shares

EBERHE EEREE
Note RMB'000
i AR%TR
At 1 January 2018 20181 AR 1,615,220,000 130
Issuance of new shares BT (a) 76,670,585 6
At 31 December 2018, 1 January 2019 and F2018F12431H ~ 20194
31 December 2019 1A1HX%2019%F12A31H 1,691,890,585 136
Note: Hiat -
(@ On 12 October 2017, the Company and Crede GG Il Ltd. (the (@) HM2017F10A128 » A "ECrede GG Il Ltd.

“Subscriber”) entered into a subscription agreement (the “Subscription
Agreement”). On 6 December 2017, the Company and the Subscriber
entered into an amended and restated subscription agreement
(the “Amended and Restated Subscription Agreement”) to amend,
restate, supersede and replace in its entirety the Subscription
Agreement. Pursuant to the Amended and Restated Subscription
Agreement, the Subscriber shall subscribe for, and the Company
shall issue, the convertible bonds (the “Convertible Bonds”) with an
aggregate principal amount of up to US$150,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$1,170,000,000) to be issued in up to 30 tranches,
comprising the first part of the Convertible Bonds in the principal
amount of up to US$50,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$390,000,000) (the “First Part CB”) and the second part of the
Convertible Bonds in the principal amount of up to US$100,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$780,000,000). The maturity date of
the Convertible Bonds was falling 36 months after the issue date of
such tranche of the Convertible Bonds or, if that is not a business day,
the first business day thereafter. The nominal interest rate was 4% per
annum and the interest should be paid semi-annually.

On 17 January 2018, the first tranche of the First Part CB (the “First
Tranche”) in the principal amount of US$5,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$39,000,000) had been issued to the Subscriber. The
initial conversion price in respect of the First Tranche was HK$0.50869,
being 70% of the volume weighted average price of the shares of the
Company in the 20 trading days prior to 17 January 2018.

On 17 January 2018, the conversion rights of the First Tranche had
been fully exercised at a conversion price of HK$0.50869 per share by
the Subscriber. As a result, 76,670,585 conversion shares were issued
to the Subscriber.

The owner of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared
from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the
Company. All ordinary shares ranks equally with regard to the Company’s
residual assets.

(TREFDITLRBEHZ((RBEHZE]) - B
2017F 12868 » AARIHERBE AL LIBET R
BYREG®((SETRENRERE]) - S
] EY| R REREMNDRERZ - BIRL
BEIREYRBE RS REAEREMAAA
155& % 5301 BITHRE AN % 4584 150,000,000
X7t (HE 1 491,170,000,0007% 7T ) B 7] #2 A%
BH((AIRBRESR] EPBEERRASER
50,000,000 7t (8 & 7 49390,000,0007 7T ) A9
FE—BoARBKES((E—BH AT RRES])
K &S A % %8 /4 100,000,0003 7T (HHE R4
780,000,000/ 7T ) F 58 — 2B AT AR (&S ) © A
HREHFNEIRB AT RRES BRI AETA
36 A ME AL IELER © BlALENE
MEHER - ZEFEFEABLI%  MABKFFEX
= e

201841 H178 + A% %8 45,000,0003 7T (4
E 7 #939,000,00078 7T ) B E #L & — 200 AT AR
BEH(TEMDBETTRES - BT R
fB50.508697%8 7T + BIAAR]FA2018F1/17H
AI20fE% 5 B RRH LR EINEFIHERI70% °

R2018F1A178 » RIEFAERARMD HLIRE
0.508698 B THE E LM EIBRE - At ' B
[A) R8T 3£1776,670,585 B H AR M7 -

LTRRERABREBAREIRNKRSE - WHBRA

N

BHELUBR—FZERE - MEETBRRARFF

HAEZFHRFHM -
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28. Share Option Scheme 28. fERRAETE

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme"”) for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards
to eligible participants who contribute to the development of
the Group. Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme are
employees (whether full time or part time) of the Company, its
subsidiaries or any entity in which the Group holds any equity
interest (the “Invested Entity”), including Directors (including
independent non-executive Directors) and senior management of the
Company, its subsidiaries and any Invested Entity. The Share Option
Scheme was approved by the Shareholders on 1 February 2016 and
became effective upon the listing of the shares of the Company and,
unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10
years from 1 February 2016, after which no further options will be
granted.

Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary
share in the Company and is settled gross in shares.

The number and weighted average exercise price of share options
outstanding are as follows:

AR EEVEIERRAERT B ([ AT E)) - BEM
AAREEERELEBNAG EESHEERHER
RER - BREEIMNASBERS2EEBEAQE]
HEWBRRNAER BB EMRENEMEE
([FEEEDNES (SRR 84
AR EMB AR RIS EEEBNES(E
BUIENTER) RERERE - BREEID
7201642 B 1 B ERR R ALEIL R AR R IR £
MEER - BRIESITEUESIER] - BRI A
2016F2 A1 BB +FEABFER - BB Tg
i gl 1 g I

SHBEEE THAARNRBARR] —RER
B WRBIARNEE -

HARTTERBBIER R Mg FETEENT

Weighted

average Number of

exercise price options

IEEFTEE BREHE

Notes HK$ per Share ‘000

b BRET T4

As of 1 January 2018 720181818 0.568 17,850

Forfeited during the year FRBU (ii) 0.568 (1,000)
As of 31 December 2018 and R2018F 128318 &

1 January 2019 20191 81H 0) 0.568 16,850
Forfeited during the year FRRU (ii) 0.568 (1,200)
As of 31 December 2019 HZE2019%12A31H (i) 0.568 15,650
Exercisable options: AJTT{R R AR -

as of 31 December 2018 #H=2018%F12A31H 0.568 11,795

as of 31 December 2019 #HZE2019F12A31H 0.568 15,650

2019 F# EMABEEERARAR
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28. Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Notes:

(0]

(i)

The share options outstanding as at 31 December 2019 represented
15,650,000 (2018: 16,850,000) share options granted by the
Company on 21 September 2016 at an exercise price of HK$0.568
per share to certain eligible participants of the Company in respect
of their contributions to the Group’s development under the Share
Option Scheme. The weighted average remaining contractual life of
outstanding share options at 31 December 2019 is 2.72 years (2018:
3.72 years).

The share options granted to certain eligible participants under the
Share Option Scheme were forfeited following their resignations during
the year.

The exercise prices and exercisable periods of the share options
outstanding as of 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018 are as
follows:

31 December 2019

28. IBIRAERTEI(E)

Hiet

(0]

(ii)

R2019F12 A31 A MARITHEMNBIREE AR A F]
RARBETEERSHBEHAEBBEMED
R BB 201659 821 BIREEEA S+

FA - REBREABAETAERSRERY
MR I S BHEIRORUR -

HZE2019F12 318 2018128318 » #Hk
ITIFE BB AT T (B AT HAA T -

2019512H31H

Number of Exercise price
options per share Vesting Period Exercisable period
BREHE BRITEE FEH 1T
‘000 HK$
T BT
6,260 0.568 From 21 September 2016 to From 21 September 2017 to
20 September 2017 20 September 2022
201659 H21HE201749H20H 201759 H21BE202249H20H
4,695 0.568 From 21 September 2016 to 20 From 21 September 2018 to
September 2018 20 September 2022
201659 H21HE201849H20H 201859 H21HE202249H20H
4,695 0.568 From 21 September 2016 to 20 From 21 September 2019 to
September 2019 20 September 2022
201659 H21HE201949H20H 20199 H21HE202249H20H
15,650
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28. Share Option Scheme (Continued)

31 December 2018

28. IBIRAERTEI(E)

2018%12H31H

Number of Exercise price
options per share Vesting Period Exercisable period
BREHE BRITEE SR 1T
‘000 HK$
Fn BT
6,740 0.568 From 21 September 2016 to From 21 September 2017 to
20 September 2017 20 September 2022
201699 821H=201749H20H 20179 A21H=2022949H20H
5,055 0.568 From 21 September 2016 to 20 From 21 September 2018 to
September 2018 20 September 2022
201699 821H=2018%9H20H 20189 A21H=202249H20H
5,055 0.568 From 21 September 2016 to 20 From 21 September 2019 to
September 2019 20 September 2022
201699 821H=201949H20H 20199 A21H=202249H20H
16,850

The Company recognised a share option expense of RMB19,000
during the year (2018: RMB540,000).

Fair value of share options and assumptions

The fair value of service received in return for share options granted
is measured by reference to the fair value of share option granted.
The fair value of equity-settled share options granted under the
Share Option Scheme was estimated as of the date of grant, using a
binomial model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon
which the options were granted. The following table lists the inputs
to the model used:

Dividend yield (%) Nil
Expected volatility (%) 48.75
Risk-free interest rate (%) 0.72

The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the historical
volatility is indicative of future trends, which may also not necessarily
be the actual outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into the
measurement of fair value.

2019 F# EMABEEERARAR

FR - ARRERERERSZ A AR 19,000
70(2018%F : AR¥E540,0007T) °

BRENFERRR

R R ER MR R NRBH A HESZE
ERLERENDTENE - RIBBIRIET IR
HE AR AEENEREN R FETNE L B S
A= IBARAMEE - ALFT R AT BB A O 16k
RN o TREFIMRAOEX2H

BE B (%) =
TEERR 1R (%) 48.75
R T (%) 0.72

TEHR 8 R BRI 2R IR A AR R R B R
R ERBASERER -

AEATERMEMACDKEBREN M
e
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28.

29.

Share Option Scheme (Continued)

As at 31 December 2019, the Company had 15,650,000
(2018: 16,850,000) share options outstanding under the Share
Option Scheme. The exercise in full of the outstanding share options
would, under the present capital structure of the Company, result
in the issue of 15,650,000 (2018: 16,850,000) additional ordinary
shares of the Company and additional share capital of HK$1,565
(2018: HK$1,685) and share premium of HK$8,887,635 (2018:
HK$9,569,115) (before issue expenses).

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the Company
had 15,650,000 share options outstanding under the Share Option
Scheme, which represented approximately 0.9% of the Company’s
shares in issue as of that date.

Reserves

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein
for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity of the financial statements.

(a) Share premium account
The application of the share premium account is governed
by the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. Under the
constitutional documents and the Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands, the share premium is distributable as dividend
on the condition that the Company is able to pay its debts
when they fall due in the ordinary course of business at the
time the proposed dividend is to be paid.

(b) Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus represents the aggregate nominal

amount of the paid-up capital of Sichuan Sinco Pharmaceuticals

attributable to the owners of the Company.

(c) Statutory reserve

Pursuant to applicable PRC regulations, PRC subsidiaries are

required to appropriate 10% of their profit after tax (after

offsetting prior year losses) to the statutory reserve until such

reserve reaches 50% of their registered capital of each relevant

PRC subsidiary. Transfers to this reserve must be made before

distribution of dividends to shareholders. Upon approval by

relevant authorities, the statutory reserve can be utilised to

offset the accumulated losses or to increase the paid-in capital

of the subsidiary, provided that the balance after such issue is

not less than 25% of its registered capital.

29.

. BIRRESTEI(E)

2019612 A31H - REBEREFE - AR
7] 16,850,00019 (20184 : 16,850,00017 )
BARITHE R RERRAE o IRIEAN QR BRI E AL
& (WARETE M ARTTE BRI - 58BN
%%7715,650,000% (20184 : 16,850,0000% ) 7%
P EVE B A R 38 INAE A 1,565 7T (20184
1,685 70 ) M %1734 188,887,635 7 (20184 :
9,569,115/ 70 ) (FBREEITHZ AT -

RZERBRERAERT - RIEEREAE > K
AR 15,650,000 W AR TERIBEAREE - (54
AR B R EITIRD#0.9% ©

(G
AEENFESERENAFE BEFERNE
BEVBRINVESESEHRET -

(a) B=ER
EARMDEEREIHESHEANERE -
RESEXHERSESAAE  MARQ
ANKTEZRERENEEAEERB
RHMEIHER @ BIRGRER DK AR
B e

(b) EHEER
BEHREGIEARNR A AE(RID)| ERE
BEEHRABEE -

() EEREE

RBERTEUER - HEMBARARE

(‘ﬂﬁ%ﬁ@:m?’rﬂﬁ’ﬂ10%(%&%ﬁ£¢[§5?§i?§)ﬁ§2\
EERE  EEREEHED SR B
BRABIFEMERNS0% - BEEZFEBA
R RS TRRAIEL - RARMERFIH
TR R R AR E R BRSO
MMBARIMNERERN - HEITERNER

PEOREEMEARN25% -
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29. Reserves (Continued) 29. @B (E)
(d) Share option reserve (d) EBRRERmE
The share option reserve comprises the portion of the grant EBREREFEDIREE B RITEERE
date fair value of share options granted which are yet to RIRE BBAFTERS - E— TFERE
be exercised, as further explained in the accounting policy FEEREMI5E2.3(s)i) B B M e &5t
for share-based payments in note 2.3(s)(ii) to the financial KARM - 28 H R EEEREETE
statements. The amount will either be transferred to the share R R IR RS BER - s ER IS
premium account when the related options are exercised, or be HARs s = Rt E1E o

transferred to accumulated losses should the related options

expire.
30. Employee Retirement Benefits 30. EEERAKER

Defined contribution retirement plan ERAMFRIRETE

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“the MPF REBRBELBREEABESTENEHN AR TS
scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes EEEAEENREEEERHIHEATES2I([58
Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction of the BestéEl]) - R ERABEVEATEN
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined TEREFGRIRETE] - BIFRESTE BERE
contribution retirement plan administered by independent trustees. EEHAEREEBBRAKS%RTEIHE
Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its employees are each AABBAL LR A30,0005 7T © 5724t ZENR:
required to make contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’ R -

relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of
HK$30,000. Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries in the PRC are members AEBRFENBATNES ARTBEBGEE
of a state-managed retirement benefit scheme operated by the MEREIERRERNTEINKE - B A R)AER
government of the PRC. The subsidiaries are required to contribute HEKANE T B DL ABRAREFEEI1E L
certain percentage of payroll costs to the retirement benefit R AEBABRRBHT MM —FTTAEL
scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with FEEHR -

respect to the retirement benefit scheme is to make the specified
contributions.

2019 54 WHABEERARAT 195



196

Notes to Financial Statements B 73Rk 3R fi&E
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #;{Z=2019F 12 A31HILFE

31. Commitments
(a) The Group had the following significant capital expenditure at
the end of the Reporting Period:

31.

=1

S
() AEERBEMRNEAEAFZMOT :

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBTT AREETTT
Contracted, but not provided for: BRT4MB R -
— Construction of a warehouse —EREE 83,008 83,719

(b) At 31 December 2018, the total future minimum lease

(b) 720185 12A318 « REFAHME LT

payments under non-cancellable operating leases were payable I AR SR AR TR & FRIB A R FE A R IB IR
as follows: T
Properties
L/
RMB’000
ARETR
Within 1 year —FRN 1,001
After 1 year but within 5 years —FREAFH 1,217
2,218
The Group is the lessee in respect of a number of properties REERRBEERAGNE THENAMEA - Z
held under leases which were previously classified as operating EHELEAMRBEERGFERE 17RO EAK

leases under IAS 17. The Group has initially applied IFRS
16 using the modified retrospective approach. Under this
approach, the Group adjusted the opening balances at
1 January 2019 to recognise lease liabilities relating to these
leases (see note 2.2). From 1 January 2019 onwards, future
lease payments are recognised as lease liabilities in the
statement of financial position in accordance with the policies
set out in note 2.3(g), and the details regarding the Group's
future lease payments are disclosed in note 26.

EHE  AEERBRETENEZERXERE
BREITS RS RIS 165% « RIBEZITE - A& HE
HER2019F1 A1 ANEVEER - IEREZ
SHEFBNEERAE(RNE2.2) - R2019%F
TATHZE  RERBENFIRIEMNEE2.3(9)FT#
BRNIBARARAERSHERE - MAREA
SERREEN RO BRI E267 W E -
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Notes to Financial Statements B 7% ¥R R M 5E
For the year ended 31 December 2019 # %2019 12 A31H It FE

32. Contingent Liabilities 32. ARAE
At the end of the Reporting Period, the Group has no significant RIERR - AEEREEREAKAREE -

contingent liabilities.

33. Related Party Transactions 33. BELRS
(a) During the year, the Group had the following material (a) REBRNFRNEBREHETHNEALIR
transactions and outstanding balance with related parties: REBLEHRT ¢
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARETT
Guaranteed by Mr. Huang Xiangbin A=W A ER
Interest-bearing bank loan FTERITER 9,000 =
Interest-bearing other borrowings FTEEALER 140,000 140,000

Secured by Risun’s shares over the Company PARisunpri & 89

AN RIRRAD YR 1
Interest-bearing other borrowings FTEEMER 140,000 140,000
Amount due from a director (note 16) B —REEFRIANE16) 447 -
(b) Remuneration of key management personnel of (b) REEFEEEASFHM
the Group
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREEFTT
Short-term employee benefits EEEE RN 2,775 2,908
Post-employment benefits B2 R 38 37
2,813 2,945
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & %2019 12 A31H It FE

34. $FT EER
BERSR T ERBERROBEEENT -

34. Financial Instruments by Category
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments as at the end of the Reporting Period are as follows:

2019 20194
Financial assets SMEE

Financial
assets
at amortised

cost
RETER
SREE
RMB’000
AR®TR
Trade receivables B 5 IR 25,971
Bills receivables eSS 4,739

Financial assets included in prepayments, FTATERRUR - EfbEEoE
other receivables and other assets REMEENSREE 5,196

Other financial assets measured at RB KA E R EA
amortised cost — wealth management products CHMEE-BYER 1,990
Pledged bank balances BIKIRRITAE AR 5,001
Cash and cash equivalents ReRASEEY 219,755
262,652
Financial liabilities = =R

Financial liabilities
at amortised cost
REBHERATER
=L =Ri
RMB’000
AR%TR
Trade payables B SR IE 146,158
Financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals St AR ENZIBRESFIENSRA 332,940
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings SHERITREMER 187,484
Lease liabilities HEAE 1,176
667,758
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 # %2019 12 A31H It FE

34. Financial Instruments by Category (Continued) 34. EWMIT BEERI(E)
2018 20185
Financial assets SREE
Financial
assets at
amortised
cost
TREESE
PN —1:)
RMB'000
ARBFT
Trade receivables B 5 EMEIR 22,806
Bills receivables EERE 3,371
Financial assets included in prepayments, FTATRNRUE - EfbEREIE R
other receivables and other assets HEENEMEE 18,967
Pledged bank balances BIEMRITAER 13
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBASEEY 80,330
125,487
Financial liabilities SmasE
Financial liabilities
at amortised cost
R ER AT ER
EEAE
RMB'000
AREETT
Trade payables B 5 ENIE 106,901
Financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals st AEMENZIERESFENSRAR 198,808
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings STRSRITREMER 145,000
450,709
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Notes to Financial Statements B 73Rk 3R fi&E
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35. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values of
Financial Instruments
The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are
credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk and currency risk. The
Group's exposure to these risks and the financial risk management
policies and practices used by the Group to manage these risks are
described below.

(a) Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default
on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the
Group. The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
receivables. The Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from
wealth management products, cash and cash equivalents,
pledged bank balance and bills receivables is limited because
the counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned
by international credit rating agencies, for which the Group
considers to have low credit risk.

Trade receivables

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each customer rather than
the industry or country in which the customers operate and
therefore significant concentrations of credit risk primarily
arise when the Group has significant exposure to individual
customers. At the end of the reporting period, 63% (2018:
41%) and 82% (2018: 72%) of the total trade receivables was
due from the Group’s largest customer and the five largest
customers respectively.

Individual credit evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. These evaluations focus
on the customer’s past history of making payments when due
and current ability to pay, and take into account information
specific to the customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates. It is the Group’s
policy that except for certain customers which are granted
credit terms ranging from 0 days to 1 year (2018: from 45
days to 1 year) from the date of delivery, customers should
make payment in advance. At 31 December 2019, the Group
obtains deposits as collateral for trade receivables. The deposits
received is recognised in other payables and accruals and is
repayable to the distributors upon the expiry of the distribution
agreement. There have not been any significant changes in the
quality of the collateral held for trade receivables. The Group
takes into account the amount of deposit received when
recognised the loss allowance for the trade receivables.

200

35 KEREERESMTANDFE

AEESRTAEENTIERBAEERR i
PESER  MEXERREERERR - AEBE R
Mz ERREAEEARNEEZERRHNTEE
REEBR R ERSMMT

(a) FERR
FERBEHFIRERASNZHMER
AEBEAVMBBEBROAR - AEEEE
R ERFENE S EKFIE - AR F
THEREAFERBIEAERERSE
RFFRNRTT - MARERZ BEERR
BE - SAKEEMER ReMREF
EY  CDEMRTERLRERERELN
EERBRAER -

B SN E
REEMEAZHEERBREEXEFPHE
BEFM(MIERFEEMETESER)E
Z HEZEERSEETTIBEREALERE
EZEANERBEFEBREFEA o BREH
R BRAEESATEFRAARTFHR
EHD RGBS EUGIABEER63% (2018
F o 41%) 282%(2018%F : 72%) °

BREEFHEMEER—ESEEEDN
BFEHIT - WS EH R BERIEM
R NIBEMNRES  TEBEFTFEE
EREERARFPREMECERENE
B o RIBAREBECR - RERBRNMNE
HEFOEBE—F(20184F : 45SEE—HF )15
EHNETERIN - BREERMNKIE - R
201912 A31H » AEBRBIESEAE
SRERFEREER - BUURS R EALE
NFRIBREETRIBRHER - WK E
[E R (B8 T S 8H R - LB BN RIEAT
BEFRNEETESAES - AEER
HRE 5 EUGRIENE BB ERT RE K
RS o
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35. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values of 35 BiIEMEERSMIANAFEE

Financial Instruments (Continued) (%)

(a) Credit risk (Continued) (a) EERMR(E)
Trade receivables (Continued) B SN IE(E)
The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables at REBZEENFEREREESENS
an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated using a HURARBREEGE )28 HERIIE
provision matrix. As the Group's historical credit loss experience BEEE AR AERNBTEEEBEL
does not indicate significantly different loss patterns for BUEBERTREZEL,OHNEEBBEREE
different customer segments, the loss allowance based on past RER  BURBBRRETENEBEBEET
due status is not further distinguished between the Group’s EXREETNRRFEBEEE—FRY -

different customer bases.

The following table provides information about the Group’s TRIBEHARASEE S RKWFTENEE
exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade receivables: B RIBH=EEIEER
2019
Expected Gross carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
BHEEE REAE EERE
% RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTR
Current (not past due) BRHA(REER) 0.96 20,770 199
1-90 days past due BE1ZE0KR 25.16 7,215 1,815
More than 90 days past due B EAFRBI0K 100 427 427
28,412 2,441
2018
Expected Gross carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
HEEEE fRmEAE EHERHE
% RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR®ET T
Current (not past due) BRER(RER) 2.70 23,439 633
1-90 days past due PN ECTIPS N/A i = =
More than 90 days past due fabtiFE N 100 482 482
23,921 1,115
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35. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values of

202

Financial Instruments (Continued)

(@) Credit risk (Continued)
Trade receivables (Continued)
Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience over
the past 2 years. These rates are adjusted to reflect differences
between economic conditions during the period over which
the historic data has been collected, current conditions and the
Group's view of economic conditions over the expected lives of
the receivables.

Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of trade
receivables during the year is as follows:

35. WKEMEERESM T AN ATE

)

() FERRGE)

E BN R (&)
BEHERXEERBR2FNERBERER
REBEEOGRMS - LFN XD RKHAR
R BB E SRS RE - ZaTREAR
SEFEURFARBFHROLBERRNE
RZEMER -

FRNE SRR FIBNEBREERE 8
™

2019 2018

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TT ARETT

Balance at 1 January W1 A1E® S 1,115 164
Impairment losses recognised during the year FERNERRREEIR (A7)

(note 7) 1,326 951

Balance at 31 December 12 A31 A8 &R 2,441 1,115

The following significant changes in the gross carrying amounts
of trade receivables contributed to the increase in the loss
allowance:

— increase in days past due resulted in an increase in loss
allowance of RMB1,760,000 (2018: RMB482,000)

DA 7 8BRS 18 19 D0 B 5 A8 R OR
RERENEAR

—  EH B EEINE RSB REE A
R #1,760,000 70 (20184F : AR
482,0007T)
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35. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values of 35 BiIEMEERSMIANAFEE
Financial Instruments (Continued) (%)
(a) Credit risk (Continued) (a) EERM(E)

Other receivables

For other receivables and deposits, the directors of the
Company make periodic individual assessment on the
recoverability of other receivables and deposits based on
historical settlement records, past experience, and also
guantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportive forward-looking information. The directors of the
Company believe that there are no significant increase in credit
risk of these amounts since initial recognition and the Group
provided impairment based on 12-month ECL.

The movement in the loss allowance for impairment of financial
assets included in prepayments, other receivables and other
assets is as follows:

B MWK E
REMEYHERZEME - ARRES
BBEREERE  BEKRLBAERE
MATREEBE R EE REMEER - HEAM
&R OR R iR o T R 1B 1T E MR
RFHE - RAREERA - BYRTERA
Ko ZERBENEERBREERZLM
AAREEER12EARRBEEBEELR
B -

AEATENROR - R FEREMEE
MEREEREBERERZESIT

2019 2018

RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARETFIT

At beginning of year REA]) 526 -
(Reversal of impairment losses)/impairment CRfERIERE),

losses recognised (note 7) ERRRESE (A7) (54) 526

At end of year (note 16) RERATE16) 472 526
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35. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values of
Financial Instruments (Continued)
(b) Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible
for their own cash management, including the short term
investment of cash surpluses and the raising of loans to cover
expected cash demands, subject to the parent company’s
board approval. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
its liquidity requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash
and adequate committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term.

The following tables set out the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the Group’s
non-derivative financial liabilities based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates
current at the end of the reporting period) and the earliest date
the Group can be required to pay.

35. WKEMEERESM T AN ATE

(

i)

=

(b) REVEEEER

AEEAENKEERETRAEAREE
BEEH SRESEMKNEHRENRBRE
NERREFRMELES  EAFER
AESEHERTAEE - AKEBERS
EMERERBESTRKEERZONG
MER > NERERTERSHERITHK
IZCRRBESERAHRESAMER
RBREHRSESTK -

TREINRNHEMRAEBERE KRR
ARERE(BREMRAON XK (MEF
BIEBEMRERMNEAENREH L)
EASEANKH &R BRNFITESR
BENFRIBAHNIIHA -

2019 2018
More than Total More than Total

On demand 1yearbut  contractual Carrying ~ Ondemand Tyearbut — contractual Carying

or within lessthan  undiscounted amount or within lessthan  undiscounted amount

1 year 2years  cashflows at31.12.2019 1year 2 years cashflows  at31.12.2018

120195 120185

LEVE] BE-F  ARAEE  nANAEN BB, BE-F  AOAER  1ANEN

-ER BORWE  BEREEE HaE -ER BORWE  RERSER L

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000

ABETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARMTr  ARBTR ARMTR ARETR ARETR

Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings HEFTREMER 195,637 - 195,637 187,484 151,102 = 151,102 145,000

Trade payables BREME 146,158 - 146,158 146,158 106901 = 106901 106,901
Other payables and accruals Efp 5B REHFE

{other than other tax payabls) (EfERBERN 136978 195,962 33,90 33,90 198,908 . 198,808 198,808

Lease liabiites note) ) 1058 158 1216 1176 - = = =

479831 196,120 675,951 667,758 456,811 - 456,811 450,709

Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 using the modified
retrospective approach and adjusted the opening balances at 1
January 2019 to recognise lease liabilities relating to leases which
were previously classified as operating leases under IAS 17. Under
this approach, the comparative information is not restated. See
note 2.2.

Hfat : REBERBLAS TR PEE KRR
WS EERIZE 165 - WHFHER2019F
1AV BMENES - ARRELRRE
B et ERE17TR BEAKERED
HEEHENMAERE - KL% &
BERARTET - BHFE2.2 -
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35. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values of
Financial Instruments (Continued)

(o)

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash
flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. The Group’s interest rate
risk arises primarily from bank deposits, wealth management
products, bank loans, and other borrowings. Bank deposits,
amount receivables from bank for wealth management
products purchased at variable rates, and bank and other
borrowings and lease liabilities at fixed rates expose the Group
to cash flow interest rate risk and fair value interest rate risk
respectively.

The Group's policy is to manage its interest cost using a mix of
fixed and variable rate debts.

(i) Interest rate profile
The following table details the interest rate profile of the

35. i EEREEREM T AN DA FE

(%8)

(0 F=REpz
FRERESBIANAFERRLRS
FERTEHNESHTRBHNER - A&
¢ FI| = @B £ B R G BITER - A E
B RTERREMER - BZ AN
SRITIEE - RUFTEE B IR AT A G R RTT R
BT B SR TT R A 1 A R R
BEEEHRSALEEERS HEN XM
% R A FAEF R ER o

AEERRRERERNFEEHESE
IR E A SR e

) FIFERE
TRAJAREE SR TARNBREHR

Group's financial instruments at the end of the reporting YRR AR
period:
2019 2018
Effective Effective
interest rates RMB’000 interest rates RMB'000
ERFIE ERFE
% AR¥ETR % AREFT
Fixed rate instruments: EEIR:
Financial assets SREE
— Bank deposits —RITEN 0.3-1.35 5,001 03 13
Financial liabilities SHAR
— Other borrowings —HffE 13.2 (140,000) 13.2 (140,000)
— Bank loans —RITER 4.8-5.6 (47,484) 6.1 (5,000)
~ Lease liabilities (note) -HREREWE) 5.5 (1,176) - -
(188,660) (145,000)
(183,659) (144,987)
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35. MK EREEREHTENATFE

35. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values of

Financial Instruments (Continued) (&)
(c) Interest rate risk (Continued) () FI=EM(E)
(i) Interest rate profile (Continued) () FIFEAM L)
2019 2018
Effective Effective
interest rates RMB'000 interest rates RMB'000
ERFE BERFIx
% AR®TR % ARETFT
Variable rate instruments: BEIE:
Financial assets SREE
— Cash at bank —RT8Re 0.3 219,720 0.3 80,240
- Amount receivables from —HEE®E
banks for wealth EmERRT
management products T
purchased 3.7 1,990 - -
221,710 80,240
Fixed rate financial liabilitesasa ~ EE4REBELSHEE
percentage of total financial BEANL
liabilities 100.0% 100.0%

Biat - AEBRALEBIEE XEA
.%Eﬁ%¥&m+ﬂ”%16?ﬁl£%ﬁ/\\
2019%1)%15&’]%%}]%@% " LARE
m/\f‘aaumf@&” @RS 1755
AEAKEHENTHEEENHEE
EJE BUTE - HBRERN T E
Bl o RFFEE2.2

Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 using the modified
retrospective approach and adjusted the opening balances
at 1 January 2019 to recognise lease liabilities relating
to leases which were previously classified as operating
leases under IAS 17. Under this approach, the comparative
information is not restated. See note 2.2.

(i) Sensitivity analysis (i) BEESHT
At 31 December 2019, it is estimated that a general 2019128318 ' A EE &
increase/decrease of 100 (2018: 100) basis points in ETENBERLT  HEFXREEE
interest rates, with all other variables held constant, 0,/ 3@ 4> 100 (20184 = 100 ) & £
would have increased/decreased the Group's profit after 2 @LSNEFBRBEETE IR
PREFEBERRL EMHARE
1,663,0007T (20184F : AN H R

tax and decreased/increased the accumulated losses by
approximately RMB1,663,000 (2018: decreased/increased

the Group’s loss after tax and accumulated losses by
RMB602,000). This is mainly attributable to the Group's
exposure to interest rates on its variable rate bank
deposits. Other components of consolidated equity would
not change in response to the general increase/decrease
in interest rates.

®BEBIERZFERERD IEINARE
602, ooo;i) cETERHNAERZ
FRIBITERNFELE - e
E’Uﬁﬁﬁaﬁn e [ I R B RS P i
@ °
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35. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values of
Financial Instruments (Continued)
(c) Interest rate risk (Continued)

(ii)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates at the end of
the reporting period. The analysis is prepared assuming
the financial instruments outstanding at the end of the
reporting period were outstanding for the whole year.
A 100 basis points (2018: 100 basis points) increase
or decrease in variable rate borrowings is used when
reporting interest rate risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment
of the reasonably possible change in interest rates. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for 2018.

(d) Currency risk

(i

Exposure to currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through
purchases which give rise to payables and cash balances
that are denominated in a foreign currency, i.e. a currency
other than the functional currency of the operations to
which the transactions relate. The currencies giving rise to
this risk are primarily United States dollars (“US$"), Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$") and Singapore dollars (“SGD").
The Group ensures that the net exposure is kept to an
acceptable level by buying or selling foreign currencies
at spot rates where necessary to address short-term
imbalances.

The Group does not enter into any hedging transactions
to manage the potential fluctuation in foreign currencies.
Management monitors the Group's foreign currency
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure when the need arises.

2019 F# EMABEEERARAR

BHEREEREMIANDTFE

()
(0) %UIJ—L

(i)

s (48)

E T (&)
iﬁ’@(@?ﬁﬁﬁ%mﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬂimﬂ
RREBET - {ESTHBRERRE
HRMABITHEMTAREFIT K
BiT o BT EEIRABETARER
N EBE FREF - BR A 10018 E 2 (2018
4 100fEESE) /)% B & SR FHiE sk ik
18 REEREHFEESIZA R EE)
Rl o DATEAEE2018F 48R -

(d) E¥ER
() EEmE
AEEXTRERBREELINERE
(B8 SRR aE & LASH
BV E ¥ ) B B AN SRR I 3R & SR AR R
XE¥RER - 5lEZRABNEELIE
AETAETD - BET) R

T (FETT]) « REBPRYBE
IS LA BV HA B o i B o tH 5 1V A AR OR
K EME - AT RRF MR
SRR HYKF o

REBYW BT AT ZHIAEIE

BEIINERD EEERERASE
SNERR - WASAER B R E BT

BEAIMERS
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35. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values of
Financial Instruments (Continued)
(d) Currency risk (Continued)

0

Exposure to currency risk (Continued)

The following table details the Group’s exposure at the
end of the reporting period to currency risk arising from
recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a currency
other than the functional currency of the entity to which
they relate. For presentation purposes, the amounts of
the exposure are shown in Renminbi, translated using the
spot rate at the year end date.

35. WKEMEERESM T AN ATE

(

=)

mE

(d) E¥ERGE)

() E¥ERGE)

TR 5 AN S A 8 5 B R P A

HAEERY

ab 1
BE B

BN E R

ENCEREEXRBEENEER
RITERY) RRSBEERFE
BENHE R B S ARKIIR

G o
ZoN

Exposure to foreign currencies (expressed in Renminbi)

HERBAARESIT)
2019 2018
SGD Uss$ HK$ SGD Us$ HKS
Fmgx E B ST e AT
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR  AR%TR ARETRr ARETT ARETR ARET:
Financial assets included in SABRE
prepayments, other receivables  Eftt e ZUE R4
and other assets EERSREE - 4,492 704 = 3,089 541
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBEL5EN 61 12,770 301 67 53,490 937
Trade payables BHREAFTE - (145,844) - = (104,681) =
Financial liabilities included in s AE{EFIAR
other payable and accruals BN ERAE - (65.386) - = = (606)
Gross exposure arising from BRREERBRELN
recognised assets and liabilities BRI 61 (193,968) 1,005 67 (48,102) 872
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35. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values of

Financial Instruments (Continued)

(d) Currency risk (Continued)

(ii)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the instantaneous change
in the Group's profit/(loss) after tax (and accumulated
losses) that would arise if foreign exchange rates to which

(717'1’%11&‘&%&2&@%&15: M 2AFE
(d) E¥mEkE(E)

(i) SEEAT
TRERARBRBULRT(B58)
(REFHER) ERREMAARRE
ERFTENER TRAAEERRE

35.

the Group has significant exposure at the end of the HREFEE ARG E’j[iﬁf\gza Hi7
Reporting Period had changed at that date, assuming all BEMEES R ENREE
other risk variables remained constant.
2019 2018
Increase/ Increase/ Decrease/ Increase/ Decrease/ Decrease/
(decrease)  (decrease) (increase) in (decrease) (increase)  (increase) in
in foreign in profit accumulated in foreign inloss  accumulated
exchangerates  after tax loss  exchange rates after tax loss
BEL#/ BEEER ZiFR  EXtR/ Bﬁﬁé’é%f’ ZitEiE
(T%) #m/(89) HD/ (%) (T%) Ad/0Em) \/(m)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTR ARETT  ARETE
HKS B 5% 38 38 5% 33 33
(5%) (38) (38) (5%) (33) (33)
uss e 5% (7,274) (1,274) 5% (1,804) (1,804)
(5%) 1,274 1,274 (5%) 1,804 1,804

Results of the analysis as presented in the above table
represent an aggregation of the instantaneous effects
on each of the group entities’ profit or loss after tax and
equity measured in the respective functional currencies,
translated into Renminbi at the exchange rate ruling
at the end of the Reporting Period for presentation
purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in foreign
exchange rates had been applied to re-measure those
financial instruments held by the Group which expose the
Group to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting
period. The analysis is performed on the same basis for
2018.

2019 3 EIRIERBEZERER AR

EREFNDTERRREEREE
BREREN BRI EE(REE
MR ERETE  RASTRERMZ
BERRNEAERRE[ARYE)
ERRAETEIRZE

BRESMBIEXRSHDEANE
%ﬁﬂrE 2N 55 [E A R 25 B AR T B 1 EE

BAAEEAFSHIA - 2ITE
ﬁéﬁizmsﬂalﬁ °
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35. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values of

210

Financial Instruments (Continued)

(e) Fair value measurement
Fair value of financial assets and liabilities carried at other than
fair value
The carrying amounts of the Group's financial instruments
carried at amortised cost were not materially different from
their fair values as at 31 December 2018 and 2019 respectively.

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group'’s ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise Shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to
it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment
to Shareholders or raise new capital from its investors. No changes
were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing
capital during the year.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subjected to any
externally imposed capital requirements.

5. WEREEREMIANDFE

(%&)
(e) A¥EF=
IR FESRS L BEER B EHAF
]
REBZEHEKATEN SR T ANKR
B BIR2018F M2019F12 A31HHAR
FETESAZR o

EAREE
AEFEANEENTIERERBANEEEGHE
BEFBEQENERRBRNERNLE - UXHHE
EEREERITBREE -

AEEREER RN ST EIR L EAZRBL L E
FHAE - BERRFREARRE  AREXE
AERRBREFAHMEREEEETES - F
AN ERESNER  BRIUBREY EEME
) o

AR FIR E AL A TSR A AN
PEEABR -
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Notes to Financial Statements B 73R 3R Mi&E
For the year ended 31 December 2019 &{Z=2019F 12 A31HILFE

35. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values of 35 I EAREERSMIANAFEE

Financial Instruments (Continued)

Capital management (Continued)

The Group is currently funding its capital expenditure through
internal generated funds from its operations, proceeds from the
new bank and other borrowings. The Group monitors capital using
a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by equity plus net debt.
Net debt includes interest-bearing bank and other borrowings,
trade payables, other payables and accruals, tax payable and lease
liabilities, less cash and cash equivalents and pledged bank balances.

(%)
EXREE(E)
AEERHEBRLERENBES - FERG

NEMEFRETIARNEERFS - AEEF
RAafELXR(AEFERESNREFE)ETE
o BEFEBETSRITREMENR BHE
IR ~ BN FOR R R FOR - AR R
HERBERAZLREEFEY RO EMBITE
B o A BREARBREA ARG M IFERE

Equity includes equity attributable to the owners of the Company = o ERMBEL RN
and non-controlling interests. The gearing ratio at the end of the
Reporting Period is as follows:

2019 2018

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TT AREETFIT

(note)

(Ht)

Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings FTESRIT R EABIERK 187,484 145,000
Trade payables B SN IE 146,158 106,901
Other payables and accruals At JE T FRIE [ FE ST RIE 333,726 205,525
Lease liabilities HESE 1,176 =
Tax payable e TR 11,361 1,943
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B R RESEED (219,755) (80,330)
Less: Pledged bank balances B BIEIRTTERS (5,001) (13)
Net debt BEFHE 455,149 379,026
Equity M 45,638 22,723
Equity and net debt EmkBEFE 500,787 401,749
Gearing ratio BELE 90.9% 94.3%

Biet - AEERALERTBNEE X ERBRR TSR
LERIE 165 - WHABN2019F1A1HMF
EERR - R ATRIEER 25 £R]5517
WoEAKERENHESHNEERRE - &
W% LBRERTFTEN - RHFE2.2 -

Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 using the modified retrospective
approach and adjusted the opening balances at 1 January 2019 to
recognise lease liabilities relating to leases which were previously
classified as operating leases under IAS 17. Under this approach, the
comparative information is not restated. See note 2.2.
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36. Statement of Financial Position of the Company  36. &2 BB 4k R &
BERRARNRERRNVBEARRARER AT

Information about the statement of financial position of the

Company at the end of the Reporting Period is as follows:

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREETTT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RETBARAIE 4,826 306
Total non-current assets FRBEELAE 4,826 306
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Prepayments and other receivables TEEFRIE B HoAth & W R TE 344 2,106
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUSHT B A RIFIB 177,653 410,840
Cash and cash equivalents ReERRESEEY 265 34
Total current assets RBEEARE 178,262 412,980
CURRENT LIABILITIES YN =Ri=
Other payables and accruals At JE T FRIE [ ST RIE 23,326 13,249
Amount due to a subsidiary & —FEIFY B A RIFRIE 4,520 =
Other borrowings HABER 140,000 140,000
Total current liabilities REBEEAEE 167,846 153,249
NET CURRENT ASSETS RENEEFE 10,416 259,731
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES HEERRBAERS 15,242 260,037
NET ASSETS EEFE 15,242 260,037
EQUITY s
Issued capital BEITRA 136 136
Reserves (note) () 15,106 259,901
TOTAL EQUITY MR 15,242 260,037
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 &{Z=2019F 12 A31HILFE

36. AT MBEAMRREK(E)

36. Statement of Financial Position of the Company
(Continued)

Note: The movements in the Company'’s reserves are as follows:

Hrit - ARERFEE

T

Share Share
premium option  Accumulated
account reserve losses Total
RiDREER  EREREE 2EEE #aEt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
At 1 January 2018 H2018F181H 258,887 2,347 (3,850) 257,384
Equity-settled share-based transaction DERSEE RGN T
RS - 540 = 540
Shares issued on conversion of R 3 el AR E S T 1T
convertible bonds (note 27(a)) & 1n (ATat27(a) 30,226 - = 30,226
Loss and total comprehensive loss FREER
for the year 2 HEBERE = = (28,249) (28,249)
At 31 December 2018 and R2018F12A318 K&
at 1 January 2019 R2019F1A1H 289,113 2,887 (32,099) 259,901
Equity-settled share-based transaction AR A E AR T
25 - 19 - 19
Loss and total comprehensive loss FABELREZH
for the year Ete4asn = (244,814) (244,814)
At 31 December 2019 2019412 A318 289,113 2,906 (276,913) 15,106

37. Events After the Reporting Period 37. REHEEE

On 3 January 2020, the Company has arranged for the repayment
of the other borrowings together with the relevant interest
amounts under the loan agreement entered into on 23 April 2018
(as supplemented by a supplemental agreement dated 27 March
2019), and the (i) 1,049,990,000 shares of the Company charged
and (ii) guarantee provided by Mr. Huang in such connection was
subsequently released.

After the outbreak of COVID-19 in the first quarter of 2020, a series
of precautionary and control measures have been and continued
to be implemented across the PRC and many other countries. The
Group will pay close attention to the development of the COVID-19
outbreak and evaluate its impact on the financial position and
operating results of the Group. As at the date of approval of these
financial statements, the Group was not aware of any direct material
adverse effect on the Group’s financial performance as a result of
the COVID-19 outbreak.

2019 F# EMABEEERARAR

20201 A3R8 + AR RILHEER201854
A23REI M E R (KB EA2019F3 /27
HRm s B THEMER AR
FIE - ()T EC B9 1,049,990,000 A A &) B
19 MG)VE R E IR R B IREE R BB -

MR2020F E —FEHEE20198MREERE -
EgiRFZHEMEARBLETIFEEE— R
R o NEEBRYBEE20198 MBS HE
BEREE - Wi G EE RN EET SR RS EE
BEHE - N SHISRARIERE - ANEEY
THRZE2019BRA SRR BEHAEENT KX
WER T EEEATHEE -
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38. Comparative figures

39.

0

(ii)

The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 using
the modified retrospective approach. Under this approach,
comparative information is not restated. Further details of the
changes in accounting policies are disclosed in note 2.2.

With a review of financial statements presentation, certain
items in the consolidated statement of cash flows were
reclassified which would result in a more appropriate
presentation of events or transactions. Accordingly,
comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with the
current year's presentation.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2019

The Group has not early applied the following new and amendments
to IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

IFRS 17
Amendments to IFRS 3

Amendments to IFRS 9,

IAS 39 and IFRS 7

Amendments to IFRS 10
and IAS 28

Amendments to IAS 1
and IAS 8

Insurance Contracts’
Definition of a Business?

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform#

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture3

Definition of Material*

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021
Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for which the
acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual period
beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020

In addition to the above new and amendments to IFRSs, a revised

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting was issued in 2018.
Its consequential amendments, the Amendments to References to
the Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards, will be effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

38

39.

. BT
() ALER201951 71 BEREIETENE
ERERER RS EAE 165 - Bt
Bk LEERTRES - BHEAS
B — S EEIS 2 2 -

(i) KRHSFBHRRN2ZIITAR G
MERANETHECEHNSE  AERE
WEINEMHHZSH - Bt - LBREAFEE
MO UFHEAREENZEFITR -

BZ2019F12A31MH L FECEMG
B REMWIBETAR - FIEAREE
AREEL N E

SR AR R A T 5 B AR (B s R A R B
RIS ERINF R BRI RIEFTA

BRI ELRE 17 RRAL

B BT 15 3R o5 AR I 55 355% EEHER?
(ERTA)

BB IE IR ELERNFE - FRELEUE

BB &R E395% K
BIFR M 75 3R 5 RSB 7557
(1EETA)

BRI 3RS RIE105%

= REERERZ
e R AER 2857

ARRAADR
CHES) g rRmEE
SR

E T EAIE 1R EANEH

BIfR &5 ERIF 85
(ERTA)

L 20211 A1 88k & FR R FE B EK

2 U B A2020F1 A1 B2 B RBHEE
FEHBMAAE B2 BNEBHE O REEWE
K

3 REFE B EIg 2 B R e & E BRI A

4 2020 1 A1 B 8k & FA R F BRI AR

B bl B B 75 3R 5 A RO #T AT E R REET A
S - 2018 4F 7T B 40 AR (E 7T # B 15 Sl 5 B AR
R o BARERMERT[ &/ BB B 75 2 & B R 51
BERER B A B AIIEET 16520201 A1B 32
RFEABHFERREER
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39. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW 39, #Z£2019F 128318t FEC EMH

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2019 (Continued)

Except for the new and amendments to IFRS mentioned below, the
directors of the Company anticipate that the application of all other
new and amendments to IFRSs will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.

Amendments to IFRS 3 “Definition of a Business”
The amendments:

e add an optional concentration test that permits a simplified
assessment of whether an acquired set of activities and assets is
not a business. The election on whether to apply the optional
concentration test is available on transaction-by-transaction
basis;

e clarify that to be considered a business, an acquired set of
activities and assets must include, at a minimum, an input and
a substantive process that together significantly contribute to
the ability to create outputs; and

o narrow the definitions of a business and of outputs by focusing
on goods and services provided to customers and by removing
the reference to an ability to reduce costs.

The amendments are applied prospectively to all business
combinations and asset acquisitions for which the acquisition date is
on or after the first annual reporting period beginning on or after 1
January 2020, with early application permitted.

2019 3 EIRIERBEZERER AR

B ARERBERT A » FEAR 2R
WHREENE(E)

B T SRt B B 75 e 5 R A RO S R T R Al (B /T
AEN - ARRIEFETEHN A R ARRERMEEM
BIFR R 15 3R 5 R AR R AT B R R RT AN & 4R
BUMBHRRELEATE -

B PR B 5 R 5 R B 3835 (18R] &) [ 275
MY |
BRAER]

o MEFEBETHSHER - AFFEIL
HAKBEN AR R EERTBKER
MG - AR BER SHEEREISTEM
MERFBETHSTRAR

. BEMBEBHKLY  FKEN—EED
REEVAZSBE—BRAR—EBEE
MiBI2 - FE AR R Al A
BEED R

o WNEBRELNTE EUBIRNAE
PR SRR - MRS EHE KA
s N EoIRIL -

BB ERARNKE B A2020F1 A1 2
BB EEFEEREHMEMAGE Bk 2 BT
BEBAHREERE  nFREER -
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39. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2019 (Continued)

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 “Definition of Material”

The amendments provide refinements to the definition of material by
including additional guidance and explanations in making materiality
judgments. In particular, the amendments:

° include the concept of “obscuring” material information
in which the effect is similar to omitting or misstating the
information;

e replace threshold for materiality influencing users from “could
influence” to “could reasonably be expected to influence”;
and

o include the use of the phrase “primary users” rather than
simply referring to “users” which was considered too broad
when deciding what information to disclose in the financial
statements.

The amendments also align the definition across all IFRSs and will be
mandatorily effective for the Group’s annual period beginning on 1
January 2020. The application of the amendments is not expected
to have significant impact on the financial position and performance
of the Group but may affect the presentation and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements.

30. B E2019F12A31MH L FEECHEM

B ARERBERT A » FEAR 2R
WREELENTE(E)

B S ERE 1R RER S ERIZES
SUBRI AN EARNES

BRERT AL HE =D ERNEIMNE S| KAF
B AcHERNES - ABME - AR :

o BEIAEIEREHNHS  HEALARE
RSB RERHRUR R -

o RUPEEMAENEXRMUPERIATER
8 BB RIMERRBTE] K

e FERIXEZEREIMTREBERIER
| FEIRTE I 7 R 0 R P L B R B
[EME BT EBNER

BREMERT NG —TEFT A BB B s & 22 AR /) T8
% WEEAREER202051 A1 BRBNEE
HisR Bk - TEHEAA BB TS AR
MV BHRRARRREEEATE  HAJREFER
RA ISR YRR EE
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39.

40.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2019 (Continued)

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018
(the “"New Framework"”) and the Amendments to
References to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS
Standards

The New Framework:

o reintroduces the terms stewardship and prudence;

e introduces a new asset definition that focuses on rights and
a new liability definition that is likely to be broader than the
definition it replaces, but does not change the distinction
between a liability and an equity instrument;

. discusses historical cost and current value measures, and
provides additional guidance on how to select a measurement
basis for a particular asset or liability;

e  states that the primary measure of financial performance is
profit or loss, and that only in exceptional circumstances other
comprehensive income will be used and only for income or
expenses that arise from a change in the current value of an
asset or liability; and

e  discusses uncertainty, derecognition, unit of account, the
reporting entity and combined financial statements.

Consequential amendments have been made so that references in
certain IFRSs have been updated to the New Framework, whilst some
IFRSs are still referred to the previous versions of the framework.
These amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2020, with earlier application permitted. Other
than specific standards which still refer to the previous versions of
the framework, the Group will rely on the New Framework on its
effective date in determining the accounting policies especially for
transactions, events or conditions that are not otherwise dealt with
under the accounting standards.

Approval of the Financial Statements
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by
the Board on 17 April 2020.

2019 3 EIRIERBEZERER AR

39.

40.

BZEZ2019F12A3MH L FECHEMG
B RERWIEETA » FIEARRE
AREEE N E(E)

2018 F AR SHER ([ HER D R
£ B PR B 7 3R 5 22 Rl 5| AR S AE 2R 1Y
REHER]

FEZR
o  EHMEIAMAIRAEEIREE]

o NHAFMEETE(AEMNABRIIER) R
%ﬁﬁ’ﬂﬁ%i%(%&ﬁT%F%&EHXﬁE’JEE
FEREZ B ARNEAEEZERT
2R ;

o FIWMELKARBENGE - WLt
HETEERRBEREFEEEREHBI
85l

e HRHEREVBXRENTIZEERE &
FRBA T EREMbEEYE - BER
RRBEXBENREZ(CmEEHBA
HFx &

o RBLRTHEEM - RIERER - AREML - &

SEBMAHMIERE -

SEAELAERERT - 5 TRV BHREELR

RIS AR EFEREFIER @ D BRI
WEERMYS| AERAIESR - ZFEF]72020
FIATBR 2 BB FEREBRRAR - WAl
SRR - BR{S|BERNERMREERIN - &
EEBRIIERE R ABIKIBZIERETE K
R(LERSTENRBEENR S - BMHUIE
S e

B R &R
BB HMAROR2020F4 A 17BEE S E MR
HEFI|EE o
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Definitions

" affiliate”
[EsEBAT

"AGM"
[ERBFEAE ]

“Articles” or “Articles of Association”
[4BA k[ 484 =240 A |

"Board”
(==

“Cayman Companies Law”

[R2ESAEE]

“China” or “the PRC”
[FEE ]

“"Company” or “our Company” or
“the Company”
[A2xa]]

“Director(s)"”

[E%]

noou nou

"Group”, "our Group”,

" " oou

we”, “us”, or “our”

[ARSE ] - [P Ikl FAe )

the Group”,

"HKS"
77t )

218

any other person, directly or indirectly, controlling or controlled by or under direct
or indirect common control with such specified person
BESHEEGIETE A TR A EESEEIE AR T A T BRI EES HA
22 Tl ) R Rl EL A A £

annual general meeting of the company

ARBBRBFAE

the articles of association of the Company (as amended from time to time),
conditionally adopted on 1 February 2016
RARIR201652 A1 BB MR MM BME R 4R (T EHER])

the board of Directors
£5g

the Companies Law (2013 Revision) of the Cayman Islands, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of
1961), as amended or supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time
e ESENIE22E (1961 FE35AN) RRVA(2013FERTIR) » L TEHER]
S AR B A B AL T 2k

the People’s Republic of China excluding, for the purpose of this report, Hong
Kong, Macau Special Administrative Region and Taiwan
REARKEME - RREFTBESE  RFIFTHR RAE

Sinco Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited (BEFEIZ B B2 AT AR A 7)), an exempted
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability on 16 March
2015
FERARBEITRAR AR - N2015F3R16BEHSHSTMK LN ER AR
~A]

the director(s) of the Company
ZIN/NETF- =3

the Company and its subsidiaries
RRAREKMERR]

Hong Kong Dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

B BEEEEHR
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Definitions &3

"HKSE"
[ BB

“Hong Kong”
(&%)

"

“Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar
[EERAFERD K]

“Human Albumin Solution”

[AMAEREHR]

“Institute of Chinese Medical Sciences”
[ B BB L2

“Listing Rules”

[ s8]
“Main Board”
EE
“MPCM"

[&8 - HENMREEE]

"Mr. Huang”
[ExhE]

"Qctapharma”

[R5 F AT

“PRC"
[

"“Prospectus”

[EhE

2019 F# EMABEEERARAR

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
HEMERXHMBER AR

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
HEIFEBRRITTHE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

BRRRBHFELBRAT

refers to Octapharma’s human albumin solution 20% (containing 200 grammes
of total protein per litre) and human albumin solution 25% (containing 250
grammes of total protein per litre). The term Human Albumin Solution refers to
both products or either one of them as the context requires

AR BEHEEN20% AMNAERIFR(BHE#EH2005%) %25% AMA
EHHIR(BAESHED2507%) - AMBERFSIREZ TMIEE M E T —1E
(RFxE)

the Institute of Chinese Materia Medica, China Academy of Chinese Medical
Sciences (71 B EE RL B2 A ZEAf ST FRY)
F B e B R B2 o BERA SR PR

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the HKSE, as amended or
supplemented from time to time

BABZAESF LTRA - BTARERT T

Main Board of the HKSE
BB PTER

refers to marketing, promotion and channel management for the sale and
promotion of pharmaceutical products for pharmaceutical manufacturers
REELENEE RIEHEDETHEE  HERREERE

Mr. Huang Xiangbin (&##7), our Chairman, Executive Director, Chief Executive
Officer and one of our controlling shareholders

|EWSESE - BIFWER - ITESF - TBEREGRE R 2 —
Octapharma AG, a corporation limited by shares incorporated in the Swiss
Confederation

Octapharma AG * s TH F A L AR D AR A E

the People’s Republic of China
hEE AR HAME

the prospectus issued by the Company dated 29 February 2016
RATM20165F2 A29 R FIEEHBIRE
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Definitions &3

"Reporting Period”
[ ¥ 5 H

“Risun”
[Risun ]

“RMB”
[AR®)

"SFO"

[5& % kRG]

“Share(s)”
[ A& ]

“Shareholder(s)”
[A&E ]

“Share Option Scheme”

[FERtEat 3]

“U.S. dollars” or "US$”

Em

the financial year ended 31 December 2019

HZE2019F 12831 B I EE

Risun Investments Limited, a limited company incorporated under the laws of BVI
on 16 January 2015, which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Mr. Huang

Risun Investments Limited * 72201591 A 16 Q£ B 4 m B & - AL AR
DA REAEREREHMEAR

Renminbi Yuan, the lawful currency of China

AR hEIEEEHS

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong), as
amended or supplemented from time to time

BREDIFESNERZ LG ED] - K IRERT T

ordinary share(s) in the capital of the Company with nominal value of HK$0.0001
each
AR BIRAR EREEO0.000178 T8 Ak

holder(s) of Shares
[SSESZ=DN

the share option scheme conditionally adopted by our Company on 1 February
2016, the principal terms of which are summarised in “Statutory and General
Information — D. Other Information — 1 Share Option Scheme” in Appendix VII to
the Prospectus

RNATFRR2016F2 A1 BB GRA RN BEAES 8] - H = 25U B AR E b
BADEER—MER —D At &R — 1 AR ET 2]

U.S. dollars, the lawful currency of the United States of America
ET  ENBREREETEE

In this Annual Report, the terms “associate”, “close associate”, “connected — 7ERNF#{H » fBr W FE S EHIES) » [BEEA | - [EZF

i

person”,

oo

connected person-,

connected transaction

v oou

controlling shareholder”, “core  H#ZA |- [F:EAL ]« [BIEX S ) - [1ERIRE | -
'subsidiary” and “substantial shareholder” shall have — [#z/ 0 Ei:EA 1| - [HTB RG] R+ E/RE | AL FiT

the meanings given to such terms in the Listing Rules, unless the context — #8RIIfFhE T 8753 o

otherwise requires.

The English translation of the PRC entities, enterprises, nationals, facilities, — FHE &2 « D3 - EIS#IE - 3B~ FHEB B L5
regulations in Chinese are translations of the Chinese names. To the A ZHIFZE o (HHEFHE « P2« EEEE %
extent there is any inconsistency between the Chinese names of the PRC  jfp - JEH g A X & FHEIH 21 X ;2L B 1FIg s - L

entities, enterprises, nationals, facilities, requlations and their English
translations, the Chinese names shall prevail.

PXERERE -
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